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Audit Committee  
 
Minute of Meeting of the Audit Committee held on Thursday 7 September 2017 at 
9.30am in the Barbour Suite. 
 
Present:  Graham Hope (Chair) 
   Simon Ashpool 
   Sue Cook 
    
In attendance: Mhairi Harrington (Principal & Chief Executive) 

Jennifer McLaren (Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum 
Services) 
George Hotchkiss (Vice Principal, Curriculum & Planning) 
Paula White (Facilities Manager, Item 17.40) 
David Eardley (Scott-Moncrieff, Internal Auditors) 
Lucy Nutley (Mazars, External Auditors) 
Joanna Paterson (Board Secretary) 

 
 
17.30 Welcome/Apologies 
 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. Apologies were noted from 
Norman Ross. 
 

17.31 Declarations of Interest 
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 
17.32 Minute of Meeting of 6 June 2017 
 

The Minute of the meeting of the Audit Committee of 6 June 2017 was 
approved as a correct record. 

 
17.33 Matters Arising from Minute of Meeting of 6 June 2017 
 

Members noted paper 2 detailing actions duly completed following the 
meeting of 6 June 2017.   
 
There were no other matters arising not otherwise on the agenda. 

 
17.34 Annual Internal Audit Report 2016-17 
 

Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, introduced the Annual Internal 
Audit Report for 2016-17. It was noted that this was required under the 
College’s Financial Memorandum with the Scottish Funding Council. 
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David Eardley advised that the report included reference to one review, 
organisational well-being, which had been completed and a management 
response agreed, but not yet reported to the Committee. This report would be 
discussed at the November 2017 Committee meeting. 
 
It was agreed that the Annual Report was a useful report and that it was 
helpful to see the control objective assessments presented visually. 
 
The Committee noted that in the opinion of Internal Audit, the College has a 
framework of controls in place that provides reasonable assurance regarding 
the effective and efficient achievement of objectives and the management of 
key risks, with proper arrangements in place to promote value for money and 
deliver best value. 
 
The Committee agreed to note the report, which would form part of the 
governance statement for the annual accounts and also be made available to 
the Funding Council. 
 

17.35 Internal Audit Plan 2017-18 to 2019-20 
 

Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, introduced the revised draft 
Internal Plan for 2017-18, set within the context of the 3 year plan to 2020.  
 
Following discussion at the last meeting, the Plan had been revised following 
re-prioritisation by the Senior Team of the timing and relative priority for three 
proposed areas connected to attainment and the learner experience in order 
to gain the maximum added value from the audit activity.  The scope of the IT 
review had also been agreed and contained within the Plan. 
 
It was noted that the attainment and learner experience reviews would 
consider the process from both staff and student perspective and had the 
potential to add a lot of value to what could be quite a cluttered process. 
 
The Committee agreed to approve the plan for 2017-18. 

 
17.36 External Audit Progress Report 

 
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, introduced the paper from the 
External Auditors providing a progress update on delivering the 
responsibilities expected of external auditors. 
 
The paper also highlighted key emerging national issues and developments, 
and included an example audit report based on the new model issued by 
Audit Scotland. 
 
 



  Agenda Item 17.47 
 

                                                                                                            Paper 1 
West Lothian College         
  30 November 2017 
  

 
AC/301117/Ser 
 3 
 

It was noted that the implications of one of the highlighted rulings in relation to 
VAT had been explored by the College but would not be taken forward as it 
did not sufficiently benefit the College. 
 
The Committee noted that the Audit Scotland report into Scotland’s Colleges 
2017 had identified a cost to the sector of £80 million over three years for 
National Bargaining. 
 
The Committee agreed to note the report. 

 
17.37 College Audit Rolling Action Plan 

 
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, introduced paper 6 showing 
progress in implementing recommendations previously agreed.  
 
The Committee agreed to note the progress that was being made against plan 
and congratulated the executive team on the small number of action points 
that were now being reported in the Plan. 

 
17.38 Financial Regulations and Schedule of Financial Approvals 

 
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services, introduced paper 6 highlighting 
proposed changes to the Financial Regulations to reflect changes in job titles, 
the move to the Scottish Government Banking Service, and the requirement 
to produce 5 year financial forecasts. A change was also proposed to the 
Schedule of Financial Approvals to allow Vice Principals to sign SDS 
contracts and to add a separate line for signing-off staff contracts. 
 
It was agreed that section 17.3, Private Consultancies and Other Paid Work, 
should be amended to refer to ‘written’ consent of the Principal and 
applications submitted ‘in writing’. 
 
The Committee agreed to recommend approval of the revised Financial 
Regulations and Schedule of Financial Approvals to the Board. 
 
Action 1: Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services; Board 
Secretary 
 

17.39 Strategic Risk Register 2017-18 Update 
 

The Principal presented paper 8 setting out the recommendations from a 
review of the Strategic Risk Register for 2017-2018 and taking into account 
the Regional Plan 2017-20, progress with the Employer Association and 
National Bargaining, the Government Spending Review and continued 
legislative changes. 
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The five key strategic risks emerging from the review process were (1) 
developing the young workforce (2) developing Scotland’s workforce (3) 
widening access to learning and skills (4) building enterprise and innovation 
and (5) ensuring sustainability. 
 
The estimated tolerance thresholds for each risk had also been reviewed, 
taking into account previous considerations by the Board and Committee in 
relation to the Board appetite for risk. 
 
In relation to developing the young workforce, it was noted that there may be 
opportunities to deliver Foundation Apprenticeships in other regions and that 
the College had well-developed systems and processes that allowed teams to 
respond swiftly to emerging opportunities.  
 
In relation to widening access, it was noted that the marketing strategy 
included outreach work and partnership with other key agencies as well as 
use of publicity and other materials. It was noted that much of the outreach 
and access work took place in the Local Authority Partnership Centres.  
 
It was agreed that it would be useful for Board members to get the opportunity 
to see some of the facilities available in the Partnership Centres and it would 
be helpful to arrange a Board meeting or other event in one of the Centres 
over the next 12 months. 
 
Action 2: Board Secretary 
 
There was some discussion of the importance of providing opportunities for 
care experienced learners and the value of developing strong local 
partnerships to provide appropriate support and opportunities for this group. 
 
The Committee agreed the Strategic Risk Register for 2017-18 and agreed 
the Risk Tolerance threshold levels set for 2017-18. 
 
The Committee noted that following discussion at both Finance and General 
Purposes and this Committee it had been agreed to share the strategic risk 
register with the Board on an annual basis, for information. It was noted that 
this would be on the agenda for the September Board meeting. 

 
17.40 Health & Safety Quarterly Report 

 
The Facilities Manager introduced the quarterly report to June 2017. 
 
It was noted that the Counter Terrorist Evacuation procedure had been 
approved by the Senior Team and arrangements for dissemination were being 
rolled out. 
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The Committee noted that training videos would be made available on the 
Moodle site. The pattern of use and completion of the training would be 
tracked for a six month period to assess whether they were being used. 

 
It was noted that future reports would separate out ‘violence’ and ‘threats of 
violence’ and this would be reflected in the next update to the Committee.  
 
Members noted the summary of corrective actions taken following the Health 
and Safety Audit. Assurances had been provided that any outstanding actions 
would be completed by the end of September.  
 
The Committee agreed to note the report and expressed their appreciation for 
the level of assurance provided. 

 
17.41 College Key Performance Indicators 2016-17 

 
Vice Principal, Finance and Curriculum Services, introduced paper 10 
showing the College’s Key Financial and Non-Financial Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) for 2016-17. 
 
It was noted that the financial KPIs were ahead of target due to additional 
income generated both through commercial activity and part time fee income. 
In relation to learner KPIs, it was noted that targets were identified based on 
longer term trends as well as the previous year’s performance and were 
aimed at achieving continuous improvement. 
 
Members noted the report. 

 
17.42 Any Other Business 
 

There were no other items of business. 
 
17.43 Review of Meeting, Supporting Papers and Development Plan 

 
The Committee were content with the meeting, the information received and 
supporting papers presented.  
 
The Committee noted the updated Development Plan. The Board Secretary 
advised that the vacancy in Committee membership identified in the plan had 
now been filled and that Colin Miller would be joining the Committee from the 
November meeting.  

It was noted that a campus visit would be arranged for the start of the March 
2018 meeting. 

It was agreed that no further changes were required to the Development Plan. 
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17.44 Date of Next Meeting 
 

The next meeting would take place on Thursday 30 November 2017 at 
9.30am. 

 
Note: There were no matters discussed during the meeting, during which Members 
declared any conflict of interest, or the Secretary to the Board was aware from the 
Register of Interests that discussion could give rise to such a conflict. 
 
 
Signed …………………………………………………. 
  Chair, Audit Committee 
 
Date  ………………………………………………… 
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Audit Committee  
 
Action update from the Audit Committee of 30 November 2017 
 
 
Action 1: Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services; Board Secretary - 
Financial Regulations and Schedule of Financial Approvals - The Committee 
agreed to recommend approval of the revised Financial Regulations and 
Schedule of Financial Approvals to the Board. 
 
This was duly completed. 
 
 
Action 2: Board Secretary - Strategic Risk Register 2017-18 Update - It was 
agreed that it would be useful for Board members to get the opportunity to see 
some of the facilities available in the Partnership Centres and it would be helpful 
to arrange a Board meeting or other event in one of the Centres over the next 12 
months. 
 
Noted and included in Development Plan.  
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Audit Committee 
 
Annual Report & Financial Statements 2016-17 
 
Introduction 
 
The annual financial statements for financial year 2016-17 are attached to this 
paper.  These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) and with Financial 
Reporting Standards FRS102.  They also comply with the 2016-17 
Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) issued by the Scottish 
Government.   
 
Financial Results for the year ended 31 July 2017 
 
The College generated a deficit before other gains and losses in the year of 
£277,000 (2016 - deficit of £595,000), with total comprehensive income 
surplus of £2,868,000 (2016 – deficit of £1,891,000).  The total 
comprehensive income in 2017 included an unrealised surplus on revaluation 
of assets of £2,221,000 (2016 – Nil) and an actuarial gain in respect of 
pension funds of £924,000 (2016 – loss of £1,296,000).  After transfer of 
£189,000 from the revaluation reserve, the cumulative deficit on the Income 
and Expenditure account decreased by £836,000 from £12,109,000 deficit to 
£11,273,000 deficit. 
  
The cumulative deficit at the year-end comprised £137,000 for holiday pay 
accrual, £2,685,000 for voluntary agreed PFI termination loan, £3,953,000 for 
early retirement provisions, £4,416,000 for defined benefit pension obligations 
and £82,000 for trading activities (see Note 16). 
 
The College is reporting net total liabilities of £4,833,000 in its balance sheet 
which is due to the reclassification of deferred Government Grant as deferred 
income within creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year 
and due after more than one year as appropriate. 
 
Interim Valuation 
 
In line with the requirements of the FReM the College has adopted a formal 
revaluation policy of an external valuation every five years, with a desktop, 
interim valuation performed during the five year period. The interim valuation 
was performed as at 31 July 2017.   This has resulted in a revaluation gain of 
£2.2m and impairment loss of £1.9m, leading to a net revaluation gain of 
£300k in the financial statements. 
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Key Changes to the format of the accounts 2016-17 
 
Statement of Comprehensive Income (SOCI) 
 
Colleges are required to include a statement at the foot of the SOCI and a 
note to the accounts (Note 28) explaining the impact of the non-cash budget 
given for depreciation.  This restates the SOCI results on a Government 
Accounting basis for the academic year and is required because the non-cash 
budget allocation for depreciation cannot be included in the SOCI under the 
FE/HE SORP accounting rules. 
 
Performance Report 
 
Table of Cash Budget for Priorities 
 
Colleges are now required to provide in the Performance Report a breakdown 
of spend of the cash budget allocation previously earmarked for depreciation.  
This was previously referred to as net depreciation cash.  This is provided on 
Page 14. 
  
Underlying Operating Position 
 
The Performance Report must provide details of the underlying operating 
position for 2016-17.  The allowable adjustments were specified in the 
Accounts Direction.  The table is provided on Page 14. 
 
 
Action 
 
The Committee is asked to recommend approval of the annual financial 
statements for the year ended 31 July 2017. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services 
30 November 2017 
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The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue on 12 December 2017 
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PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017 
 
Purpose and Activities 
 
1. Purpose 
 
The Performance analysis provides a detailed performance summary and analysis of how West 
Lothian College measures its performance. 
 
2. Performance and Overview  

 
West Lothian is one of thirteen regions identified for the provision of further education across 
Scotland and has a particularly strong and productive relationship with the West Lothian 
Community Planning Partnership. This partnership of many public agencies delivers on the 
“Local Outcome Improvement Plan” for the community and delivers on the national ambitions 
and priorities set out by Scottish Government. 
 
West Lothian has a population of about 177,200, accounting for 3.3% of Scotland’s total 
population, and continues to be one of the fastest growing and youngest in the country, with an 
average age of 39 compared with 41 across Scotland. The growth is predicted to continue to 
2035 by another 19.3%. This growth however will see the number of people of pensionable age 
increase significantly and particularly those aged over 75 years.  
 
Almost 9,000 people in West Lothian (5% of the area population) live within some of the most 
deprived areas in Scotland and 13% of the population are experiencing income deprivation. In 
West Lothian the population dependent on out of work benefits or child tax credit is 47% which is 
similar to the Scottish average for this measure (46.6%) with an estimated 18% of children in 
West Lothian living in severe poverty just below the Scottish average of 19.2%.  
 
There is a higher rate of Job Seeker’s Allowance (JSA) for West Lothian adults than the UK 
average, and youth unemployment although improved in recent years, sits around the national 
average. 
 
The College has responded very positively to these challenges and received, along with other 
Regions, some needs based growth from the Funding Council to increase the capacity of the 
college by around 23% over the last five years. West Lothian College was the only college in 
Scotland not to see a decline in overall student numbers over the period 2010- 2015 (Audit 
Scotland Report on Scotland’s Colleges August 2016). 
 
This has enabled the college to provide and target provision for 16-19 year olds, work with those 
20-24 year olds wishing to re-train or enter the employment market and continue to deliver a 
robust suite of work based learning programmes for employees and businesses. 
 
The pace of growth has not come without its challenges and alongside planning for growth has 
been a focus on raising attainment and improving the quality of our outcomes. 
 
The colleges’ performance in achieving its activity targets has been strong, recording an over 
achievement of sums or credits since 2009-2010 (seven years). There have been equally 
positive financial outcomes supported by a strong commercial and work based portfolio. 
 
Performance on attainment has been more mixed with the college sitting either slightly above or 
below the National Averages for FE and HE Full Time and FE and HE Part Time with one or two 
anomalies in 2015-2016 caused by some very specific programmes. 
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Improving attainment remains a key challenge for the college and its importance is reflected in 
our 2017- 2020 Regional Plan and Outcome Agreement. 
 
3. Legal Status  

 
West Lothian College is a free standing corporate body under the provisions of the Further and 
Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 as amended by the Further & Higher Education (Scotland) 
Act 2005 and subsequently the Post-16 Education (Scotland) Act 2013. The College is governed 
by a Board of Governors and receives the majority of its funding directly from the Scottish 
Funding Council (SFC). The College is listed on the Scottish Charity Register and is entitled, in 
accordance with section 13(1) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, to 
refer to itself as a charity registered in Scotland. 
 
4. Vision   

 
The College’s vision is: 
 
To be a high performing and creative College with a regional and national reputation for 
excellence in demand led learning and skills development. 
 
5. Learner profile  
 
The College enrolled 8,016 learners in 2016-17 from a West Lothian working age population of 
117,190. The breakdown of enrolments by level and study mode and age was; 
 

   Age Profile 

LEVEL  ENRs ENRs % 
Under 16 

ENR 
Under 16 

ENR % 
16-18 
ENR 

16-18 
ENR % 

19-24 
ENR 

19-24 
ENR % 

25+ 
ENR 

25+ 
ENR % 

FEFT 1358 17% 66 1% 599 7% 295 4% 398 5% 

HEFT 831 10% n/a n/a 312 4% 276 3% 243 3% 

FEPT 3885 48% 378 5% 619 8% 566 7% 2322 29% 

HEPT 1942 25% 20 0% 69 1% 167 2% 1686 21% 

Total 8016 100% 464 6% 1599 20% 1304 16% 4649 58% 
 

Part-time provision is the dominant mode of study accounting for 72% of College enrolments, 
with full time provision accounting for 28% of enrolments. The mode of study also has an impact 
upon the College’s student age profile with over 25’s accounting for 58% of total enrolments the 
majority of which are undertaking part time courses. The under 18’s represent 26% of total 
enrolments with just over half (52.6% of these enrolled on part-time courses. This profile is 
accounted for by the College’s success in working with employers and delivering commercial 
contracts for the up-skilling and re-skilling of the workforce. 
 
The breakdown of enrolments by level and gender was; 
 

  Female Male Total 
LEVEL ENRs ENRs % ENRs ENRs % ENRs ENRs % 
FEFT 787 10% 571 7% 1358 17% 
HEFT 429 5% 402 5% 831 10% 
FEPT 2569 32% 1316 16% 3885 48% 
HEPT 1253 16% 689 9% 1942 25% 
Total 5038 63% 2978 37% 8016 100% 
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The learner profile of the College continues to show a higher percentage of full and part time 
female (63%) to male learners (37%). There is variance of both age and gender profiles across 
the Centres with many more young males in Engineering, Computing, Motor Vehicle and 
Construction and more mature females in Health and Social Care and Childhood Practice. The 
College clearly continues to recruit to courses on the basis of ability, experience and aspiration 
and not on the grounds of gender, age or any other protected characteristic.  
 
6. Curriculum planning 
 
With support from the Scottish Funding Council (SFC), the College has increased the available 
number of places for learners by around 20% since 2012-15, enabling us to contribute towards 
the Scottish Government’s clear priorities to provide for those who are unemployed, those in the 
workplace who require up-skilling and to guarantee all 16-19 year olds a place in post-16 
learning or training that fits regional and national employment prospects.  
 
With a strong, co-operative commitment to improving the lives of people in West Lothian, our 
partnership approach ensures the College's High Priority Outcomes within its Regional Outcome 
Agreement align with West Lothian’s Local Outcome Improvement Plan.  
 
West  Lothian College’s Curriculum Strategy is to design, equality impact assess and deliver 
innovative, sustainable curriculum courses with a continuous focus on employability, literacy, 
numeracy and health and well-being, which are relevant to economic and social inclusion and 
reflect national and local sector skills priorities for growth in Creative Industries, Energy, 
Financial and Business Services, Food and Drink, Life Sciences, Sustainable Tourism and for 
the high participation sectors of Care, Retail, Manufacturing, Engineering and Construction. 
 
Curriculum planning is informed by local and national priorities and by socio-economic data 
generated locally and national by Skills Development Scotland (SDS). 
 
A major consultation exercise was undertaken in 2016-17 this informed production of the 
Regional Plan and Outcome Agreement 2017-20 
 
7. College/School Partnership  
 
The College is committed to contributing towards the Scottish Government’s clear priorities to 
provide for those who are unemployed, those in the workplace who require up-skilling and to 
guarantee all 16-19 year olds a place in post-16 learning or training that better prepares young 
people for employment through informed career choice to fit regional and national employment 
prospects. 
 
The College works in close collaboration with West Lothian Education services and has a strong 
partnership with all the secondary schools in the region.  In 2016-17 the College Schools 
portfolio consisted of 42 courses which attracted over 440 young learners to study at the 
College.  
 
The College sits on West Lothian’s Developing Scotland’s Young Workforce Steering Board, 
whose remit is to plan, co-ordinate and monitor partners working together to contribute to the 
implementation of Curriculum for Excellence in the Senior Phase, and to ensure a joined-up 
approach to strategic planning to provide training and employment opportunities for young 
people in West Lothian.  Within the Opportunities for All agenda, all young people in West 
Lothian will have the opportunity to realise their entitlements, whatever their individual needs and 
wherever their learning is taking place, to progress into a guaranteed positive and sustained 
post-16 destination in learning, training or employment.  
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Initial School Leaver Destination Return (SLDR) 2014-15 participation in Further Education (FE) 
in West Lothian was 29.6%, an increase of 3.2% from 2013-14. SLDR participation in Higher 
Education (HE) in West Lothian in 2014-15 was 4% lower than the previous year and is now at 
37.1% although still above the Scottish average, particularly from the two schools Linlithgow 
Academy at 57.3% and St Margaret’s Academy, Livingston at 42.5%.  
 
8. Economic context  
 
West Lothian had the 30th highest rate of growth amongst all UK non-metropolitan authorities 
and is the only Scottish authority and one of only 3 outside the south of England to have seen 
this level of sustained population growth over the last 20 years. 
 
West Lothian has the youngest and fastest growing population in Scotland. The 2014 mid-year 
estimate indicates West Lothian has the highest percentage of under 15s in Scotland at 18.9% 
and the lowest percentage of over 65s at 13.6%. The 16-24 year old population represents 
10.7% of the total population slightly below the national Scottish figure of 11.6%.   
 
Whilst there are many areas of affluence in West Lothian around 9,000 people, 5% of the area 
population, live within some of the most deprived areas in Scotland and 13% of the resident 
population is experiencing income deprivation. 9% of households have an income under 
£10,000, compared to 13% in Scotland, and 32% of households have an income over £30,000, 
compared to Scotland at 31%. 18% of workless households in the region is an increase from 
15% since 2004.  
 
At July 2017, unemployment in West Lothian stood at 1.8% (% is a proportion of resident 
working age people), which is lower than 2.5% for the same month the previous year. 
Unemployment is higher in the southwest of West Lothian (Whitburn and Blackburn, Armadale 
and Blackridge, Bathgate and Fauldhouse and the Breich Valley) and lower in Linlithgow and the 
southeast of the area.  
 
West Lothian also maintains a higher proportion (3.6%) than Scotland (3.5%) of youth 
unemployment and this, with particular focus on the Scottish Government’s agenda to increase 
the employment rate for young disabled people to the population average by 2021, remains a 
key concern to West Lothian’s Community Planning Partnership and Economic Forum.  The 
College’s high priority outcome to improving life chances by increasing access for young people 
aged 16-24 to successfully participate in vocational education opportunities within the region has 
been, over 2011-15, to provide a steady average commitment of 50% of its funding allocation to 
increasing the number of full time courses offered to 16-19 year old learners and to maintaining 
our allocation of funding to 20-24 year olds. 
 
West Lothian has a similar pattern to Scotland for basic and intermediate level qualifications with 
74% of adults qualified to SVQ level 2 and above, compared with 74.8% for Scotland. However, 
West Lothian lags behind Scotland for higher level qualifications with just 34.9% qualified to SVQ 
level 4 and above, compared with 41% for Scotland.  With non-advanced provision accounting 
for around 73% of all College activity and provision at SCQF level 7 and above at 27% of the 
portfolio, this represents a steady increase over the past three years in higher level provision to 
reflect the expressed skills needs of the economy and to promote positive destinations for our 
students into sustainable well paid employment. 
 
9. Stakeholder Relationships  
 
The College prioritises the value of partnership working and seeks to maximise the benefits of 
partnerships for our staff and learners through positive engagement with a wide range of 
organisations and stakeholders. 
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Full engagement in the strategic assessment process involves close working with Community 
Partners that clearly focus on establishing a shared 'plan for place'. The College’s partnership 
approach ensures that its High Priority Outcomes within the Regional Outcome Agreement align 
with and support a West Lothian-wide integrated approach to reducing outcome gaps and 
inequalities through shared vision and effective use of resources.  
  
The College has a well-developed “External Relations Mapping” document which it reviews 
annually. This captures all key contacts for organisations and further details the aims of specific 
partnerships and highlights commonality of outputs and outcomes. 
 
10. Principal Risks and Uncertainties  

 
During 2016-2017, the College was successful in the management of all high level, financial, 
reputational and operational risks.   
 
The College has continued to utilise the shared services provided by West Lothian Council and 
managed the associated risks and uncertainties. 
 
2016-17 was a fairly challenging year nationally for colleges, with employee relations and pay 
negotiations dominating events, with several days of industrial action taken by lecturing staff. 
However, the impact on our college learners of this was minimised, and the pay award ‘settled’. 
This, however, may be a temporary respite, which may re-emerge in 2017/18. On the support 
side a national pay agreement was arrived at without industrial action. Looking ahead there is a 
significant financial risk to the College from 2020 onwards if the total cost of National Pay 
Bargaining harmonisation is not fully funded by the Government/SFC.  
 
The risk register is led by the Senior Team with regular monitoring and reporting to the Board of 
Governors through the Audit Committee. 
 
11. Going Concern  
 
The Board of Governors has considered the College’s forecasts and financial projections and 
considers that the College has adequate resources to meet its ongoing liabilities and continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going 
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.  
 
Although the College has net liabilities, this is due to the change of treatment of deferred 
Government Grant (capital) which is now recognised as deferred income within creditors and 
allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than one year as 
appropriate.   
 
12. Performance Summary  
 
West Lothian College contributed to the following priority outcomes: 
 
• Provision of sustainable post 16 vocational education supported by the efficiencies of 

shared services and joint provision with West Lothian Council. 
 
• Improved life chances by increasing access for young people aged 16-24 to 

successfully participate in vocational education and opportunities within the region. 
 
• Increased positive destinations for individuals in the region completing vocational 

programmes into employment or higher level study. 
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• Contributed to economic growth and success in West Lothian by increasing the skills 
levels of individuals employed in the workplace and meeting the needs of employers in 
West Lothian. 

 
13. Performance Analysis  

 
The college made good progress towards the majority of the outcomes, outputs and targets 
identified in the 2015-2017 Regional Outcome Agreement. 
 
Highlights 
 
• 85% of learners satisfied with the quality and effectiveness of learning and teaching 
• 98% of HE students progressed to employment or university study. 
• Continued work on shared services with West Lothian Council achieved 
• Enhanced progression opportunities from West Lothian to a range of other colleges. 
• On track to achieve all targets set for and by the College 
• Extension of employability programmes and engagement with new employment sectors 

including health care engineering, construction, and hospitality. 
• Associate student places agreed and signed up for programmes with Edinburgh Napier 

University for Computing and Engineering 
• Twinning Exchange visit with Cran-Gevrier Vocational College in France extended to 

Hospitality, Interactive Multimedia and Hairdressing students 
• Successful, international, educational and cultural opportunities for students and staff to 

countries including South Africa, Sweden, Spain, and Indonesia.  
• Further developed the activities of the Student Association and  class representatives to 

ensure learner involvement in the life and work of the college  
• Development of partnership work with the NHS 

 
14. Resources  

 
While the College is in receipt of recurrent grant funding, it also generates income from its 
commercial activities.  Income is derived from the SDS contract,  a wide range of Professional 
Qualifications in Management and Specialist subjects,  the delivery of Scottish Vocational  
Qualifications in the workplace and the out of core time letting of College facilities and 
accommodation.   We continue to provide training for all Panel members working within the 
Children’s Hearings system delivered by the Children’s Hearing Scotland Training Unit. 
 
During this year the College worked very effectively with SDS to enhance a rolling employability 
programmes focused on the needs of young adults who have found entry to the labour market 
difficult. We also worked with SDS to extend the range of foundation apprentices available to 
young people with the College recruiting to 5 FA frameworks for a August 2017 start. 
 
 
15. Performance Indicators 

 
The College’s management and control ensure financial stability is sound. There are clear 
management structures and reporting arrangements in place, with operating plans, performance 
indicators and risk management processes in place to support delivery of Regional Outcomes.   
 
To monitor progress against the Regional Plan and Outcome Agreement the College works with 
a range of performance indicators, which are reviewed by the Senior Team and the Board of 
Governors on a regular basis.  
 
The tables below detail performance in Academic Years 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 
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WSUMS / Credits 

 
  

 
 

SFC Target 
 

Actual 
 

% Target 
2014-15 WSUMS 53,665 54,016 101% 
2015-16 Credits 43,499 44,669 103% 
2016-17 Credits 43,499 44,085 101% 

 
Full-time FE  

 
 Early 

withdrawal 
Further 

withdrawal 
Partial 

Success 
Completed 
successfully 

2014-15 8% 18% 10% 64% 
2015-16 8% 19% 9% 64% 
2016-17 9% 17% 12% 62% 

 
 
Full-time HE 

 
 Early 

withdrawal 
Further 

withdrawal 
Partial 

Success 
Completed 
successfully 

2014-15 8% 10% 11% 71% 
2015-16 5% 11% 14% 70% 
2016-17 5% 11% 11% 73% 

 
 
Part time FE 

 

 Early withdrawal Further 
withdrawal Partial Success Completed 

successfully 
2014-15 0.6% 3% 22% 75% 
2015-16 2% 5% 22% 74% 
2016-17 2% 6% 15% 77% 

 
Part time HE 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Early withdrawal Further 
withdrawal Partial Success Completed 

successfully 
2014-15 4% 2% 21% 74% 
2015-16 3% 5% 27% 66% 
2016-17 1% 10% 11% 79% 



 West Lothian College  
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Accounts 2017 Page 12  DRAFT 5 

The table below details financial performance in Financial Periods 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-
17 
 

 

Actual  
16 month period 
ended 31 July 

2015 
(restated) 

 

Actual 
12 month 

Academic Year 
2015-16 

 

Actual 
12 month 

Academic Year 
2016-17 

 

Deficit for the year as a % of total 
income  
 

(0.9%) 
 

(3.8%) (1.7%)* 

Deficit for the year  as a % of total 
expenditure 
 

(0.9%) (3.6%) (1.6%)* 

Staff costs as % of total income 
(excludes exceptional costs) 
 

61% 67% 65%* 

Ratio of Current Assets to Current 
Liabilities 
 

(0.5) (0.5) (0.7) 

Days Cash to Total Expenditure 6 14 35* 
Debtor Days 64 33 30 

 
*Excludes £1.9m deferred capital grant release as a result of an impairment loss 
following interim revaluation of assets 
 

16. Financial Strategy  
 

As a result of the college sector’s reclassification as a Central Government Department, the 
College’s Financial Strategy is to: 
 
• Generate sufficient cash surplus to meet the Scottish Funding Council (SFC) loan 

repayment obligations. 
 
• Gift aid any cash surpluses over and above that required to repay the SFC loan to The 

Scottish Colleges Foundation.    
  
• Utilise the contribution from commercial and project activities for re-investment in the 

College infrastructure. 
 
• Secure efficiencies across support and curriculum areas through continued delivery of 

shared services and joint provision with West Lothian Council. 
 
• Ensure sufficient working capital to meet liabilities. 

 
During 2016-17 the College: 
 
• Generated sufficient cash surplus to meet the SFC loan repayment obligations. 
 
• Utilised the contribution from commercial activities for re-investment in the College 

infrastructure. 
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• Secured efficiencies through continued delivery of shared services with West Lothian 
Council. 

 
• Ensured sufficient working capital to meet liabilities. 
 
17. Nature, Objectives and Strategies  

 
The Board present its report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 
2017.  The Board of Governors has approved these accounts on the basis the College is a going 
concern.  The audited financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost 
convention in line with the principles and guidance set out in the Statement of Recommended 
Practice, Accounting for Further and Higher Education and with the Government Financial 
Reporting Manual (FReM). 
 
18. Scope of the Financial Statements 
 
The Financial Statements cover all activities of the College. 
 
19. Financial Position  

 
Financial Results for the year ended 31 July 2017 
 
The College generated a deficit before other gains and losses in the year of £277,000 (2016 - 
deficit of £595,000), with total comprehensive income surplus of £2,868,000 (2016 – deficit of 
£1,891,000).  The total comprehensive income in 2017 included an unrealised surplus on 
revaluation of assets of £2,221,000 (2016 – Nil) and an actuarial gain in respect of pension funds 
of £924,000 (2016 – loss of £1,296,000).  After transfer of £189,000 from the revaluation 
reserve, the cumulative deficit on the Income and Expenditure account decreased by £836,000 
from £12,109,000 deficit to £11,273,000 deficit. 
  
The cumulative deficit at the year-end comprised £137,000 for holiday pay accrual, £2,685,000 
for voluntary agreed PFI termination loan, £3,953,000 for early retirement provisions, £4,416,000 
for defined benefit pension obligations and £82,000 for trading activities (see Note 16). 
 
The College is reporting net total liabilities of £4,833,000 in its balance sheet which is due to the 
reclassification of deferred Government Grant as deferred income within creditors and allocated 
between creditors due within one year and due after more than one year as appropriate. 
 
Cash Budget for Priorities 
 
One consequence of college sector reclassification as central government bodies is that, from 1 
April 2014, while colleges continue to prepare accounts under the FE/HE Statement of 
Recommended Practice, they are now also required to comply with Central Government 
budgeting rules.  This affects, amongst other things, the way in which non-cash depreciation 
charges are treated for budgeting purposes and how the colleges spend the cash funds (cash 
budget for priorities) previously earmarked for depreciation.  There is potential for this spend to 
move the college’s Statement of Comprehensive Income into a deficit position. 
 
Spend of the College’s cash budget for priorities, and impact on the operating position, is 
detailed below. 
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Table of cash budget for priorities spend 
 

 Year Ended  
31 July 2017 

Year Ended  
31 July 2016 

Revenue 
 

  

2016-17 Pay Award 
 

33 - 

Improvement to College Estate  
 

- 32 

Total impact on operating position 
 

33 32 

Capital 
 

  

Loan repayments 
 

158 158 

Total Capital 
 

158 158 

 
Total cash budget for priorities spend 

 
191 

 
190 

 
The Scottish Funding Council has confirmed that a deficit resulting from the College following its 
guidance should be treated as a ‘technical’ deficit and should not be interpreted, on its own, as a 
challenge to the College’s ongoing financial sustainability.  Audit Scotland accepts that a deficit 
arising from the use of cash funding originally provided for non-cash depreciation does not 
indicate an underlying financial sustainability concern. 
 
Underlying Operating Position 
 
The deficit for the year as per the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the result of a number 
of factors which are explained below. When these factors are adjusted the underlying financial 
position is an operating surplus. 
 
  

Note 
Year Ended  

31 July 2017 
Year Ended  

31 July 2016 
  £‘000 £‘000 
Deficit for the year as per statement of 
comprehensive income before other gains 
and losses 

 (277) (595) 

    
Add back:    
Non-cash pension adjustments    
Salary costs 1 524 379 
Interest 1 214 256 
Depreciation (net of deferred capital grant 
release) 
 

 191 190 

Deduct:    
Revenue funding allocated to ERP payments  200 202 
Revenue funding allocated to loan repayment  158 158 
    
Underlying operating surplus / (deficit)  294 (130) 
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 Note 1 - Pension Costs – Impact of introduction of Financial Reporting Standard 102 
 
These costs are non-cash items and are a requirement of FRS 102.  The costs represent the 
impact of the movement on the Lothian Pension Fund and College Early Retirement Provision 
which require to be charged to the College Statement of Comprehensive Income.  The College 
expenses the actual pension contributions as they are incurred and these are recorded in Note 6 
of the Financial Statements.  As these costs are non-cash related the College cannot control the 
impact they have been adjusted for. 
 
Taxation Status 
 
The College is registered with the Office of the Scottish Charities Regulator as a Scottish Charity 
and is exempt from corporation tax and capital gains tax.  The College receives no similar 
exemption in respect of Value Added Tax. 
 
Cash Flows 
 
Cash flow projections are prepared annually, broken down on a monthly basis to ensure that 
these are sufficient to meet the needs of the College.  These are reviewed monthly and reports 
are provided to the Senior Management Team and the Finance and General Purposes 
Committee.  Bank balances are checked on a daily basis and day-to day surplus funds are 
deposited overnight in a high interest bank account.   
 
Liquidity  
 
The College uses a number of ratios to assess the College’s liquidity.  The two key ratios are 
current assets: current liabilities and days cash to total expenditure.  However as a result of ONS 
reclassification the College is only able to hold minimum cash reserves.   At the end of 2016-17 
current assets: current liabilities were 0.7 and days cash to total expenditure was 35 days 
reflecting the ONS requirement.  Targets for 2017-18 are 15 days cash to total expenditure and 
current assets: current liabilities 0.9. 
 
Creditor Payment Policy  
 
The College complies with the Confederation of British Industry (CBI) Prompt Payment Code 
and has a policy of paying its suppliers within 30 days of invoice unless the invoice is contested.  
All disputes and complaints are handled as quickly as possible.  The proportion of year-end 
creditors to the aggregate invoiced amounts during the year was 8%.  The College did not pay 
any late interest payments during the year. 
 
The Scottish Public Finance Manual sets a Government target for the payment of invoices within 
10 working days of their receipt.  While this is a difficult target for the College to achieve, it 
nevertheless strives to pay all invoices as promptly as possible. 
 
20. Post-Balance Sheet Events 
 
There are no post-balance sheet events. 
 
 
21. Review of Resource outturn for year ended 31 March 2017  

 
Following the reclassification of colleges as public bodies on 1 April 2014, the College has been 
required to comply with government accounting and budgeting rules on a fiscal year basis (ie to 
the end of March).  The college is given a revenue resource budget (RDEL) and a capital 
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resource budget (CDEL) and must account for this budget on a fiscal year basis.  The resource 
budgets and final outturn for 2016-17 (1 April 2016-31 March 2017) are outlined below: 
 
 RDEL 

£’000 
 

CDEL 
£’000 

Resource budget for year ended 31 March 2017 13,187 105 
Expenditure against resource budget  13,108 93 
Net underspend/(overspend) against budget 79 13 

 
In addition, the college received a non-cash budget from the government to cover depreciation 
costs. It should be noted that the figures in the table above have not been audited.   
 
22. Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009  
 
The College complied with the Scottish Government sustainability reporting in line with the 
requirements of the Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009. 
 
23. Equal Opportunities  

 
West Lothian College has published its Equality Mainstreaming Report 2013-16, which outlines 
how we will meet our General and Public Sector Equality Duties and informs and guides decision 
making and policy reviews. We have a range of policies which ensure that staff, learners and 
visitors are treated equitably regardless of colour, race, nationality, ethnic or national origin, 
religion or belief, disability, gender or gender reassignment, age and sexual orientation, 
pregnancy and maternity, marriage or civil partnership.    
 
We value diversity and aim to advance equality of opportunity, foster good relations and 
eliminate discrimination, victimisation and harassment in all our activities.  
 
Policies and procedures, work practices and terms and conditions of employment are 
continuously reviewed and equality impact assessed to ensure compliance with legislation and 
identified best practice.   
 
The College considers all applications for a college course place from all members of the 
community in respect of the qualifications and skills necessary to meet the entry requirements of 
the course applied for.   
 
The College considers all applications for employment from all members of the community in 
respect of the qualifications and skills necessary to fulfil the requirements of the position.   
 
24. Future Performance  

  
The College’s Curriculum Strategy 2016-18 identifies key target groups by committing to: 
 
• prioritising College places for young people aged 16-24 in recognition of the Scottish 

Government’s Opportunities for All commitment to post-16 education and training for all 
16-19 year olds and 19-24 year olds.  

 
• developing the Young Workforce agenda through increasing the number of STEM-focused 

Foundation and Advanced Apprenticeship vocational offerings for school pupils S4 to S6 to 
realise the entitlements of the Senior Phase of Curriculum for Excellence (CfE) and reduce 
youth unemployment by 40%, from 2014 levels, by 2021. 
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• maintaining and extending key sector employer partnerships that inform portfolio planning 
and course design to better equip learners with essential knowledge and employability 
skills through contextualised learning, real training and work experience opportunities. 

 
• improving life chances by increasing the volume of learners in the most deprived 10% 

postcode areas in West Lothian through targeted community-based learning opportunities.  
 
• increasing the number of Associate Student places and developing further articulation 

routes that enable credit transfer for Higher National Certificates (HNCs) and Higher 
National Diplomas (HNDs) for advanced standing into years 2 or 3 of university degree 
programmes. 

 
• increasing the volume and successful completion of courses for care experienced learners 

by promoting opportunities and raising aspirations and successful outcomes to potential 
students. 

• working with West Lothian Local Employability Partnership, support increasing numbers of 
unemployed people at stages 2, 3 and 4 of the strategic skills pipeline to develop 
employability skills to enable them to get a job and/or train for a career. 

 
• engaging with Equalities groups, including Equality Challenge Unit, to support  and 

improve gender balance and ensure appropriate support for the participation of groups 
currently experiencing inequalities in vocational education including specifically disabled 
people, young people who are care experienced, people from black and ethnic minorities 
and others with additional support needs. 

 
• supporting up skilling of the working population of West Lothian through provision of work 

based learning and through an accessible, vocationally relevant part-time portfolio. 
 
• providing high quality English language provision for English for Speakers of Other 

Languages (ESOL) learners to enable participation and integration in Scottish life. 
 
The Performance Report is approved by the Principal on 12 December 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mhairi Harrington 
Principal & Chief Executive 
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT 
 
1. Board of Governors Report 
 
The members who served on the Board during the period were as follows:- 
 

Name Status Job Title 
Alex Linkston Regional Chair Chair, Forth Valley Health Board 

 
Simon Ashpool Board member 

 
Learning Manager, Crisis UK 

Sue Cook  
 

Chair, Learning and 
Teaching Committee; 
Vice Chair 

Self employed consultant 

Frank Gribben 
 

Board member Business and Strategic Planning Advisor, 
National Galleries of Scotland (On secondment 
from University of Edinburgh until 31 December 
2016) 
 

Cynthia Guthrie 
(resigned 24/01/17) 
 

Board member Joint Managing Director of Guthrie Group Ltd  

Graham Hope 
 

Chair, Audit Committee Chief Executive, West Lothian Council 

Mhairi Harrington  
 

Board member Principal and Chief Executive, West Lothian 
College 

Frank McGraw 
(resigned 14/02/17) 
 

Board member Business Development Manager, Intellicentrics 
 

Ian McIntosh 
 

Board member Assistant Principal, Edinburgh Napier University 

Morag McKelvie 
 

Chair, Finance and 
General Purposes 
Committee 

Vice President Human Resources, iQor 

Colin Miller 
 

Board member Partner, DWF solicitors 
 

Richard Lockhart 
 

Board member Associate Director, Scottish Futures Trust 

Moira Niven 
(appointed 13/12/16) 
 

Board member Retired 
 

Norman Ross 
 

Board member Retired; director Kilmorack Consulting Ltd 
 

Angela Bell 
 

Board member Support Staff member 

Alan Morton 
 

Board member Teaching Staff member 

Jarmila Slodyczka* 
 

Board member Student Association President.  

Michael Allan * 
 

Board member Student Association Vice President 

*Post holders have changed post year-end. 
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Board of Governors 
 
Name Possible Attendance Actual Attendance 
Alex Linkston 4 

 
4 

Simon Ashpool 
 

4 3 

Sue Cook 
 

4 3 

Frank Gribben 
 

4 4 

Cynthia Guthrie 
 

2 1 

Mhairi Harrington  4 4 
 

Graham Hope 
 

4 4 

Richard Lockhart 
 

4 3 

Frank McGraw 
 

2 0 

Iain McIntosh 
 

4 3 

Morag McKelvie 
 

4 3 

Colin Miller 
 

4 4 

Moira Niven 
 

3 3 

Norman Ross 
 

4 4 

Angela Bell 
 

4 3 

Alan Morton 
 

4 3 

Jarmila Slodyczka 
 

4 4 

Michael Allan 4 3 
 

 
 
Audit Committee 
 
Name Possible Attendance Actual Attendance 

Graham Hope (Chair) 4 4 

Simon Ashpool 4 3 

Sue Cook 4 4 

Cynthia Guthrie 2 2 

Norman Ross 4 4 
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Finance and General Purposes Committee 
 
Name Possible Attendance Actual Attendance 

Morag McKelvie (Chair) 4 3 

Frank Gribben 4 4 

Alex Linkston 4 4 

Richard Lockhart 4 3 

Frank McGraw 2 0 

Moira Niven 2 2 

Mhairi Harrington 4 3 

Angela Bell 4 2 

 
Learning and Teaching Committee 
 
Name Possible Attendance Actual Attendance 

Sue Cook (Chair) 4 4 

Mhairi Harrington 4 4 

Iain McIntosh 4 4 

Colin Miller 4 3 

Alan Morton 4 4 

Jarmila Slodyczka 4 3 

Michael Allan 4 1 

 
Remuneration Committee 
 
Name Possible Attendance Actual Attendance 

Alex Linkston 2 2 

Sue Cook 2 2 

Graham Hope 2 2 

Morag McKelvie 2 2 

 
Related Party Transactions 
 
Due to the nature of the College’s operations and the composition of its Board of Governors 
(being drawn from local public and private sector organisations), it is inevitable that transactions 
will take place with organisations in which a member of the College’s Board of Governors may 
have an interest, and will be recorded as such in the Minutes of the Meetings and/or the Register 
of Interest. All transactions involving organisations in which a member of the Board of Governors 
may have a material interest are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with normal 
project and procurement procedures. 
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The related party transactions due to/by the College for the year ended 31 July 2017 and the 
amounts outstanding at this date are disclosed in note 24. 
 
 
Statement to Auditors 
 
In accordance with legislation, the Board of Governors certify that: 
 
 so far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the College’s auditors 

are unaware; and 
 as members of the Board of Governors we have taken all the steps that we ought to have 

taken in order to make ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that 
the College’s auditors are aware of that information. 
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1. Statement of the Responsibilities of the Board of Governors 
 
The Board of Governors are required to present audited financial statements for each financial 
year.            
   
In accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 as amended by the 
Further & Higher Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently by the Post-16 Education 
(Scotland) Act 2013, the Board of Governors is responsible for the administration and 
management of the College’s affairs, including ensuring an effective system of internal control, 
and is required to present audited financial statements for each financial year.   
           
The Board of Governors is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose, 
with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the College and enable it to 
ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher 
Education (Scotland) Act 1992 as amended by the Further & Higher Education (Scotland) Act 
2005 and subsequently amended by the Post-16 Education (Scotland) Act 2013, the 2015 
Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further and Higher Education, the 
Government Financial Reporting Manual 2016-17 (FReM) where applicable and other relevant 
accounting standards.  In addition, within the terms and conditions of a Financial Memorandum 
agreed between the Scottish Funding Council and the College’s Board of Governors, the Board 
of Governors, through its designated office holder, is required to prepare financial statements for 
each financial year which give a true and fair view of the College’s state of affairs and of the 
surplus or deficit and cash flows for that year.  
 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Accounts Direction issued by the 
Scottish Funding Council which brings together the provisions of the Financial Memorandum 
with other formal disclosures that the Scottish Funding council require the Board of Governors to 
make in the financial statements and related notes. 
            
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors is required to:   
             
• Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;  
 
• Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;    

         
• State whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;  
 
• Prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to 

presume that the College will continue in operation. The Board of Governors is satisfied 
that it has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and for 
this reason the going concern basis continues to be adopted in the preparation of the 
financial statements.          
  

The Board of Governors has taken reasonable steps to:      
       
• Ensure that funds from the Scottish Funding Council are used only for the purposes for 

which they have been given and in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with the 
Funding Council and any other conditions which the Funding Council may from time to 
time prescribe;           
     

• Ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard 
public funds and funds from other sources;  
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• Safeguard the assets of the College and prevent and detect fraud;   
 

• Secure the economical, efficient and effective management of the College’s resources and 
expenditure.           
     

The key elements of the College’s system of internal financial control, which is designed to 
discharge the responsibilities set out above, include the following:     

         
• Clear definitions of the responsibilities of, and the authority delegated to, heads of 

academic and support departments;  
       
• A comprehensive medium and short-term planning process, supplemented by detailed 

annual income, expenditure, capital and cash flow budgets;  
    
• Regular reviews of key performance indicators and business risks and quarterly reviews of 

financial results involving variance reporting and updates of forecast outturns;  
  
• Clearly defined and formalised requirements for approval and control of expenditure, with 

investment decisions involving capital or revenue expenditure being subject to formal 
detailed appraisal and review according to approval  levels set by the Board of Governors; 

         
• Comprehensive Financial Regulations, detailing financial controls and procedures, 

approved by the Audit Committee and the Finance and General Purposes Committee;  
      
• Professional internal audit team whose annual programme is approved by the Audit 

Committee and endorsed by the Board of Governors and whose head provides the Board 
of Governors with a report on internal audit activity within the College and an opinion on 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the College’s system of internal control, including 
internal financial control. 

 
        

Any system of internal financial control can, however, only provide reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance against material misstatement or loss.   
 
Estates Strategy  
 
The College Estates Strategy is evidence based and allows the College to continue with its 
programme of aligning its estate to the emerging needs of learners and curriculum delivery 
requirements going forward. The strategy allows for replacement of windows and window frames 
and boilers as well as implementing the agreed programme of lifecycle maintenance so that the 
fabric of the college buildings remain of a high standard.  
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2. Corporate Governance Statement 
 
The College is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate governance.  This 
summary describes the manner in which the College has applied the principles of good 
governance set out in 2016 Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the 
Government’s Scottish Public Finance Manual. Throughout the period ended 31 July 2017, the 
College has been in compliance with all the Code provisions set out in the 2016 Code of Good 
Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the Government’s Scottish Public Finance Manual.  
 
The College’s Board of Governors is responsible for the College’s system of internal control and 
for reviewing its effectiveness.  Such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the 
risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance against material misstatement or loss.  
 
The Board of Governors is of the view that there is a process for identifying, evaluating and 
managing the College’s significant risks, that it has been in place for the year ended 31 July 
2017 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements, that it is 
regularly reviewed by the Board of Governors and that it accords with the 2016 Code of Good 
Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the Government’s Scottish Public Finance Manual.   
 
The College’s Board of Governors comprises lay members, students and employees appointed 
under the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992, as amended by the Further & 
Higher Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently by the Post-16 Education (Scotland) 
Act 2013, the majority of whom are non-executive.  The roles of Chairman and Vice-Chairman of 
the Board of Governors are separated from the role of the College’s Principal.   
 
The matters specifically reserved to the Board for decision are set out in the College’s Standing 
Orders, by custom and under the Financial Memorandum with the Scottish Funding Council. The 
Board acknowledges the responsibility for the ongoing strategic direction of the College, 
approval of major developments and the receipt of regular reports from the Principal on the day 
to day operations of its business. 
 
The Full Board meets four times a year and has several sub-committees, including a Finance 
and General Purposes Committee, a Learning and Teaching Committee, a Remuneration 
Committee, an Audit Committee and a Nominations Committee.  All of these Committees are 
formally constituted with terms of reference.  The Finance and General Purposes Committee 
inter alia recommends to the Board the College’s annual revenue and capital budgets and 
normally meets four times a year. The Learning and Teaching Committee meets three times a 
year, and focuses on the quality of the student experience.   The Remuneration Committee 
determines the remuneration of the most senior staff, including the Principal and meets as 
required, normally once a year.  
 
The Audit Committee meets four times a year, with the College’s external and internal auditors in 
attendance where required.  The Committee considers detailed reports together with 
recommendations for the improvement of the College’s systems of internal control and 
management’s responses and implementation plans.  It also receives and considers reports from 
the Scottish Funding Council as they affect the College’s business and monitors adherence to 
the regulatory requirements.  Whilst the Principal attends meetings of the Audit Committee as 
necessary, she is not a member of the Committee. The Nominations Committee considers 
candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and meets as required, normally at least once per year.    
The Nominations Committee is responsible for selecting candidates for appointment by the 
Board of Governors to vacancies in its membership.  The Committee may use a number of 
selection methods, including external advertising, personal contact, the encouragement of 
nominations and the use of a search committee.  The Committee considers the balance of 
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membership, including members’ experience and skills and identify any gaps.  The Committee 
also tries to ensure that the membership of the Board reflects its community.  The Committee 
makes its recommendations to the Board for consideration and approval for appointment. 
 
The Board, and its sub-committees, participate in annual self-evaluation reviews of its 
performance.  This is facilitated by the Secretary to the Board using a self-evaluation 
questionnaire with all questions being discussed by the Board or Committee as a group and their 
consensus view recorded.  Any actions for improvement are noted and followed up at 
subsequent meetings of the Board or Committees.  The evaluation of the effectiveness of 
individual members is considered informally by the Chair of the Board or relevant Committee, 
and if concerns are noted they follow these up with the member directly.   
 
The Board of Governors considers that the College has adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future. 
 
Statement on System of Internal Control 
 
We, the Board of Governors are aware of the need for effective internal control, and 
acknowledge our responsibility for the system for such control operated by West Lothian 
College.  The system can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance that assets are 
safeguarded, transactions authorised and properly recorded, and that material errors or 
irregularities are either prevented or would be detected within a timely period.   
 
Our review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is conducted through the work of 
the Board of Governors, the Finance and General Purposes Committee and the Audit 
Committee.  West Lothian College also has an internal audit service, the work of which 
concentrates on areas of key activities determined in accordance with the annual internal audit 
plan approved by the Board of Governors. The internal auditors report to the Audit Committee, 
and have direct access to the chairman of the Audit Committee if required.  The internal auditors 
issue an annual report that gives an opinion of the adequacy, reliability and effectiveness of the 
College’s internal control system. 
 
 
The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the College’s system of internal control as follows: 
 
• The College’s risk management framework has been reviewed, including considering 

management’s review of operational risks and the Audit Committee’s review of strategic 
risks.  This review has included considering whether risks are appropriately ranked based 
on likelihood and impact and considering whether mitigating controls highlighted as being in 
place are adequate. 

• Reports by management have been received and reviewed by the Board and Board 
Committees which have provided information as to how risks are being managed and what 
internal controls are in place.  The Board committees in place and their main roles are 
outlined on pages 19-22. 

• Internal audit reports have been received on a range of areas within the College.  The 
internal auditors in their annual statement have concluded that the College operates 
adequate and effective internal control systems. 

• External auditors have reviewed the key financial controls to ensure the College’s financial 
statements are not materially misstated and in their annual report have stated the 
accounting systems operated effectively and were satisfied that the College operates 
appropriate Governance procedures and that management has adequate arrangements in 
place covering standards of conduct.  
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The College also has a range of internal financial controls which include:  
 
• a budgeting system with an annual budget which is approved by the Board of Governors; 
• the provision of management information on a planned, regular basis and as required; 
• regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of monthly and annual 

financial reports and key performance indicators which indicate financial performance 
against the forecasts; 

• financial regulations, which identify policy and set up a control system within which 
management can delegate authority whilst informing staff of correct financial procedures. 

 
In conclusion, it is the opinion of the Board of Governors that the College complies with all the 
provisions of the 2016 Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the Scottish 
Public Finance Manual and it has complied throughout the year to 31 July 2017. 
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3. Remuneration And Staff Report (FReM, Section 5, paras 5.3.15 to 5.3.27) 
 
Remuneration Policy  
 
The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board of Governors on the 
service arrangements and remuneration of the Principal and determines the service 
arrangements and remuneration of the other senior post holders. 
 
Remuneration including salary and pension entitlements 
 
Salary Entitlements1 
 
The following table provides detail of the remuneration and pension interests of senior 
management. 
 
 12 months ended 31 July 2017 12 months ended 31 July 2016 
 
 
Name 

Actual 
Salary* 

£’000 
 

Pension  
Benefit  

£’000 

 
Total 
£’000 

Actual 
Salary* 

£’000 
 

Pension  
Benefit  

£’000 

 
Total 
£’000 

Alex Linkston 20 - 25 0 20 - 25 0 - 5 0 0 - 5 

Sue Cook 0 0 0 10 - 15 0 10 - 15 

Mhairi Harrington 105 - 110 10 – 15 115 - 120 105 - 110 10 – 15 115 - 120 

Simon Earp* 20 - 25 0 - 5 20 - 25    

George Hotchkiss  65 - 70 5 – 10 70 - 75  65 - 70 5 – 10 70 - 75  

Jennifer McLaren  65 - 70 5 – 10 70 - 75 65 - 70 0 - 5 65 – 70 

Lindsay Seywright* 15 - 20 5 - 10 20 - 25 65 - 70 5 - 10 70 - 75 

 
*Lindsay Seywright left the College October 2016 and Simon Earp joined the College March 
2017 
 
Median Remuneration 
 
Colleges are required by the FReM to disclose the relationships between the remuneration of 
the highest paid official and the median remuneration of their workforce. 
 
Based on the 12 month equivalent figures above, the banded remuneration of the highest paid 
official in the organisation in the financial year 2016-17 was £107,500 (2015-16 £107,500). This 
was 3.7 times (2015-16 4.3 times) the median remuneration of the workforce which was £29,792 
(2015-16 £25,089). 
 
 
 

                                                 
1 Note: 
 

a) The salaries in the above table represent the amount earned in the financial year and include salary, bonuses, overtime 
and other allowances (as  applicable) 

b) The value of pension benefits is calculated as the real increase in pension multiplied by 20 plus the real increase in any 
lump sum less the contributions made by the individual.  The x20 multiplier aims to bring public bodies in line with other 
industries in disclosing an assessed cumulative pension benefit for a standard 20 year period which is the estimated life 
span following retirement. 

c) The details in this table are subject to audit 
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Accrued Pension Benefits  
 
Pension benefits for employees are provided through the Scottish Teacher’s Superannuation 
Scheme (STSS), a defined benefit scheme, which is notionally funded and the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  
 
Both STSS and LGPS are career average salary pension schemes. 
 
The scheme’s normal retirement age is the scheme member’s state pension age. 
 
Contribution rates are set annually for all employees.  
 
There is no automatic entitlement to a lump sum. Members may opt to give up (commute) 
pension for lump sum up to the limit set by the Finance Act 2004.  The accrual rate guarantees a 
pension based on final pensionable salary and years of pensionable service.  
 
Senior Officials Pension 
  
Pension benefits are provided to senior officials on the same basis as all other staff. The accrued 
pension benefits for senior officials are set out in the table below, together with the pension 
contributions made by the College. 

Name Accrued 
pension at 

pension age at 
31 July 2017 

Accrued lump 
sum at pension 

age at 31 July 
2017 

Real increase 
in pension 

1 August 2016 
to 31 July 2017 

Real increase 
in lump sum  

1 August 2016 
to 31 July 2017 

 £ £ £ £ 

Mhairi Harrington-Principal 40,907 122,721 976 2,929 

George Hotchkiss- Vice 
Principal 

18,945 56,835 664 1,931 

Jennifer McLaren- Vice 
Principal 

10,000 0 3,000 0 

Lindsay Seywright-Assistant 
Principal 

19,023 57,069 639 1,917 

Simon Earp – Vice Principal 458 0 N/A N/A 

 
Name CETV at 31 

July 2017 
CETV at 31 

July 2016 
Real increase 

in CETV 
 £ £ £ 

Mhairi Harrington-Principal 954,772 904,834 36,878 

George Hotchkiss- Vice Principal 429,579 403,177 18,812 

Jennifer McLaren- Vice Principal 135,467 110,742 24,725 

Lindsay Seywright-Assistant Principal 418,507 392,591 23,398 

Simon Earp – Vice Principal 5,201 N/A N/A 

 
 
Cash equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) 
 
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the 
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. 
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The value of the accrued pension benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at which 
the person will first become entitled to receive a pension on retirement without reduction on 
account of its payment at that age; without exercising any option to commute pension 
entitlement into a lump sum; and without any adjustment for the effects of future inflation. The 
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person has accrued as a consequence of 
their total Local Government service and not just their current appointment.  
 
In considering the accrued pension benefits figures the following contextual information should 
be taken into account:  
 
(i) the figures for pension and lump sum are illustrative only in light of the assumptions set out 

above and do not necessarily reflect the actual benefits that any individual may receive 
upon retirement.  

 
(ii) the accrued benefits figures are reflective of the pension contributions that both the 

employer and the scheme member have made over a period of time. 
 
Real increase in CETV 
 
This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include the 
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the 
value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses 
common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period. 
 
Compensation for loss of office 
 
No employees left under voluntary exit terms during the year.  
 
STAFF REPORT 

Salaries and Related costs  
 
 2017 2017 2017 2016 

 Directly 
employed staff 

£’000 

Seconded and 
agency staff 

£’000 

Total 
 

£’000 

Total 
 

£’000 

Wages and salaries 8,246 0 8,246 8,296 

Social security costs 775 0 775 655 

Other pension costs  1,902 0 1,902 1,677 

Restructuring Costs 10 0 10 2 

Total 10,933 0 10,933 10,630 

Average number of FTE 272 0 272 282 

 

The college employed 253 females and 132 males during 2016-17 (headcount). 
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Approved by the members of the Board on 12 December 2017 and signed on its behalf by:  
 

 

 

 

Alex Linkston 
Chair 

 Mhairi Harrington 
Principal 
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of the Board of Governors of West 
Lothian College, the Auditor General for Scotland and the Scottish Parliament  

 
This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the Public Finance 
and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the 
Code of Audit Practice approved by the Auditor General for Scotland, we do not undertake to have 
responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties.  
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements  
 
Opinion on financial statements  
We have audited the financial statements in the annual report and accounts of West Lothian College for 
the year ended 31 July 2017 under the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and section 
44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. The financial statements comprise 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Reserves, Balance Sheet, and 
Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 the 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice).  
 
In our opinion the accompanying financial statements:  
• give a true and fair view in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and 

directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council of the state of the college's affairs as at 31 
July 2017 and of its surplus/deficit for the year then ended;  

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and  

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Further and Higher Education 
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council, the Charities and 
Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 14 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland) 
Regulations 2006 (as amended).  

 
Basis of opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing in the 
UK (ISAs (UK)). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
college in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the UK including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

 
Conclusions relating to going concern  
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us 
to report to you where:  
• the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not 

appropriate; or  
• the college has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may 

cast significant doubt about its ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a 
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.  

 
Responsibilities of the Board of Governors for the financial statements  
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board of Governors Responsibilities, the Board of 
Governors is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
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accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such internal control as the Board of Governors 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors is responsible for assessing the college's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless deemed inappropriate.  
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  
Our objectives are to achieve reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements.  
A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on 
the Financial Reporting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms 
part of our auditor’s report. 
 
Other information in the annual report and accounts  
The Board of Governors is responsible for the other information in the annual report and accounts. The 
other information comprises the information other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on matters prescribed by the Auditor General 
for Scotland to the extent explicitly stated later in this report.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements in accordance with ISAs (UK), our responsibility is 
to read all the other information in the annual report and accounts and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or 
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement 
in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  
 
Report on regularity of expenditure and income  
 
Opinion on regularity  
In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial statements were incurred 
or applied in accordance with any applicable enactments and guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers.  
 
Responsibilities for regularity  
The Board of Governors is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income. We are 
responsible for expressing an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in accordance with the 
Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000.  
 
 
Report on other requirements  

 
Opinions on other prescribed matters  
We are required by the Auditor General for Scotland to express an opinion on the following matters.  
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In our opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report has been properly prepared in 
accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by 
the Scottish Funding Council. 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit  
• the information given in the Performance Report for the financial year for which the financial statements 

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report has been prepared in 
accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made 
thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council; and  

• the information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report has been prepared 
in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made 
thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council.  

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception  
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the college and its environment obtained in the course 
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Performance Report or Governance 
Statement.  
We are required by The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 to report to you if, in our opinion:  
• adequate accounting records have not been kept; or  
• the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report are not in 

agreement with the accounting records; or  
• We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.  
 
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lucy Nutley  
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 
 
Apex 2 
97 Haymarket Terrace 
Edinburgh 
EH12 5HD 
 

 
 
 

Lucy Nutley is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 21 of the Public Finance and Accountability 
(Scotland) Act 2000. 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME      
 
 Notes Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

Income 
SFC grants 
Tuition fees and education contracts 
Other income 
Investment income 
 

 
2 
3 
4 
5 
 

 
13,625 
3,020 
1,971 

2 

  
10,961 
2,725 
2,098 

4 

Total Income  18,618  15,788 
     
Expenditure 
Staff Costs 
Other operating expenses 
Depreciation 
Exceptional impairment loss 
Interest payable 
 

 
6 
7 
10 
10 
8 
 

 
10,933 
5,038 

789 
1,921 

214 

  
10,630 
4,716 

780 
- 

257 

Total Expenditure  18,895  16,383 
     
Deficit before tax 
 

 (277)  (595) 

Taxation 
 

9 -  - 

Deficit for the year  (277)  (595) 
     
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of assets  2,221  - 
Actuarial gain /(loss) in respect of pension 
schemes 

 924  (1,296) 

 
Total comprehensive income for the year 

  
2,868 

  
(1,891) 

 
Represented by: 

    

Restricted comprehensive income 
Unrestricted comprehensive income 

 - 
2,868 

 - 
(1,891) 

   
2,868 

  
(1,891) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Statement of Comprehensive Income is prepared under the FE/HE SORP. Colleges are also 
subject to Central Government accounting rules but the FE/HE SORP does not permit colleges to 
include Government non-cash allocations for depreciation in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income.  Note 28 provides details of the adjusted operating position on a Central Government 
basis.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES  
 
 Income and 

Expenditure 
Account 

£’000 
 

Revaluation 
Reserve 

 
£’000 

 
Total 

Balance at 31 July 2015 
 

(10,408) 4,598 
 

(5,810) 

Deficit from statement of comprehensive 
income 
 

(595) - (595) 

Other comprehensive income 
  

(1,296) - (1,296) 

Transfers between revaluation reserve and 
income and expenditure account 
 

190 (190) - 

Total comprehensive income for the year (1,701) 
 
 

(190) (1,891) 

Balance at 31 July 2016 
 

(12,109) 4,408 (7,701) 

Deficit from statement of comprehensive 
income 
 

(277) - (277) 

Other comprehensive income 
  

924 2,221 3,145 

Transfers between revaluation reserve and 
income and expenditure account 
 

189 (189) - 

Total comprehensive income for the year 836 
 
 

2,032 2,868 

 
Balance at 31 July 2017 

 
(11,273) 

 
6,440 

 
(4,833) 
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BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 JULY 
 
 
 

 
Notes 

  
 2017  
£’000 

  
 2016  
£’000 

Non-Current Assets 
Fixed Assets 
 

 
10 

 
19,660 

 
 

 
20,060 

Current Assets 
Trade and other receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 

 
11 
17 

 
559 

1,530 

  
777 
597 

 
 

 2,089  1,374 

Less: Creditors; amounts falling due within one 
year 
 

12 (2,923)  (2,643) 

Net Current Liabilities  (834)  (1,269) 
     
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 
 

 18,826  18,791 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more  
than one year 

13 
 
 

(15,290) 
 

 (17,737) 
 

Provisions 
Defined benefit obligations 
Other provisions 

 
15 
15 

 
(4,416) 
(3,953) 

  
(4,799) 
(3,956) 

     
Total Net Liabilities  (4,833)  (7,701) 
 
 

    

Unrestricted Reserves 
Income and expenditure account 
Revaluation reserve 
 

 
16 
 

 
(11,273) 

6,440 

  
(12,109) 

4,408 

Total Reserves  (4,833)  (7,701) 
 
 
The financial statements on pages 34 to 62 were approved by the Board of Governors  
On 12 December 2017 and signed on its behalf on that date by: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Alex Linkston 
Chair 

 Mhairi Harrington 
Principal 

 



 West Lothian College  
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Accounts 2017 Page 37  DRAFT 5 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017  

£’000 
 

 Year 
 Ended 

31 July 2016  
£’000 

 
Cash flow from operating activities 
Deficit for the year 
 
Adjustment for non-cash items 
Depreciation  
Exceptional Impairment Loss 
Deferred capital grants released to income 
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 
Increase/(decrease) in creditors due within one year 
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 
Pension costs less contributions payable 
 
Adjustment for investing or financing activities 
Investment income 
Interest payable 
 

  
(277) 

 
 

789 
1,921 

(2,511) 
218 
413 

(200) 
524 

 
 

(2) 
214  

  
(595) 

 
 

780 
- 

(590) 
244 
136 

(202) 
379 

 
 

(4) 
257 

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities  1,089  405 
     
Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest received 
Capital grant receipts 
Payments made to acquire fixed assets 
 

  
2 

89 
(89) 

  
4 

45 
(46) 

  2  3 
     
Cash flows from financing activities 
Interest paid 
Repayments of amounts borrowed 

  
- 

(158) 

  
(1) 

(158) 
  (158)  (159) 
     
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in 
the year 

  
933 

  
249 

     
 
Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year 

  
597 

  
348 

 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

  
1,530 

  
597 
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017 
 
1 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are 
considered material in relation to the financial statements. 
 
a) Basis of Preparation 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of 
Recommended Practice (SORP): Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2015, and in 
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards FRS 102 and the 2016-17 Government Financial 
Reporting Manual (FReM) issued by the Scottish Government.  They conform to the Accounts 
Direction and other guidance published by the Scottish Funding Council (FReM 2.2.6). 
 
The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain 
critical accounting estimates.  It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the 
College’s accounting policies. 
 
b) Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by 
the revaluation of surplus land and certain fixed assets. 
 
The accounting policies contained in the FReM apply International Reporting Standards as 
adapted or interpreted for the public sector context.  Where the FReM permits a choice of 
accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the College for 
the purposes of giving a true and fair view has been selected.  The particular policies adopted by 
the College in dealing with items that are considered material to the financial statements are set 
out. (FReM 2.2.6). 
 
c) Going Concern 
 
The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and 
performance are set out in the Performance Report. The financial position of the College, its 
cash flow and liquidity are presented in the Financial Statements and accompanying Notes.  The 
net liabilities are due to the reclassification of deferred Government grants as deferred income 
within creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than 
one year as appropriate 
 
The College’s forecasts and financial projections indicate that the College has a reasonable 
expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future, and for this reason will continue to adopt the going concern basis in the 
preparation of its Financial Statements. 
 
d) Recognition of Income 
 
Income from the sale of goods or services is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
when the goods or services are supplied to the external customers or the terms of the contract 
have been satisfied.  
     
Fee income is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and credited to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period in which students are studying.   
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Income received in advance is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance 
sheet and then released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period it is earned. 
            
All income from short-term deposits and Investment income is credited to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income on a receivable basis.       
  
Funds the College receives and disburses as paying agent on behalf of a funding body are 
excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Income.       
           
e) Grant Funding 
 
Government revenue grants including the recurrent grants from the Scottish Funding Council are 
recognised in income over the periods in which the College recognises the related costs for which 
the grant is intended to compensate.  Where part of a government grant is deferred it is 
recognised as deferred income within creditors and allocated between creditors due within one 
year and due after more than one year as appropriate. 
 
Grants from non-governmental sources are recognised in income when the College is entitled to 
the income and performance related conditions have been met.  Income received in advance of 
performance related conditions being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on 
the balance sheet and released to income as the conditions are met. 
 
f) Capital Grants 
 
Government capital grants are recognised in income over the expected useful life of the asset.  
Other capital grants are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the funds subject to 
any performance related conditions being met,  
 
g) Short Term Employment Benefits 
 
Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences are recognised as 
an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the college.  Any unused 
benefits are accrued and measured as the additional amount the college expects to pay as a 
result of the unused entitlement. 
 
h) Pension Schemes 
 
Retirement benefits to employees of the College are provided by the Teachers' Superannuation 
Scheme (Scotland) (STSS) and the Lothian Pension Fund (LPF).  These are defined benefit 
schemes which are externally funded and contracted out of the State Earnings Related Pension 
Scheme until March 2016.   
 

i) STSS 
 

The College is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the STSS 
on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore, as required by FRS 102, accounts for the 
scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.  The amount charged to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income represents the contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the 
year.  The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of periodic 
valuations using the projected unit method. 
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ii) LPF 
 

The College’s share of LPF scheme assets and liabilities are valued by the LPF actuary, 
Hymans Robertson.  Contributions to the schemes are charged to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees working lives 
with the College.  The contributions are determined by an actuary on the basis of triennial 
valuations.  In accordance with FRS 102, the amount charged to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income represents the service cost expected to arise from employee service 
in the current year. 

 
The costs of enhanced early retirement benefits are borne directly by the College. 

 
i) Tangible Fixed Assets 
 
In line with the FReM all tangible assets must be carried at fair value. 
 

i) Land and Buildings  
 
 Land and Buildings are measured using the revaluation model.  Under the revaluation model 

assets are revalued to fair value.  Where appropriate Depreciated Replacement cost has 
been used as a measure of fair value for land and buildings otherwise Market Value will be 
used.  The College has a policy of ensuring a full revaluation takes place at least every 5 
years such that the fair value is not materially different to the current value.  Depreciation and 
impairment losses are subsequently charged on the revalued amount. 

 
 Freehold land is not depreciated as it is considered to have an indefinite useful life. 
 

College buildings are depreciated over 30 years and transferred car parking areas are 
depreciated over 25 years, both commencing in the first full financial year after the date of 
transfer of the estate to public ownership (2 April 2007).  Other additions to the estate are 
depreciated over 10 years from the date they are brought into use.  

 
 Costs incurred in relation to land and buildings after initial purchase or construction, and prior 

to valuation, are capitalised to the extent they increase the expected future benefits to the 
College. 

 
 If a building is brought into use mid-way through a year the depreciation charge in the first 

year will be pro-rated to reflect the number of months the asset was in use.   
 

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. 
Buildings under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ 
certificates and other direct costs incurred to 31 July.  They are not depreciated until they 
are brought into use. 

 
ii) Equipment 

 
Equipment is capitalised at cost and carried at depreciated historical cost, which is used as 
a proxy for fair value when it is expected to be in use within the business on a continuing 
basis for at least 3 years.  Depreciated historical cost is deemed to be more appropriate 
than revaluing for equipment as it is common for such assets to reduce in value rather than 
to increase as they are utilised by the College (FReM 6.2).  Capitalised equipment is 
depreciated over its useful economic life from the date it is brought into use as follows: - 
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 Fixed Plant 5-29 years 
 Furniture 4 years 
 Equipment 4 years 
 Computer equipment 4 years 
  

Where equipment is brought into use mid-way through a year the depreciation charge in the 
first year will be pro-rated to reflect the number of months that the asset was in use. 
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the date of 
preparation of each Balance Sheet. 

 
iii) Operating Leases 

  
 Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  

Any lease premiums or incentives are spread over the minimum lease term. 
 

iv) Finance Leases  
 
 Leases in which the College assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 

the leased asset are classified as finance leases. Leased assets acquired by way of finance 
lease and the corresponding lease liabilities are initially recognised at an amount equal to the 
lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of 
the lease. 

 
 Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of 

the outstanding liability.  The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term 
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset 
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement 
is dependent on the use of specific assets. 

  
j) Maintenance of Premises 
 
The cost of maintenance is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in 
which it is incurred. 
 
k) Stocks 
 
The Board of Governors agree that stocks be written off in the year of acquisition on the basis of 
non-materiality. 
 
l) Cash  
 
Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts.  Deposits are 
repayable on demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty. 
 
m) Taxation 
 
The College is an exempt charity within the meaning of the Trustee Investment and Charities 
(Scotland) Act 2005 and, as such is a charity within the meaning of section 506 (1) of the Income 
and Corporation Taxes Act (ICTA) 1988.  The College is recognised as a charity by HM Revenue 
& Customs and is recorded on the index of charities maintained by the Office of Scottish Charity 
Regulator and therefore not liable for corporation tax. 
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 Non-recoverable Value Added Tax arising from expenditure on non-trading activities is charged 
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
 
The College benefits by being exempt from corporation tax on income it receives from tuition 
fees, interest and rents. 
 
n) Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
o) Agency Arrangements 
 
The College acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain Student Support Funds.  
These funds are excluded from the College Statement of Comprehensive Income; movements 
have been disclosed in the notes.  Where the College has more discretion in the manner in which 
specific funds are disbursed, and these funds do not meet the definition of agency funds, the 
income and expenditure relating to those funds is shown in the College Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. 
 
p) Financial Instruments 

 
The College only enters into basic financial instruments transactions that result in the recognition 
of financial assets and liabilities like trade and other debtors and creditors and other loans to 
related parties. 
  
Debt instruments that are payable or receivable within one year, typically trade debtors and 
creditors, are measured, initially and subsequently, at the undiscounted amount of the cash or 
other consideration expected to be paid or received. 
  
 
q) Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements: 
 

• Determine whether leases entered into by the College either as a lessor or a lessee are 
operating or finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the 
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on a 
lease by lease basis. 

• Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the College’s tangible assets. 
Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic viability 
and expected future financial performance of the asset. 
 

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 

• Tangible fixed assets 
 
Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual 
values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are 
assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re‐assessing asset 
lives, factors such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken 
into account. 
 



 West Lothian College  
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Accounts 2017 Page 43  DRAFT 5 

• Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability 
depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety 
of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions 
include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 
18, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.  
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2 SFC GRANTS  
 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

SFC Recurrent Grant (including fee waiver) 
Childcare funds 
Release of deferred capital grants (SFC) 
Other SFC Grants 

 9,823 
655 

2,511 
636 

 9,524 
497 
590 
350 

   
13,625 

  
10,961 

 
3 TUITION FEES AND EDUCATION CONTRACTS  
 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

FE Fees - UK 
HE Fees - UK 
SDS contracts 

 852 
1,552 

616 

 820 
1,461 

444 
 
 

  
3,020 

  
2,725 

 
4  OTHER INCOME  
 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

Residence and catering 
European funds 
Other income generating activities 
Other income 

 326 
128 

1,203 
314 

 342 
159 

1,323 
274 

 
 

  
1,971 

  
2,098 

 
5  INVESTMENT INCOME 
 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

 
Other Interest Receivable 
 

  
2 
 

  
4 
 

   
2 

  
4 
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6 STAFF COSTS 
 
The average weekly number of persons (including senior post-holders) employed by the College 
during the period was: 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

FTE 

 Year 
 Ended 

31 July 2016 
FTE 

 
Teaching departments 
Teaching support services 
Administration 
Premises 
Catering and residences 
Other Income-generating activities 
Other staff 

  
160 
27 
35 
22 
9 

16 
3 

  
161 
32 
36 
23 
8 

18 
4 

 
 

  
272 

  
282 

 
Analysed as: 
Staff on permanent contracts 
Staff on temporary contracts 

  
 

245 
27 

  
 

246 
36 

 
 

  
272 

  
282 

 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

£’000 

 Year 
 Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

Staff Costs for the above persons 
 
Wages and salaries 
Social security costs 
Other pension costs 
Restructuring costs 

  
 

8,246 
775 

1,902 
10 

  
 

8,296 
655 

1,677 
2 

 
 

  
10,933 

  
10,630 

 
 

    

Analysed as: 
Staff on permanent contracts 
Staff on temporary contracts 
Pension charge less contributions paid 
Restructuring costs 

  
9,255 
1,144 

524 
10 

  
9,022 
1,227 

379 
2 

   
10,933 

  
10,630 
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 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2017 
£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

Analysed as: 
Teaching departments 
Teaching support services 
Administration 
Premises 
Catering and residences 
Other income-generating activities 
Other staff 
Pension charge less contributions paid 
Restructuring costs 

  
6,482 

946 
1,447 

576 
192 
661 
95 

524 
10 

  
6,412 

950 
1,343 

550 
171 
722 
101 
379 

2 
 
 

  
10,933 

  
10,630 

 
Key management personnel 
 
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the College and are represented by the 
Senior Team which comprises the Principal and three Assistant Principals. 
 
Emoluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher 
paid staff  
 
  

2017 
  

2016 
 

 No.  No. 
 
The number of key management personnel including 
the Accounting Officer was: 

 
 
4 

  
 
4 
 

 
The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual 
emoluments, excluding pension contributions but including benefits in kind, in the following 
ranges was: 
 
 Key management personnel Other staff 

  
2017 

 
2016 

 
2017 

 
2016 

  
No. 

 
No. 

 
No. 

 
No. 

 
£60,001 to £70,000 
£100,001 to £110,000 

 
2 
1 

 
3 
1 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
 

 
3 

 
4 

 
- 

 
- 
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Key management personnel emoluments are made up as follows: 
 
 2017 

 
2016 

 
 £’000 £’000 

Salaries 
Benefits in kind 

284 
- 

304 
- 

 284 304 
 
Pension contributions 

 
50 

 
53 

 
Total emoluments 

 
334 

 
357 

 
There were no amounts due to key management personnel that were waived in the year, nor 
any salary sacrifice arrangements in place.  The above emoluments include amounts payable to 
the Accounting officer (who is also the highest paid officer) of: 
 
 2017 

 
2016 

 
 £’000 £’000 

Salaries 
Benefits in kind 

110 
- 

108 
- 

 110 108 
 
Pension contributions 

 
19 

 
18 

 
Total emoluments 

 
129 

 
126 

 
Compensation for loss of office paid to former key management personnel 
 
 2017 

 
2016 

 
 £’000 £’000 

Compensation paid to former post-holders 
Estimated value of other benefits, including provision for 

pension benefits 

- 
- 
 

- 
- 
 

 
Overseas Activities 
 
The following costs were incurred during 2016-17 in respect of overseas activities which 
were carried out in accordance with the strategy approved by the board of governors: 
 
 Total 

Cost 
£ 

Contribution 
Received 

£ 

Net Costs To 
College 

£ 
Members - - - 
Senior post-holders - - - 
Other staff 57,867 - 57,867 
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7  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

 
Teaching departments 
Teaching support services 
Administration 
Premises 
Catering 
Other income generating activities 
Overspend on student support funds 
Childcare fund costs 
Other 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
603 
270 

1,353 
1,233 

170 
494 

- 
655 
260 

  
593 
349 

1,276 
993 
165 
591 

- 
497 
252 

   
5,038 

  
4,716 

 
Other Operating Expenses (Administration) 
include: 
 

    

Auditors Remuneration (including irrecoverable 
VAT) 

- Internal audit 
- External audit 

Other services provided by: 
- Internal audit 
- External audit 
-  

  
 

33 
13 

 
- 
- 

  
 

27 
13 

 
- 
- 

  46  40 
 
 
8  INTEREST PAYABLE 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

 
On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans 
Pension finance costs 

  
- 

214 
 

  
1 

256 
 

  214  257 
 
 
9 TAXATION 
 
The Board does not believe the College was liable for any corporation tax arising out of its 
activities during this period. 
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10   FIXED ASSETS 
 
 Land & 

Buildings 
Freehold 

£'000 

Fixed Plant 
 
 

£'000 

Equipment 
 

 
£’000 

Total 
 
 

£'000 
Cost or valuation 
 
At 31 July 2016 
Additions  
Disposals 
On Revaluation 
 

 
 

19,782 
34 
-  

(1,160) 

 
 

1,738 
- 

(3) 
63 

 
 

573 
55 

(562) 
- 

 
 

22,093 
89 

(565) 
(1,097) 

At 31  July 2017 18,656 1,798 66 20,520 
 
Depreciation 
 
At 31 July 2016 
Charge for Period 
Disposals 
On Revaluation 
 

 
 
 

1,311 
634 

- 
(1,104) 

 
 
 

160 
148 
(3) 

(293) 

 
 
 

562 
7 

(562) 

 
 
 

2,033 
789 

(565) 
(1,397) 

At 31 July 2017 841 12 7 860 
 
Net Book Value 

    

At 31 July 2017 17,815 1,786 59 19,660 
 
Net Book Value 

    

At 31 July 2016 18,471 1,578 11 20,060 
     
Financed by: 
Capital Grant 

17,815 1,786 59 19,660 

 
 
The College’s land and buildings were independently valued by GVA James Barr as at 31 July 
2017.  This valuation has been incorporated into these financial statements. The basis of 
valuation adopted was depreciated replacement cost. Had they not been re-valued, inherited 
and owned land, buildings and fixed plant would have had an historic net book value of 
£16,709,000 (2016: £17,268,000). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 West Lothian College  
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Accounts 2017 Page 50  DRAFT 5 

11 TRADE AND OTHER RECOVERABLES 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

£’000 
 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

Trade Debtors  
European Funding 
Prepayments and accrued income 
Amounts Owed by SFC 

 328 
- 

171 
60 

 338 
(2) 

361 
80 

 
 

  
559 

  
777 

 
 
 
12    CREDITORS:  Amounts falling due within one year 
 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

£’000 
 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

Trade Creditors  
Taxation and Social Security 
Accruals and Deferred income 
Deferred Income – Deferred capital grant < 1 Year 
Deferred Income – SFC capital grants 
Deferred Income – SFC revenue grants 
Amounts Owed to SFC 
Unspent Student Funds 
 

 437 
383 
554 
457 

5 
870 
158 
59 

 542 
345 
714 
590 
69 

200 
158 
25 

   
2,923 

  
2,643 

 
 
 
13   CREDITORS:  Amounts falling due after one year 
 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

£’000 
 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

 
Amounts Owed to SFC 
Deferred Income – SFC Capital grants 
 

  
2,527 

12,763 

  
2,685 

15,052 

 
 

  
15,290 

  
17,737 
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14 MATURITY OF DEBT  
 
SFC Loan is repayable as follows: 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

£’000 
 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

In one year or less 
Between one and two years 
Between two and five yeas 
In five years or more 

 158 
158 
 632 

1,737 

 158 
158 
 632 

1,895 
 
 

  
2,685 

  
2,843 

 
The College voluntarily terminated its PFI contract in April 2007, at which point the title of the 
College buildings transferred to the College.  The College received total funding from SFC in 
April 2007 of £27.7million to enable it to terminate the contract.  This comprised a grant of 
£22.16million and a repayable advance of £5.54million representing the College’s own 
contribution towards the cost of the assets previously held under the PFI contract.   
 
The £5.54million advance is interest free and was repayable in equal instalments over 16 years.  
The first repayment was made in August 2010 and at 31 July 2017 the amount outstanding was 
£2,684,929.  In March 2014 the College made an upfront payment of £650,000 towards the loan 
and negotiated a reduced annual payment of £157,937 per annum with the Scottish Funding 
Council from April 2015. 
 
 
15 PROVISIONS  
 
 Defined 

Benefit 
Obligations  

 
£’000 

Early 
Retirement 

Provision  
 

£’000 

Other 
Provision 

 
 

£’000 

Year 
 Ended 31 
July 2017 

£'000 

 
At 1 August 2016 
 
Expenditure in the period 
Additions in period 
 

 
4,799 

 
(670) 

287   

 
3,956 

 
(200) 

197 

 
- 
 

- 
- 
 

 
8,755 

 
(870) 

484 

 
At 31 July 2017 

 
4,416 

 
3,953 

 
- 

 
8,369 

 
Defined benefit obligations relate to liabilities under the College’s membership of the Local 
Government pension scheme.  Further details are given at Note 18. 
 
The early retirement provision is in accordance with a valuation carried out by Hymans 
Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries at 31 July 2017. 
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16 RESERVES 
 
Analysis of income and expenditure account 
 
 I&E 

Account  
Trading 

Activities 
 

£'000 
 

I&E 
Account  
Holiday 

Pay 
 

£,000 

I&E  
Account 

 PFI Loan 
 
 

£'000 
 

I&E  
Account 

 Early  
Retiremnt  

 
£'000 

 

I&E  
Account 
Defined 
Benefit 
Pension  

£’000 

Total 
 
 
 
 

£'000 

At 31 July 2016 
 

(341) 
 

(170) 
 

(2,843) 
 

(3,956) 
 

(4,799) (12,109) 

Total 
comprehensive 
income for the year 
(excluding 
revaluation) 
 

428 33 
 
 
 

- (197) 383 647 

Transfer from 
Revaluation 
Reserve 
  

189 - - - - 189 

Repayments of PFI 
loan 
  

(158)  158 - - - 

Payments for early 
retirement 
 

(200) -  200 - - 

 
At 31 July 2017 

 
(82) 

 
(137) 

 
(2,685) 

 
(3,953) 

 
(4,416) 

 
(11,273) 

 
 
 
 
17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
  
 At 1 August 

2016 
 £'000 

 
Cash Flows 

 £'000 
 

 
Other 
£'000 

At 31 July 
2017 

 £'000 

Cash 
Debt due within 1 year 
Debt due after 1 year 

597 
(158) 

(2,685) 

933 
158 

- 

- 
(158) 

158 

1,530 
(158) 

(2,527) 
 
 

 
(2,246) 

 
1,091 

 
- 

 
(1,155) 
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18 PENSION COMMITMENTS 
 
The College’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Scottish Teachers’ 
Superannuation Scheme (STSS), and the Lothian Pension Fund (LPF).   
 
 
Total pension cost for the period Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

£’000 
 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

 
STSS contributions paid 
 

 708  694 

LPF Pension scheme: 
        Contributions paid 
        FRS 102 (28) charge 
 

 
670 
524 

  
604 
379 

 

Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
 

 1,194  983 

 
Total Pension Cost  for the period within staff costs 

  
1,902 

  
1,677 

 
Contributions amounting to £113,000 (2016 £107,000) were payable to the schemes at 31 July 
and are included within creditors. 
 
Scottish Teachers Superannuation Scheme 
 
The Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme is a notional fund valued every year by the 
Government actuary.  Contributions are paid by the College at the rate specified.  The Scheme 
is unfunded and contributions are made to the Exchequer.  The payments from the scheme are 
made from funds voted by the Scottish Parliament.  The contribution rate payable by the 
employer since 1 April 2015 is 17.2% of pensionable salaries. 
 
Under the definitions set out in Financial Reporting Standard 102 (28.11) (FRS 102), the STSS 
is a multi-employer pension plan.  The College is unable to identify its share of the underlying 
assets and liabilities of the scheme.  Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of its 
exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions as if it were a defined contribution 
plan. The College has set out above the information available on the plan and the implications 
for the College in terms of the anticipated contribution rates. 
 
Lothian Pension Fund Scheme 
 
The Lothian Pension Fund is valued every three years by professionally qualified independent 
actuaries using the projected unit credit method, the rates of contribution payable being 
determined by the trustees on the advice of the actuaries.  In the intervening years, the LPF 
actuary reviews the progress of the LPF scheme. 
 
The Lothian Pension Fund is a funded defined-benefit plan, with assets held in separate funds 
administered by City of Edinburgh Council.  The total contributions made for the year ended 31 
July 2017 were £872,000 and employees’ contributions totalled £202,000.  The agreed 
contribution rates for future years are 18.3% for employers and range from 5.5% to 11.2% for 
employees, depending on salary. 
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Principal Actuarial assumptions 
 
The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 2014 
updated to 31 July 2017 by a qualified independent actuary. 
 
 At 31 July  

2017 
 

At 31 July  
2016 

 
Rate of increase in salaries 4.5% 4.4% 
Future pensions increases 2.5% 1.9% 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 2.7% 2.4% 
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.4% 1.9% 
Commutation of pensions – pre April 2009 50% 50% 
Commutation of pensions – post April 2009 75% 75% 

 
 
The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in 
mortality rate. The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are: 
 
 
 

Males Females 

Current pensioners 22.1 years 23.7 years 
Future pensioners  24.2 years 26.3 years 

 
 
The College’s share of assets in the scheme and the expected rate of return are: 

 
 Long term 

rate of 
return  

 

Fair Value 
at  

31 July 
2017 
£'000 

Long term 
rate of 
return  

 

Fair Value 
 at  

31 July 
2016 
£'000 

     
Equities 2.7% 15,572 2.4% 11,688 
Bonds 2.7% 2,396 2.4% 3,609 
Property 2.7% 1,198 2.4% 1,375 
Cash 2.7% 798 2.4% 516 
     
Total fair value of employer assets  19,964  17,188 
     
 
Actual return on employer assets 

  
2,116 

  
3,076 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 West Lothian College  
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Accounts 2017 Page 55  DRAFT 5 

The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan 
is as follows: 
 
 Year Ended 

31 July 2017 
£'000 

Year Ended 
31 July 2016 

£'000 
   
Fair value of employer assets 19,964 17,188 
Present value of funded liabilities (24,380) (21,987) 
   
Net Pension Liability (4,416) (4,799) 

 
 
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the plan 
are as follows: 
 
 Year Ended 

31 July 2017 
£'000 

Year Ended 
31 July 2016 

£'000 
Amounts included in staff costs   
   
Current service cost 1,194 983 
Past service cost 
 

- - 

Total 1,194 983 
 
 
Amounts included in Pension Costs   
   
Net pension costs 
 

121 138 

Total 121 138 
 
 
Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income 

  

   
Return on pension assets 1.696 2,578 
Experience gains arising on defined benefit obligations - 172 
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of 
scheme liabilities 
 

(668) (3,390) 

Total  1,028  (640) 
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Movement in net defined benefit (liability) during year Year  
Ended 

31 July 2017 
£’000 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

   
Net defined benefit (liability) at start of period (4,799) (3,642) 
Movement in period:   

Current service costs (1,194) (983) 
Employer contributions 670 604 
Net interest on the defined liability (121) (138) 
Actuarial gain or loss 1,028 (640) 

 
Net defined benefit (liability) at end of period 

 
(4,416) 

 
(4,799) 

 
 
Asset and Liability Reconciliation 
 
 
Changes in fair value of plan assets Year  

Ended 
31 July 2017 

£’000 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

   
Fair value of plan assets at start of period 17,188 13,556 
Interest on plan assets 420 498 
Return on plan assets 1,696 2,578 
Employer contributions 670 604 
Contributions by plan participants 202 196 
Benefits paid (212) (244) 
 
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 

 
19,964 

 
17,188 

 
 
Changes in the present value of defined benefit 
obligations 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2017 
£’000 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2016 
£’000 

   
Defined benefit obligation at start of period 21,987 17,198 
Current service cost 1,194 983 
Interest cost 541 636 
Contributions by plan participants 202 196 
Experience gains / losses on defined benefit obligations - (172) 
Changes in financial assumptions 668 3,390 
Benefits paid (212) (244) 

Defined benefit obligation at end of period 24,380 21,987 
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19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
 
Financial Assets 
 
Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost totalled £388,000 (2016: 
£418,000) at the balance sheet date.  This comprises trade debtors and amounts owed by SFC. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost totalled £3,735,000 (2016: £4,124,000) at the 
balance sheet date.  This comprises trade creditors, accruals, unspent student funds and 
amounts owed to SFC. 
 
 
20 LOSSES AND SPECIAL PAYMENTS 
 
 
Above SFC annual reporting 
requirements 

SFC 
Requirement 
Per Instance 

 
2017 

Number 

 
2017 

£Total 
 
Debt write-off 

 
£3,000 

 
- 

 
- 

Cash losses £3,000 - - 
Voluntary severance payments £1,000 - - 
Compensation payments £5,000 - - 

 
 
21    CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
 
At 31 July the College had commitments of a capital nature as follows: 
 
 2017 

£000 
2016 
£000 

 
Committed but not contracted 

 
50 

 
- 

Committed and contracted 6 20 
   

 
The committed not contracted value relates to the planned purchase of an IT backup and restore 
solution. The committed and contracted amount relates to residual commitments in respect of 
the extension works to the Skills Workshop and Gym Hall areas completed two years ago. 
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22 LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
 
At 31 July the College had minimum lease payments under non‐cancellable operating leases as 
follows: 
 
 2017  

£’000 
2016 
£000 

 
Other 

 
 

 
 

 
Expiring within one year 
Expiring between one and five years 
Expiring in more than five years 

 
23 

                        23 
- 

 
36 

- 
- 

   
 46 36 

 
During 2016/17 the College paid £36,000 in operating lease rentals. 
 
 
23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
There were no contingent liabilities at Balance Sheet date. 
 
 
24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
Owing to the nature of the College’s operations and the composition of the board of governors 
being drawn from local public and private organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take 
place with organisations in which a member of the board of governors may have an interest.  All 
transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with 
the College’s financial regulations and normal procurement procedures. 
 
The College had transactions during the year or worked in partnership with the following publicly 
funded or representative bodies in which members of the Board of Governors hold or held official 
positions. 
 

Name 
 

Organisation Position 

Mr Frank Gribben 
 
 
 
 
Mr Graham Hope 
 
Mr Ian McIntosh 
 

National Galleries of Scotland 
 
 
 
 
West Lothian Council 
 
Edinburgh Napier University 
 

Business and Strategic Planning 
Advisor  (On secondment from 
University of Edinburgh until 31 
December 2016) 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Assistant Principal 
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The value of the transactions due to/by the College for the twelve months ended 31 July 2017, 
and the amount outstanding at this date was as follows: 
 
 
Organisation Year ended 31 July 2017 

 
Year ended 31 July 2016 

 
 Total Value of 

Transactions 
£’000 

Balance 
Outstanding 

£’000 

Total Value of 
Transactions 

£’000 

Balance 
Outstanding 

£’000 
 
Due to WLC 
 
West Lothian Council 
Edinburgh Napier 
University 
 

 
 
 

134 
352 

 

 
 
 

24 
4 
 

 
 
 

347 
293 

 

 
 
 

10 
76 
 

 
Due by WLC 
 
University of Edinburgh 
West Lothian Council 
Edinburgh Napier 
University 
 

 
 
 

2 
107 
2 

 
 
 
- 

54 
- 

 
 
 

5 
192 
2 

 
 
 
- 

32 
- 

 
The total expenses paid to or on behalf of the Governors during the year was £500 ; 2 governors 
(2016: £1,000 ; 3 governors).  This represents travel and subsistence expenses and other out of 
pocket expenses in attending Governor meetings and other events in their official capacity. 
 
The Chairs of the Board received a salary in accordance with the directions issued by the 
Scottish Government.  The total paid to the Chairs over the period was £21,000 (2016: £13,000)
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25 FE BURSARIES AND OTHER STUDENT SUPPORT FUNDS 
 

 FE 
Bursary 
£’000 

 

FE  
Discr’y 
£’000 

 
EMAs 
£’000 

 
Other 
£’000 

2016-17 
Total 
£’000 

2015-16 
Total 
£’000 

Balance b/fwd 
 

17 - 8 - 25 109 

Allocations 
received in year 
 

2,477 179 266 151 3,074 2,719 

Expenditure 
 

(1,903) (505) (297) (151) (2,857) (2,680) 

Repaid to SFC  
 

(18) - (8) 
 

- (26) (52) 

College 
Contribution  
 

- - - - - - 

Virements 
 

(514) 326 - - (188) (71) 

 
Balance c/fwd 

 
59 

 
- 

 
(31) 

 
- 

 
28 

 
25 

 
Residual cash balances and the corresponding creditor / (debtor) are included in the balance 
sheet.  FE Bursaries and Student Support Funds are available solely for students; the College 
acts only as paying agent.  The grants and related disbursements are therefore excluded from 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.   
 
 
26 CHILDCARE FUNDS 
 
 2016-17 

£’000 
 

2015-16 
£’000 

 
Balance b/fwd - - 

Allocations received in year 467 426 

Expenditure (655) (497) 

College contribution - - 

Virements 188 71 

 
 Balance c/fwd 

 
- 

 
- 

 
Residual cash balances and the corresponding creditor are included in the balance sheet.  
Childcare Funds are reported gross in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.   
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27 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
 
There have been no significant post balance sheet events. 
 
 
28 NON-CASH ALLOCATION 
 
 2016-17 

 
£’000 

 

2015-16 
 

£’000 

Surplus / (deficit) before other gains and losses 
(FE/HE SORP basis) 
 

(277) (595) 

Add back: Non-cash pension adjustments for the 
Lothian Pension Fund  
 

645 517 

Add back: Non-cash allocation for depreciation (net of 
deferred capital grant) 
 

191 190 

Operating surplus on Central Government accounting 
basis 
 

559 112 

 
Following reclassification, colleges received additional non-cash budget to cover depreciation 
and pension adjustments but this additional budget is not recognised under the FE/HE SORP 
accounting rules.  As a result, colleges show a deficit equivalent to net depreciation and pension 
adjustments (where funds are spent on revenue items) in order to meet Government accounting 
rules and the requirement to spend the entire cash allocation. 
 
Under the FE/HE SORP, the college recorded an operating deficit of £277,000 for the year 
ended 31 July 2017.  After taking account of the Government non-cash budget, the college 
shows an “adjusted” surplus of £559,000 on a Central Government accounting basis.  This 
demonstrates that the college is operating sustainably within its funding allocation.  
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Appendix 1 
 
Accounts Direction 
 
The following note is taken from the 2016-17 SFC Accounts Directions and has been 
included as required by SFC.  It does not form part of the Financial Statements. 
 
2016-17 Accounts direction for Scotland’s colleges and universities 

 
 
1 It is the Scottish Funding Council’s direction that colleges comply with the 2015 

Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 
(SORP) in preparing their annual report and accounts. 

 
2 Colleges must comply with the accounts direction in the preparation of their annual 

report and accounts in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with the Scottish 
Funding Council (SFC) or the Regional Strategic Body (for assigned colleges). 

 
3 Incorporated colleges are also required to comply with the Government Financial 

Reporting Manual 2016-17 (FReM) where applicable. 
 
4 Incorporated colleges are reminded that they must send two copies of their annual 

report and accounts to the Auditor General for Scotland by 31 December 2017. 
 
5 The annual report and accounts should be signed by the chief executive officer and by 

the chair, or one other member of the governing body. 
 
6 Incorporated colleges should reproduce this Direction as an appendix to the annual 

report and accounts. 
 
 
Scottish Funding Council  
30 June 2017 

 



  Agenda Item 17.49 (ii) 
 

Paper 4 
West Lothian College 

30 November 2017 
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Audit Committee 
 
Annual report to the Board of Governors and the Auditor General for 
Scotland 2016-17 
 
The attached Report summarises the findings from the audit for the year 
ended 31 July 2017.   
 
No major control weaknesses were identified and the conclusion of the report 
is that the accounting systems operated effectively.   
 
Action 
 
For discussion. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services  
30 November 2017 
 
 
 



 

 

West Lothian College 
 

 

 

Annual audit report to the Board of Governors   
and the Auditor General for Scotland 
 
For the year ended 31 July 2017  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

2 
 

  

Contents 

 
Executive summary .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Financial statements ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Financial management ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Financial sustainability ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Governance and transparency ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 14 

Value for money ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 16 

Our fees.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

Appendix 1 – Proposed Audit Opinion............................................................................................................................................................................................................ 19 

Appendix 2 – Proposed Letter of Representation ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 22 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This report has been prepared in accordance with our responsibilities as appointed auditors as set out in Audit Scotland’s Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). Reports and letters 

prepared by appointed auditors and addressed to the College are prepared for the sole use of the College and we take no responsibility to any member or officer in their individual 
capacity or to any third party. 

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.  

.  



 

3 
 

Executive summary 
Purpose of this report 
Our annual audit report summarises the work we have undertaken as the auditor for West Lothian College (‘the College’) for the year ended 31 July 2017.   

Our responsibilities are defined by the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and the Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’) issued by Audit 

Scotland in 2016.  The detailed sections of this report provide details on those responsibilities, the work we have done to discharge them, and the key findings 
arising from our work.  These are summarised below. 

Area of work Summary 

Financial statements 
opinion 

Our opinion on the financial statements will be issued following the Board of Governors approval of the annual report and accounts 
on 12 December 2017.  
We envisage reporting an unqualified opinion subject to completion of all our work including: 

 Review of the final draft of the annual report and accounts;  

 Comparison of accounting policies to other College accounts;  

 Final Completion and Review; and 

 Receipt of a signed letter of representation. 

Opinions on other 
matters 

We are also required to give opinions on other matters. We envisage reporting an unqualified opinion on: 

 The regularity of income and expenditure 

 The remuneration and staff report, performance report and governance statement 

Wider Scope work We are required by the Code to form conclusions on four wider scope dimensions. Our conclusions on each dimension are 
summarised below: 

Financial Management  The College has effective arrangements, including budgetary control, that help Board members scrutinise finances 

Financial Sustainability  The College has adequate financial planning arrangements in place 

Governance and 

Transparency 
 The College has governance arrangements in place that provide appropriate scrutiny of decisions made by the Board 

Value for Money 
 The College has an effective performance management framework in place that supports progress towards the achievement of 

value for money 
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Independence 
We have continued to consider any actual, potential or perceived threats to our independence as part of our ongoing risk 
assessment. We can confirm that no threats to independence have been identified since the issue of our Audit Strategy 
Memorandum in May 2017, and therefore we remain independent. 

 

We would like to take this opportunity to thank all management and staff for their assistance and co-operation during our audit.
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Financial statements 

 

The scope of our audit and the results of our work 
The purpose of our audit is to provide reasonable assurance to users that 
the financial statements are free from material error.  We do this by 
expressing an opinion on whether the statements are prepared, in all 
material respects, in line with the financial reporting framework applicable to 
the College and whether they give a true and fair view of the College’s 
financial position as at 31 July 2017 and of its financial performance for the 
year then ended.  

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Code 
of Audit Practice issued by Audit Scotland, and International Standards on 
Auditing for the UK and Ireland (ISAs).  These require us to consider 
whether: 

 the accounting policies are appropriate to the College’s 
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately 
disclosed; 

 the significant accounting estimates made by management in the 
preparation of the financial statements are reasonable; and 

 the overall presentation of the financial statements provides a true 
and fair view. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Our approach to materiality 
We apply the concept of materiality when planning and performing our 
audit, and when evaluating the effect of misstatements identified as part of 
our work.   We consider the concept of materiality at numerous stages 
throughout the audit process, in particular when determining the nature, 
timing and extent of our audit procedures, and when evaluating the effect 
of uncorrected misstatements.   An item is considered material if its 
misstatement or omission could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users of the financial statements.  

Judgements about materiality are made in the light of surrounding 
circumstances and are affected by both qualitative and quantitative factors.  
As a result we have set materiality for the financial statements as a whole 
(financial statement materiality) and a lower level of materiality for audit 
testing (performance materiality), which is also dependent on the level of 
inherent risk assessed in the area being audited which may be due to the 
nature of these items or because they attract public interest.  We also set a 
threshold for reporting identified misstatements to the Audit Committee.  We 
call this our trivial threshold. 

The table below provides details of the materiality levels applied in the audit 
of the financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2017: 

Financial statement materiality £339,000 

Performance materiality £272,000 

Trivial threshold £10,000 

Financial statements opinion Unqualified 

Regularity opinion Unqualified 

Opinion on other prescribed matters Unqualified 
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Our response to significant risks 
As part of our continuous planning procedures we considered whether there were risks of material misstatement in the College’s financial statements that 
required special audit consideration. We reported significant risks identified at the planning stage to the Audit Committee within our Audit Strategy Memorandum 
and provided details of how we responded to those risks in our Audit Completion Report.  The table below outlines the identified significant risks, the work we 
carried out on those risks and our conclusions. 
 

Significant risk  How we addressed the risk Audit conclusion 

Management override of control 
In all entities, management at various levels 
within an organisation are in a unique 
position to perpetrate fraud because of their 
ability to manipulate accounting records 
and prepare fraudulent financial statements 
by overriding controls that otherwise appear 
to be operating effectively. Due to the 
unpredictable way in which such overrides 
could occur, we consider there to be a risk 
of material misstatement due to fraud and 
thus a significant risk on all audits. 

We addressed this risk through performing audit work over: 

 accounting estimates impacting amounts included in 
the financial statements; 

 consideration of identified significant transactions 
outside the normal course of business; and 

 journals recorded in the general ledger and other 
adjustments made in preparation of the financial 
statements 

Satisfactory assurance has been gained over 
the presumed risk of management override. 
We have no matters to report. 

Revenue recognition 
There is a presumption under International 
Standards on Auditing that there is a 
significant risk of fraud and error in the 
timing of revenue recognition leading to the 
material misstatement of revenue overall. 
This is because revenue is an area of 
particular focus by users of financial 
statements and can be subject to 
judgements as to when grant income 
should be recognised and if clawback 
conditions apply to the funding. 

We addressed this risk through performing audit work over: 

 the design and implementation of controls 
management has in place to ensure income is 
recognised in the correct period; 

 cash receipts around the year end to ensure they 
have been recognised in the right year; 

 the judgements made by management in determining 
when grant income is recognised; and 

 for major grant income, obtaining counterparty 
confirmation. 

Satisfactory assurance has been gained over 
the presumed risk of revenue recognition. We 
have no matters to report. 
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Areas of audit focus 
As part of our continuous planning processes, we carry out work to identify matters that will have a direct impact on the financial statements, but are not likely 
to represent a risk of material misstatement. The work we carried out in relation to these areas of audit focus is outlined below. 

 

Audit focus  Work undertaken Conclusion 

Valuation of pension liabilities 

The College makes contributions to two pension 
schemes – the Scottish Teachers Superannuation 
Scheme (STSS) and the Lothian Pension Fund 
(LPF). While both are defined benefit schemes, it 
is not possible to identify the College’s share of 

the underlying assets and liabilities in the STSS 
and it is therefore accounted for as a defined 
contribution scheme. 

The College’s share of the LPF’s underlying 
assets and liabilities is identifiable and a net 
liability is recognised in the accounts. As at 31 
July 2017 the college accounts show a net liability 
of £4.416m, a reduction of £383k over 12 months. 

Given the scale of the liability recognised in the 
accounts, a misstatement in the reported position 
could be material to the financial statements 

 

We considered the College’s arrangements, 

including the existence of any relevant controls, 
for making estimates in relation to pension entries 
within the financial statements. We also 
considered the reasonableness of the actuary’s 

assumptions used in providing the College with 
information in the financial statements through the 
use of our internal experts. 

 

Our audit work has provided satisfactory 
assurance over the valuation of the pension 
liability reported in the accounts and the actuarial 
assumptions used to calculate the liability. We 
have no matters to report. 
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Audit focus  Work undertaken Conclusion 

Valuation of fixed assets 

The College holds a significant level of fixed 
assets – reporting a net book value of £19.660m 
as at 31 July 2017.  

In line with the requirements of the Government 
Financial Reporting Manual, the College has 
adopted a formal revaluation policy of an external 
valuation every five years, with a desktop, interim 
valuation performed during the five year period. 
The interim valuation was performed as at 31 July 
2017. The College policy meets the requirement 
of the FE SORP that assets are valued sufficiently 
regularly so that the carrying value of the asset is 
not materially different from its fair value.  

The college is also required to assess on an 
annual basis whether there are indicators of 
impairment to assets at the reporting date. 

Given the significance of the value of fixed assets 
held, a misstatement in the valuation could be 
material to the financial statements. 

 
We undertook a range of substantive procedures 
including: 

 evaluation of the competencies of the 
College’s valuer; 

 review and evaluation of the valuer’s report; 

 review of the reconciliation between the 
College’s asset register and general ledger;  

 confirmation of accounting entries to 
recognise the valuation gain of £2.1m as at 31 
July 2017; and  

 considered the College’s impairment review 

process for land and buildings. 

 

 
Our audit work has provided satisfactory 
assurance over the valuation of buildings held as 
fixed assets in the accounts and we have nothing 
to report.  
 

 
 
 
Internal control recommendations 
As part of our audit we have considered the internal controls in place that are relevant to the preparation of the financial statements.  We do this to design audit 
procedures that allow us to express an opinion on the financial statements; this does not extend to expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
or to identify any significant deficiencies in their design or operation. 

We have identified no recommendations for the improvement of internal controls at the College, during our audit.  
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Audit differences 
There were no material adjustments to the draft financial statements arising from our audit. We discussed and agreed a number of disclosure and presentational 
adjustments that have been reflected in the final annual report and accounts. 

 
Qualitative aspects of the College’s accounting practices 
We are required to communicate to you our views on the significant qualitative aspects of the College’s accounting practices, including the accounting policies 
used and the quality of disclosures.   
 
 

Qualitative aspect  Our views 

Accounting policies 
and disclosures 

We have reviewed the College’s accounting policies and disclosures and found these to be in line with the requirements of the 2015 
Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education and the Government Financial Reporting 
Manual 2016-17. 

In line with our expectations, there have been no significant changes to accounting policies for the year ended 31 July 2017. 

Quality of the draft 
financial statements 

We received a draft version of the annual report and accounts from management on 29 September 2017 in advance of our audit 
fieldwork. The draft accounts were of a good quality and we found few errors in the draft provided to us.  

Quality of supporting 
working papers 

Producing high-quality working papers is as crucial part of compiling financial statements that are complete and materially 
accurate.  They also support the delivery of an efficient audit.  

Working papers were good and staff were responsive to our requests when we were on-site. 

 
 
Significant matters discussed with management 
There were no such matters discussed with management. 
 
Significant difficulties during the audit 
During the course of the audit we did not encounter any significant difficulties and we have had the full co-operation of management.  
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Financial management 

 
Financial performance 
 

FE/HE SORP Accounting 
2016/17 
£’000 

2015/16 
£’000 

Operating Income 18,618 15,788 

Staff Costs (10,933) (10,630) 

Operating Expenditure (7,962) (5,753) 

Operating Deficit for year 
(FE/HE SORP basis) 

(277) (595) 

 
 
The above table shows the financial performance of the College for the 
last two academic years, as reported under the FE/HE SORP. Although a 
deficit was shown over both years:    

 
 The College achieved its financial targets and spending was in line 

with the plan;  
 The College financial plans exclude notional pension fund costs, 

thus the budget was set to attain a £158k surplus, to allow for 
repayment of the loan to the SFC. This was exceeded;  

 There were no significant changes that were not fully documented 
and explained to the reported position during the year; and   

 The student credit target was met confirming the level of funding in 
the financial statements.   

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Since Scotland’s colleges were reclassified as Government bodies, they 

also have to report on a central government accounting basis. The 
purpose of this is to reflect additional budget received by the College to 
fund depreciation, which is not recognised under FE/HE SORP 
requirements. This is shown below: 
 

Central Government Accounting 
2016/17 
£’000 

2015/16 
£’000 

Operating Deficit for year 
(FE/HE SORP basis) 

(277) (595) 

Add back: Non-cash allocation for 
depreciation (net of deferred capital grant) 191 190 

Add back: Non-cash pension adjustments 
for the Lothian Pension Fund 645 517 

Operating Surplus on Central 
Government accounting basis 559 112 

 
 
The significant increase in the operating surplus indicates that the College 
is operating sustainably within its funding allocation. The College have 
actively managed the budget throughout the financial year to meet their 
objective of producing an operating surplus.  
 
 
 
 
 

Financial management is concerned with financial capacity, sound budgetary processes and whether the control environment and internal controls are 
operating effectively. 

West Lothian College has effective arrangements, including budgetary control, that help Board members scrutinise finances 
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Budgetary process 
We have reviewed and considered the budgetary processes and controls 
and budget monitoring arrangements in place at the College. Our review 
consisted of review of budget monitoring reports, review of committee 
papers and attendance at committees. Overall, we consider that the Board 
of Governors obtains regular and timely financial information that reflects 
the actual financial position. 
 
Finance officers produce monthly management accounts within 12 working 
days of the month end. Monthly management reports have reported a 
consistent picture throughout the year – an operating deficit under FE/HE 
SORP, but achievement of the College budget – delivering at least a £158k 
surplus following removal of notional pension costs.  While we note that the 
value of the projected operating deficit (with pension costs included) did 
fluctuate during the year as the College reacted to unfolding events, such 
as the outcome of national bargaining, in all management reports to 
Committees the change and impact was documented and explained. 

Monitoring reports are included on the agenda of every Finance and 
General Purposes committee. A review of these minutes and onwards to 
the Board demonstrated effective challenge of the financial position by 
members.  

Internal controls 
As part of our audit we have considered the internal controls in place that 
are relevant to the preparation of the financial statements.  We do this to 
design audit procedures that allow us to express an opinion on the financial 
statements; this does not extend to expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control or to identify any significant deficiencies in 
their design or operation. 
 
We have also considered the work of internal audit, from individual reviews 
of financial systems and their annual audit opinion on the control framework 
in place at the College. Internal audit concluded that West Lothian College 
had ‘a framework of controls in place that provided reasonable assurance 

regarding the organisation’s governance framework, effective and efficient 

achievement of objectives and the management of key risks. Overall, proper 

arrangements were in place to promote value for money and deliver best 

value.’ 

 
We conclude that the processes and controls in place at the College are 
operating effectively. We have identified one area with scope for 
improvement, which is outlined in Appendix 1 to this report. 
 
 
 
Prevention and detection of fraud and irregularity 
Management and the Audit Committee, as those charged with governance 
also have responsibilities in respect of fraud.  They are responsible for 
safeguarding assets and for the prevention and detection of fraud, error and 
non-compliance with laws and regulations.  
 
We have a responsibility to review the College’s arrangements for the 

prevention and detection of fraud. Our audit work was planned to provide a 
reasonable expectation of detecting material misstatements in the financial 
statements resulting from fraud and irregularity. We found the arrangements 
in place to be satisfactory and identified no material misstatements resulting 
from fraud or irregularity. 
 
 
 
Conclusion 
The College has effective arrangements, including budgetary control, that 
help Board members scrutinise finances
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Financial sustainability 

 
Financial planning 
In its annual review of the FE sector, Audit Scotland’s ‘Scotland’s Colleges 

2017’ recommended that Colleges should: 
 prepare longer-term financial plans, as we recommended last year, 

in order to support financial decision-making that takes account of 

both immediate and future cost pressures 

 calculate the cost of harmonising staff pay, terms and conditions 

and include these in their financial plans 

 
The College used the 2017 Financial Forecast Return to the Scottish 
Funding Council as their 5 year financial forecast 2017/18 to 2021/22 (The 
Plan) which is supported by a detailed annual budget. The Plan along with 
the 2017-18 Annual Budget was presented to the Finance and General 
Purposes Committee in June 2017 and recommended to the Board for 
approval.   
 
The Plan identifies a deficit in each of the financial years from 2017-18. 
Partly, this is due to uncertainty of Scottish Government funding for the 
increased pay costs arising from the national bargaining settlement made 
during 2017. We understand that when this position is confirmed that the 
Board will seek to take action to achieve a balanced budget if additional 
funding is not made available to meet National Pay Bargaining Costs. 
Currently, Scotland’s Colleges await confirmation as to the level of funding 

that will be made available to support the increased pay costs in future 
years. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
The College is clear on the risks to sustainability it faces and the uncertainty 
of funding over the medium and long term for example national pay 
bargaining (see above), the ending of ESF funding and the lack of clarity on 
future Scottish Funding Council (SFC) funding. 
 
 
Asset management and estates strategy 
The College has an estate valued at £19.660m as at 31 July 2017.  It is a 
one campus College, comprising of a number of buildings distinctly 
identified as pavilions, terraces and one street building. Under the 
College’s accounting policy, land and buildings held by the College were 

revalued as at 31 July 2017 at fair value, recognising a gross valuation 
gain of £2.1m and impairment loss of £1.9m, leading to a net revaluation 
gain of £300k in the financial statements. 
 
The College was constructed under a Public Finance Initiative (PFI) 
agreement in 2001 before being transferred to wholly-public ownership in 
April 2007 following the voluntary termination of the PFI contract.  
 
The College has an agreed Estates Strategy 2015-2025 in place which is 
designed to provide a framework within which senior management can 
consider estate priorities in light of the College Regional Plan and Outcome 
Agreement and other policy considerations. It also provides the context 
within which more detailed capital investment plans can be developed and 
implemented, as well as being the point of reference for the day to day 
management of the estate.  
 
 

Financial sustainability extends the going concern assumption from the financial statements, looking forward two to five years, reviewing and assessing 
arrangements for financial planning and affordable and sustainable service delivery in this timescale. 

West Lothian College has adequate financial planning arrangements in place 
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Conclusion 
West Lothian College has adequate financial planning arrangements in 
place. 
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Governance and transparency 

 

Governance arrangements 
Our work in this area has considered the overall governance and scrutiny 
arrangements in place at the College, reviewed the financial and 
performance reporting to the Board, and reviewed the minutes of 
committees to inform our assessment of the appropriateness of the 
governance structure. We have also attended Audit Committees during the 
year. 

The College is managed by key Committees of the Board. Committees meet 
generally four times a year. The minutes of these meetings are considered 
as part of the agenda at the immediately following Board meeting. The Key 
Committees are set up in line with the agreed Terms of Reference for each. 
Appropriate College officers attend committees and present reports as 
required.  

The Board consists of 17 members, 9 male (including the Chair) and 8 
female.  The College is aware of the objective of the Gender 
Representation on Public Boards (Scotland) Bill and will continue to attain 
gender balance on the Board by 2022. 

The Finance and General Purposes Committee review the financial 
statements and recommend their approval to the Audit Committee who then 
recommend approval to the Board. The Board also approves the annual 
revenue and capital budgets. The Finance and General Purposes 
Committee also receive financial reports at each meeting to allow them to 
monitor performance in relation to these approved budgets. 

 

 

Committee meeting agenda items are supported by detailed reports each 
with a cover sheet describing the role of the committee in respect of the 
report e.g. For Information, For Action etc. so that members are aware of 
their role.  

Governance Statement 
As part of our audit we have read the governance statement included in the 
annual report. The governance statement sets out the corporate 
governance framework in place throughout the reporting year, the internal 
controls in operation, the work of internal audit and the overall efficiency and 
effectiveness of the governance framework.  
 
For the first time in 2016/17, we are required to read and provide an opinion 
on the governance statement. In our opinion, the information contained 
within is consistent with the financial statements. We also consider that the 
governance statement has been prepared in accordance with the Further 
and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and further directions made by 
the Scottish Funding Council. 
 
 
Internal audit 
An effective internal audit service is an important element of any 
organisation’s governance arrangements. Internal audit provide the College 
with independent assurance on internal control and corporate governance 
processes. The internal audit function at West Lothian College is provided 
by Scott-Moncrieff. 
 

Governance and transparency covers the effectiveness of scrutiny and governance arrangements, leadership and decision-making and transparent 
reporting of financial and performance information 

West Lothian College has governance arrangements in place that provide appropriate scrutiny of decisions made by the Board 
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To allow for an efficient audit process, where possible, we gained assurance 
from the work of internal audit.  
 
 
Transparency 
Transparency means that service users and the public have access to 
understandable information about how the College is making decisions and 
using its resources. 
 
There is a commitment to transparency, with the minutes and associated 
papers of committee meetings being made available on the website. 
 
 

Conclusion 
West Lothian College has governance arrangements in place that provide 
appropriate scrutiny of decisions made by the Board.   
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Value for money 

 

Performance management 
 
The Finance and General Purpose committee in June 2017 considered a 
College Key Performance Indicators 2016-17 report which identified the 
College’s Key Financial and Non-Financial Performance Indicators for the 
period 2013-14 to 2016-17.  
 
In addition, the quarterly financial KPIs report provides a forecast for the 
year ended as well as the actual for the period to date. This report also 
includes benchmarking against 4 other Scottish colleges. This information 
is reported regularly to the Finance & General Purpose Committee.  
 

The performance report identifies that the Colleges’ performance in 

achieving its activity targets has been strong, recording an over 
achievement of sums or credits since 2009-2010 (seven years).   It also 
reports – 

 85% of learners satisfied with the quality and effectiveness of 
learning and teaching 

 98% of HE students progressed to employment or university study. 

 
Regularity 
 
As part of our audit of the College’s financial statements, we are required by 

the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 to give an opinion 
on the regularity of expenditure and receipts shown in the financial 
statements. Regular expenditure and income is that which has been  
 

 
 
 
 
incurred / obtained in line with guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers and 
the terms and conditions of funding of the Scottish Funding Council. 
  
The executive team considers all incoming correspondence relevant to its 
strategic management role from the Scottish Funding Council and other 
regulatory or advisory bodies, such as Audit Scotland to ensure it is 
appropriately aware of sector issues and developments and that it complies 
with the terms and conditions of funding. 
 
Our review found a strong control environment exists over regularity of 
expenditure and receipts. No instances of non-compliance with Scottish 
Funding Council terms and conditions were noted. 
 

We consider value for money and Best Value throughout our testing. 
Areas where we had a specific focus on value for money and Best Value 
are: 

 Reviewing the procurement policy: - the procurement policy is 
available on the College’s website. The tendering process 
provides evidence of scrutiny for value for money in the use of 
resources.  

 Reviewing regularity procedures: - We are required by the Public 
Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 to give an opinion 
on the regularity of expenditure and receipts shown in the financial 
statements.  

Value for money concerns using resources effectively and continually improving services 

West Lothian College has an effective performance management framework in place that supports progress towards the achievement of value 
for money 
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We reviewed regularity of expenditure through our controls and substantive 
procedures and did not identify any exceptions. 

In addition, the College has a Value for Money Policy which highlights how 
the College recognises its responsibility to achieve value for money (VFM) 
and economy, efficiency and effectiveness from all of its activities, 
regardless of the method of funding. 

Conclusion 
West Lothian College has an effective performance management 
framework in place that supports progress towards the achievement of value 
for money.  
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Our fees 
Fees for work as the College’s appointed auditor 
We reported our proposed fees for the delivery of our work in the Audit Strategy Memorandum, presented to Audit committee in May 2017. 
 
Having completed our work for the 2016/17 financial year, we can confirm that our final fees are as follows: 
 

Area of work 
2016/17 

proposed fee      
£ 

2016/17 
final fee               

£ 

Auditor remuneration 12,750 12,750 

Pooled costs 800 800 

Contribution to Audit Scotland costs 720 720 

Total fee 14,720 14,720 

 
We confirm that these fees are in line with the scale fee set by Audit Scotland. 
 
We also confirm that we have not undertaken any non-audit services for the College in the year.   
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Appendix 1 – Proposed Audit Opinion 
 
Independent auditor’s report to the members of the Board of Governors of West Lothian College, the Auditor General for Scotland 
and the Scottish Parliament  
 
This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for 
no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Auditor General for Scotland, we do not undertake to 
have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties.  
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements  
 
Opinion on financial statements  
We have audited the financial statements in the annual report and accounts of West Lothian College for the year ended 31 July 2017 under the Further 
and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. The financial statements 
comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Reserves, Balance Sheet, and Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in 
the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).  
 
In our opinion the accompanying financial statements:  
 give a true and fair view in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish 

Funding Council of the state of the college's affairs as at 31 July 2017 and of its surplus/deficit for the year then ended;  
 have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and  
 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder 

by the Scottish Funding Council, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 14 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland) 
Regulations 2006 (as amended).  

 
Basis of opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing in the UK (ISAs (UK)). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the college in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK including the Financial 
Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  
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Conclusions relating to going concern  
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:  
 the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or  
 the college has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about its ability to continue 

to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for 
issue.  

 
Responsibilities of the Board of Governors for the financial statements  
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board of Governors Responsibilities, the Board of Governors is responsible for the preparation of financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such internal control as the Board of Governors 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors is responsible for assessing the college's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless deemed inappropriate.  
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  
Our objectives are to achieve reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements.  
A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report. 
 
Other information in the annual report and accounts  
The Board of Governors is responsible for the other information in the annual report and accounts. The other information comprises the information other 
than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on matters prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland to the extent explicitly stated 
later in this report.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements in accordance with ISAs (UK), our responsibility is to read all the other information in the annual 
report and accounts and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we 
are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard.  
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Report on regularity of expenditure and income  
 
Opinion on regularity  
In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial statements were incurred or applied in accordance with any applicable 
enactments and guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers.  
 
Responsibilities for regularity  
The Board of Governors is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income. We are responsible for expressing an opinion on the 
regularity of expenditure and income in accordance with the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000.  
 
 
Report on other requirements  
 
Opinions on other prescribed matters  
We are required by the Auditor General for Scotland to express an opinion on the following matters.  
In our opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report has been properly prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education 
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council. 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit  
 the information given in the Performance Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 

statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made 
thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council; and  

 the information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made 
thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council.  

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception  
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the college and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material 
misstatements in the Performance Report or Governance Statement.  
We are required by The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 to report to you if, in our opinion:  
 adequate accounting records have not been kept; or  
 the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report are not in agreement with the accounting records; or  
 We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.  
 
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.  
 
Mazars LLP 



 

22 
 

Appendix 2 – Proposed Letter of Representation 
 

Dear Sirs 

LETTER OF REPRESENTATION 
 
We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the college’s accounts for 

the period ended 31st July 2017. 
 
We acknowledge as members of the Board of Governors our responsibility for ensuring: 

a) the financial statements are free of material misstatements including omissions; 
b) that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the College as at 31st July 2017; 
c) all the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the transactions undertaken by the College have 

been properly reflected and recorded in the accounting records; 
d) all other records and related information, including minutes of all management meetings, have been made available to you; 
e) the accounting policies used are detailed in the financial statements and are consistent with those adopted in the previous financial statements 

and are in accordance with the Accounts Direction issued by SFC under the terms of the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992; and 
f) compliance with the terms and conditions of the Financial Memorandum issued to the Board of Governors by the SFC. 

 
Scott-Moncrieff act as Internal Auditors to the College. All reports issued to the College and our responses to them have been made available to you 
 
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal control systems to prevent and detect fraud. We have disclosed to you 
the results of our risk assessment that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of fraud. There have been no irregularities (or allegations of 
irregularities) involving management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 
 
The College has no liabilities or contingent liabilities other than those disclosed in the accounts. 
 
All claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, received have been properly accrued for in the financial statements. 
 
There have been no events since the balance sheet date that require disclosure or which would materially affect the amounts in the accounts, other than 
those already disclosed or included in the accounts. Should further material events occur, which may necessitate revision of the figures included in the 
financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, we will advise you accordingly. 
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The College has had at no time during the year any arrangement, transaction or agreement to provide credit facilities (including loans, quasi-loans or 
credit transactions) for the Board of Governors nor to guarantee or provide security for such matters. 
 
We confirm that we have disclosed to you all related party transactions relevant to the College and that we are not aware of any further related party 
matters that require disclosure in order to comply with the requirements of charities legislation, the Statement of Recommended Practice for Further and 
Higher Education accounts or accounting standards. 
 
The College has not contracted for any capital expenditure other than as disclosed in the accounts. 

 
The College has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the College’s assets, except for those that are disclosed in the 
financial statements. 
 
We are not aware of any irregularities, including fraud, involving existing management or employees of the College, nor are we aware of any breaches 
or possible breaches of statute, regulations, contracts, agreements or College's Constitution and Articles of Government which might result in the College 
suffering significant penalties or other loss. No allegations of such irregularities, including fraud, or such breaches have come to our attention. 
 
We confirm that we are not aware of any possible or actual instance of non-compliance with those laws and regulations which provide a legal framework 
within which the College conducts its business. 
 
We confirm that, in our opinion, the College is a going concern on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be more than 
adequate for the College’s needs. We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements. We believe that 
no further disclosures relating to the College’s ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements. 
 
We confirm that no journal adjustments have been processed in drafting the statutory accounts. 
 
We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, 
where appropriate, of supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly make each of the above representations to you. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
           ……………………………….. Chair of Board  

 

           …………………………………Principal and Chief Executive 



  Agenda Item 17.49 (iii) 
 

Paper 5 
West Lothian College 

30 November 2017 
 
 

AC/301117/Ser 1 
 

Audit Committee 
 
Letter of Representation to Mazars 
 
The letter of representation provides assurance to the College’s External 
Auditors, Mazars, that the Board is aware of its responsibilities in relation to 
the audit of the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2017.   
 
The Board’s responsibilities are set out in the attached letter which is signed 
by the Chair of the Board of Governors on behalf of the Board. 
 
Action 
 
The Committee is invited to discuss and recommend that the letter be signed 
by the Chair of the Board of Governors on behalf of the Board. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services 
30 November 2017 
 
 
 



 

West Lothian College 
 
 

 West Lothian College 
Almondvale Crescent 
Livingston 
West Lothian 
EH54 7EP 

 
 30 November 2017 

Messrs Mazars 
Apex 2,  
97 Haymarket Terrace,  
Edinburgh  
EH12 5HD 

 

 
 

Dear Sirs 
 
LETTER OF REPRESENTATION 
 
We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief the following representations given to you in 
connection with your audit of the college’s accounts for the period ended 31st July 2017. 
 
We acknowledge as members of the Board of Governors our responsibility for ensuring: 
 
a) the financial statements are free of material misstatements including omissions; 
b) that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the College as at 31st 

July 2017; 
c) all the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the 

transactions undertaken by the College have been properly reflected and recorded in the 
accounting records; 

d) all other records and related information, including minutes of all management meetings, have 
been made available to you; 

e) the accounting policies used are detailed in the financial statements and are consistent with those 
adopted in the previous financial statements and are in accordance with the Accounts Direction 
issued by SFC under the terms of the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992; and 

f) compliance with the terms and conditions of the Financial Memorandum issued to the Board of 
Governors by the SFC. 

 
Scott-Moncrieff act as Internal Auditors to the College. All reports issued to the College and our 
responses to them have been made available to you. 
 
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal control systems to 
prevent and detect fraud. We have disclosed to you the results of our risk assessment that the financial 
statements may be misstated as a result of fraud. There have been no irregularities (or allegations of 
irregularities) involving management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others 
that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
The College has no liabilities or contingent liabilities other than those disclosed in the accounts. 
 
All claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, received have been 
properly accrued for in the financial statements. 
 
There have been no events since the balance sheet date that require disclosure or which would 
materially affect the amounts in the accounts, other than those already disclosed or included in the 
accounts. Should further material events occur, which may necessitate revision of the figures included 
in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, we will advise you accordingly. 



 

The College has had at no time during the year any arrangement, transaction or agreement to provide 
credit facilities (including loans, quasi-loans or credit transactions) for the Board of Governors nor to 
guarantee or provide security for such matters. 
 
We confirm that we have disclosed to you all related party transactions relevant to the College and that 
we are not aware of any further related party matters that require disclosure in order to comply with the 
requirements of charities legislation, the Statement of Recommended Practice for Further and Higher 
Education accounts or accounting standards. 
 
The College has not contracted for any capital expenditure other than as disclosed in the accounts. 
 
The College has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on the College’s 
assets, except for those that are disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
We are not aware of any irregularities, including fraud, involving existing management or employees of 
the College, nor are we aware of any breaches or possible breaches of statute, regulations, contracts, 
agreements or College's Constitution and Articles of Government which might result in the College 
suffering significant penalties or other loss. No allegations of such irregularities, including fraud, or such 
breaches have come to our attention. 
 
We confirm that we are not aware of any possible or actual instance of non-compliance with those laws 
and regulations which provide a legal framework within which the College conducts its business. 
 
We confirm that, in our opinion, the College is a going concern on the grounds that current and future 
sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the College’s needs. We have considered 
a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements. We believe that no 
further disclosures relating to the College’s ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in 
the financial statements. 
 
We confirm that no journal adjustments have been processed in drafting the statutory accounts. 
 
We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and 
staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, where appropriate, of supporting documentation) 
sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly make each of the above representations to you. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
……………………………….. Chair of Board 
 
 
…………………………………Principal and Chief Executive 
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Paper 6 
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30 November 2017 
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Audit Committee 
 
Internal Audit Report: Organisational Wellbeing 

The attached report sets out the findings from an Internal Audit review of 
Organisational Wellbeing. 
 
Overall, the findings of the report were generally positive and reflect 
continuous improvement activity.   
 
Management responses have been provided to the recommendations 
contained in the report. 
 
 
Action 
 
The Committee is asked to comment on the report. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services 
30 November 2017 
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Organisational Wellbeing 
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Introduction 

Background 

 West Lothian College (“the College”) employed an average of 282 FTE staff members during the period ended 

31 July 2016.  The College relies on its staff to achieve the priority outputs set out within the Regional Plan & 

Outcome Agreement 2015-17.  It is therefore essential that staff morale is positive and the College continually 

monitors the wellbeing of its workforce. 

Scope  

We have reviewed how the College monitors and manages organisational wellbeing. 

Acknowledgements 

We would like to thank all staff consulted during this review for their assistance and co-operation. 

 

 

 

 



 2 West Lothian College Organisational Wellbeing scott-moncrieff.com 

 

Summary of findings 

The table below summarises our assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls in place to 

meet each of the objectives agreed for this audit.  Further details, along with improvement actions, are set out 

in the Management Action Plan.    

No Control Objective Control 
objective 
assessment 

Action rating 

5 4 3 2 1 

1 The College has analysed its existing 

workforce to identify gaps in skills or 

experience and plans are in place to 

address these. 

YELLOW - - 1 - - 

2 Staff appraisal processes are in place to 

monitor performance and address any 

issues. 

YELLOW - - - 3 - 

3 There are mechanisms in place to monitor 

and manage staff absence to detect any 

underlying trends or issues. 

YELLOW - - 2 - - 

4 Staff surveys (or similar mechanisms) are 

undertaken to gauge staff morale and 

actions are agreed to address any 

emerging issues. 

GREEN - - - - - 

 

Assessment Definition 

BLACK Fundamental absence or failure of key control procedures - immediate action required. 

RED The control procedures in place are not effective - inadequate management of key risks. 

YELLOW No major weaknesses in control but scope for improvement. 

GREEN Adequate and effective controls which are operating satisfactorily. 
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Conclusion 

Overall, the findings of this report are generally positive and reflect continuous improvement activity.  The 

College is developing arrangements over the identification of future strategic workforce requirements, although 

it has not yet implemented controls that ensure a full understanding of the necessary capacity and skills is in 

place to meet strategic and operational objectives. 

Controls are in place surrounding staff engagement, with opportunities identified to improve compliance with 

controls around the management of individual staff absences. 

Main Findings 

Good Practice 

We have gained assurance that the College’s procedures reflect good practice in a number of areas.  

Examples include: 

• Recent activity in relation to workforce management shows a commitment to understanding, analysis, 

and continuous improvement in this area; 

• Staff absence information is compiled centrally by HR, and is regularly reported to the Finance and 

General Purposes Committee (including analyses of current trends and performance against 

benchmarking information); and 

• The College has recently conducted a staff survey, with responses obtained from staff across the 

organisation.  The survey results have been the subject of further engagement work at the department 

level, overseen by Vice Principals, with the outcomes to be reported to the Finance and General 

Purposes Committee. 

Opportunities for improvement 

There is scope for the College to strengthen existing arrangements in a number of areas, including: 

• Workforce planning arrangements could further and more fully developed.  Although there is evidence 

of the preparation of plans in relation to succession and retention, the College does not have a 

comprehensive view of the skills and experience available from its current workforce, or how this 

compares to its future requirements; 

• The College carries out an annual staff development exercise, and levels of participation are good.  

However objective setting and targets for individual members of staff could be more fully aligned to 

strategic aims and objectives, including use of as SMART actions as possible; and 

• Absence management processes as set out in policy are not applied consistently.  In particular, 

interventions following patterns of absence and return to work interviews are not demonstrably in line 

with policy in all cases tested. 

 

Further details of the points raised are included in the Management Action Plan of this report.
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Management Action Plan 

Our grading structure is as follows:  

Risk rating Definition 

5 Very high risk exposure - Major concerns requiring immediate Board attention.  

4 High risk exposure - Absence / failure of significant key controls.  

3 Moderate risk exposure - Not all key control procedures are working effectively.   

2 Limited risk exposure - Minor control procedures are not in place / not working effectively. 

1 Efficiency / housekeeping point. 
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1. Control objective: The College has analysed its existing workforce to identify gaps in skills or 
experience and plans are in place to address these. 

Observation and Risk Recommendation Management Response 

1.1 Workforce Planning 

In July 2016, the College produced Workforce 

Planning & Development, which establishes a 

framework for identifying skills, experience and 

resource requirements, and the development of 

detailed workforce plans. 

There is some evidence of implementation of 

actions identified in the report, such as the 

development of succession and retention plans 

across some departments.  Actions relating the 

identification of skills or experience gaps are 

covered by the policy Career Long Professional 

Learning and Development, which is currently in 

draft.  This policy identifies the requirement to 

carry out a skills audit and gap analysis, however 

the accompanying procedures have not yet been 

developed. 

There is a risk that the College has not identified 

skills gaps within its current workforce against 

current and future requirements. 

 

The College should develop and implement the 

workforce planning processes set out in the 

Career Long Professional Learning and 

Development Policy, and produce a detailed 

workforce plan.  The plan should be subject to 

approval and regular review at an appropriate 

level. 

 

Agreed.  The College will determine an 

appropriate level of detail and produce a 

workforce plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be actioned by: Vice Principal, Curriculum & 

Planning and Learning & Development Officer 

No later than: December 2017 

Priority 3 
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2. Control objective: Staff appraisal processes are in place to monitor performance and address any 
issues. 

Observation and Risk Recommendation Management Response 

2.1 Completion of Personal Learning Plans 

The College requires that the majority of staff 

complete a Personal Learning Plan (PLP) on an 

annual basis.  We selected a sample of 10 staff 

expected to complete a PLP and found that in 2 

cases no PLP was completed, and in a further 2 

cases the PLP was not completed in a timely 

manner.  This is broadly in line with the College's 

own records, which indicate that 68 of 279 staff 

(24%) did not complete a PLP. 

The 76% response rate is at least generally 

commensurate with other bodies that conduct 

similar exercises.  The Learning and Development 

Team carried out focus groups on completion of 

the 2015/16 PLP process, and has identified a 

number of changes to the process with the aim of 

improving the rate of completion. 

There is a risk that non-completion of the process 

means that development needs are not identified 

for a significant minority of staff. 

 

The College should continue to take steps to 

ensure that all relevant staff complete the PLP 

process, with progress reported at executive and 

non-executive levels. 

 

All staff participating in the PLP Process will have 

completed their PLP by December 2017.  Staff not 

undertaking PLPs participate in Team Meetings 

where any training or development needs would 

be identified. 

The PLP process will be reviewed in relation to 

staff who need only to undertake mandatory 

training. 

 

 

 

To be actioned by: Vice Principal, Curriculum & 

Planning and Learning & Development Officer. 

No later than: December 2017 

Priority 2 
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Observation and Risk Recommendation Management Response 

2.2 Applicability of Personal Learning Plan 

process 

In practice, the College does not require certain 

categories of staff to complete Personal Learning 

Plans (eg invigilators are not required to complete 

PLPs).  Staff working for the College for a short 

period, or working very small numbers of hours, 

are offered the opportunity to participate but are 

permitted to decline. 

These exceptions to the process are not reflected 

in the Staff Development Policy and Procedure, or 

in guidance issued to Line Managers at the outset 

of the process.  Where staff are permitted to opt 

out of participation, no record is maintained of the 

offer, or the reason staff choose not to participate. 

There is a risk that the development needs of 

members of staff that do not complete a PLP are 

not captured, leading to underperformance and 

failure to achieve objectives. 

 

The College should ensure consistency of policy 

and practice for PLP participation.   

Where employees "opt out" of completing a PLP a 

record should be maintained of the offer and the 

reason the employee has opted not to participate. 

 

Agreed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be actioned by: Vice Principal, Curriculum & 

Planning and Learning & Development Officer. 

No later than: December 2017 

Priority 2 
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Observation and Risk Recommendation Management Response 

2.3 Personal Learning Plan Objectives 

We reviewed a sample of Personal Learning Plans 

completed during the 2015/16 cycle and observed 

that the objectives set during the process were not 

consistently SMART (Specific, Measurable, 

Achievable, Realistic, Timely) and were not 

sufficiently and explicitly linked to the College's 

operational or strategic objectives in a range of 

cases. 

For the 2016/17 cycle, updated guidance has 

been issued to Line Managers indicating that 

objectives should be expressed in SMART terms, 

and should be set in conjunction with the Regional 

Outcome Agreement and aligned to Centre 

developments.  However, this requirement is not 

reflected in the PLP templates distributed to Line 

Managers. 

There is a risk that the actions identified during the 

PLP process do not contribute to the achievement 

of the College's objectives. 

 

The College should ensure that objectives set 

during the PLP process are as SMART as 

possible and contribute to the achievement of 

College objectives.  In particular, the College 

should consider updating the PLP template such 

that objectives set include an explicit reference to 

the relevant College objective. 

The extent to which this is reflected in 2016/17 

PLPs should be reviewed by the Learning & 

Development Officer and reported accordingly 

(linked to recommendation 2.1, above). 

 

Agreed.  The template will be updated for the 

2018-19 PLP process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be actioned by: Vice Principal, Curriculum & 

Planning and Learning & Development Officer 

No later than: April 2018 

Priority 2 
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3. Control objective: There are mechanisms in place to monitor and manage staff absence to detect any 
underlying trends or issues. 

Observation and Risk Recommendation Management Response 

3.1 Absence Management Process 

The Absence Management Policy identifies trigger points based on 

patterns of absence, upon which a defined series of absence 

management interventions should commence.  A case 

management tool is used by HR to record the progress and 

outcomes of the various stages of the process. 

We reviewed a sample of absence reports and identified staff 

members who had reached the trigger points defined in the policy.  

In a number of cases the decision had been taken by Line 

Managers, apparently in conjunction with HR, that the absence 

management process wasn’t to be fully applied in strict terms.  

These tended to be instances where the cause of the absence 

were matters such as long term sickness, chronic or terminal 

illness, or unexpected absences connected to maternity leave. 

Where such a decision has been made, these instances of 

absence are not recorded as "cases" within the management tool, 

and no formal record is maintained of the rationale for not 

proceeding with absence management interviews as per policy. 

There is a risk that trends are not identified, inconsistent action is 

taken, and/or there is inability to justify particular decisions, if 

challenged. 

 

The College should ensure that 

a record is maintained of all 

decisions made in response to 

patterns of absence, including 

decisions to take no action 

(including where this may be 

perceived as contrary to the 

policy as written). 

 

Agreed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be actioned by: Senior HR Business Partner 

No later than: Immediate 

Priority 3 
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Observation and Risk Recommendation Management Response 

3.2 Return to Work Interviews 

The College’s absence management policy 

requires return to work interviews to be conducted 

following an absence. 

We selected a sample of fifteen absences during 

the year.  Of those, return to work paperwork was 

completed and returned to HR in only two cases. 

There is a risk that wellbeing issues giving rise to 

absences are not identified, resulting in recurrence 

and wider adverse impact. 

 

The College should further analyse potential 

measures to ensure that Return to Work 

interviews take place according to the policy.  

These could include identifying a point of 

escalation when interviews are not conducted, or 

regular reporting of compliance statistics to those 

responsible for carrying out interviews. 

Alternatively, the policy should be revised if it is 

not felt to be reflective of desired practice. 

 

 

A process has been agreed with the College Team 

and will be implemented immediately.  

 

 

 

 

To be actioned by: Senior HR Business Partner 

No later than: Immediately 

Priority 3 
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4. Control objective: Staff surveys (or similar mechanisms) are undertaken to gauge staff morale and 
actions are agreed to address any emerging issues. 

We identified no reportable issues in relation to this control objective.  

In February 2017, the College carried out a comprehensive staff survey which took into account issues of morale and well-being.  This is the first such survey that 

the College has conducted since 2012, and the College intends to carry out a similar exercise on an annual basis.  The survey covered all staff across the 

College, and response rates indicate that reasonable coverage was achieved with good representation achieved across all categories of staff and areas of the 

College. 

The results of the survey were fed back to all staff both directly and through line managers, and have been presented to the SMT.  Though no specific issues or 

actions have yet been identified, some analysis and discussion has been conducted at the Senior Team level, and on the basis of that work the College has 

instigated a college-wide project led by a VP to identify how staff engagement can be further enhanced and developed. Project progress reports and outcomes 

will be reported to the Finance and General Purposes Committee.  We endorse this ongoing work and, subject to being taken forward effectively, this should 

support continuous improvement in this area. 





 

 

© Scott-Moncrieff Chartered Accountants 2017.  All rights reserved. “Scott-Moncrieff” refers to Scott-Moncrieff 

Chartered Accountants, a member of Moore Stephens International Limited, a worldwide network of 

independent firms. 

 

Scott-Moncrieff Chartered Accountants is registered to carry on audit work and regulated for a range of 

investment business activities by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland. 
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Audit Committee 
 
Student Support Funds and Educational Maintenance Allowances (EMA) 
Audits 2016-17 
 
The College’s Internal Auditors have undertaken the annual audit of Student 
Support Funds and EMA for the Academic Year 2016-17, in accordance with 
the requirements set out in the Scottish Funding Council’s Student Support 
Fund Audit Guidance 2016-17 and EMA Audit Guidance 2016-17. 
 
The Auditors are only required to report findings from the Audit and not 
required to provide a detailed report.  Recommendations have been made 
and accepted by Management. 
 
Action 
 
For discussion. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services 
30 November 2017 
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Summary 

We conducted our Student Support Fund and EMA audits for the AY 2016/17 in August 2017, in accordance 

with the requirements set out in SFC’s ‘Student Support Fund Audit Guidance 2016/17’ and ‘Educational 

Maintenance Allowances (EMA) Audit Guidance 2016/17’. 

SFC has set no requirement to provide a detailed report in respect of this work, however we do report any 

findings identified within the audits to management. These matters are set out below. 

Management Point 

1 Approval of EMA funding applications and learning agreements 
 
Observation 

During our review, we identified that application forms and supporting documents for EMA funding were not 

consistently signed off.  We identified one instance in which an EMA application was not signed by the 

applicant’s parent/guardian.  We also identified five instances in which the learning agreement put in place for 

the student was not signed by the lecturer and two instances where the agreement was not signed by the 

parent/guardian. 

Risk 

There is a risk that appropriate agreement is not obtained from all relevant parties to confirm they are aware of 

the funding and any associated conditions attached as staff do not perform checks to confirm all documentation 

is signed appropriately, resulting in potential non-compliance with funding conditions.   

Recommendation 

Staff should be reminded that appropriate checks should be performed to confirm all required documentation 

has been signed to evidence approval from all required parties or evidence retained of any follow up action 

performed to obtain this approval. 

 

Management response 

Agreed 

2 Student attendance 

Observation 

The SFC guidance states that in order to receive funding, students should maintain 100% attendance, with the 

exception of authorised absences.  The College has adopted this policy of 100% attendance, with students also 

permitted five self-certified absences throughout the academic year, with clear rationales in place for each fund 

as to why these additional absences are permitted.  Within our testing over bursary, EMA and childcare 

students, no student achieved 100% attendance in the period tested; however we confirmed that in all 

instances, the students had not exceeded the absence threshold. 

Teaching staff record student attendance every week through Unit-e.  The Student Funds team then produces 

reports from the system to check attendance before any payments are processed.  Through the testing 
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performed, we noted several instances in which teaching staff had not updated Unit-e.  In these instances, the 

Student Funds staff contact teaching staff directly to confirm attendance. 

Risk 

There is a risk that the College is delayed in making payments to students due to the additional checks required 

as a result of incomplete attendance records, resulting in student hardship and reputational damage for the 

College. 

Recommendation 

The College should remind teaching staff of the importance of completing Unit-e attendance registers on a 

timely basis. 

Management response 

Agreed 

1.3 Strategy for targeting Priority Groups 

Observation 

For Childcare and Discretionary funding, the SFC has identified priority groups for receipt of funding.  These 

groups include lone parents and student carers.  The College should have a strategy in place to ensure these 

groups are prioritised when allocating student funds, however we were unable to view evidence the College 

had developed such a strategy. 

Risk 

There is a risk that students within priority groups do not receive funding as the College does not specifically 

target funding towards these groups, resulting in a decrease in students from vulnerable groups and potential 

reputational damage to the College. 

Recommendation 

Management should develop a strategy to target and support priority groups when allocating student funds. 

This strategy should be communicated and made readily accessible to all relevant staff. 

Management response 

Funds are prioritised in accordance with national policy but priority groups will be specifically referred to when 

updating College policies and procedures.  
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Audit Committee 
 
Audit Report – Review of 2016-17 Credits Return 

The College’s Internal Auditors audited the funding statistics for West Lothian 
College during August 2017. The audit was carried out in accordance with the 
guidance issued by the Scottish Funding Council (SFC), including the Data 
return for funding purposes (FES return) and audit guidance for colleges 
2016-17. 

In the Auditor’s opinion, controls over the collection of data and the 
preparation of the Credits returns are adequate and effective. The Auditor’s 
opinion states that “Assurance can be gained from the audit testing carried 
out and the internal checking performed by College management that the 
Credits count for the College has not been materially misstated.” 

Under the conditions of grant, the SFC may claw-back an element of the grant 
if actual Credits provided are below target. Actual Credits claimed for 2016-17 
were 44,085 against a target of 43,499. The difference is 586 (1.3%) above 
the target Credits. 

A management response has been agreed in relation to each of the 
recommendations contained in the report.  
 
Action 
 
For discussion. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services 
30 November 2017 
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Executive Summary 

We audited the funding statistics for West Lothian College during August 2017.  The audit examined the 

procedures and controls over the preparation of the 2016/17 Credits return, together with audit testing to 

ensure the accurate calculation of the return. 

Conclusion 

In our opinion, controls over the collection of data and the preparation of the Credits returns are adequate and 

effective.  Assurance can be gained from the audit testing carried out and the internal checking performed by 

College management that the Credits count for the College has not been materially misstated. A copy of the 

audit report is included in Annex A of this report. 

Under the conditions of grant, the SFC may claw-back an element of the grant if actual Credits provided are 

below target.  Actual Credits claimed for 2016/17 were 44,085 against a target of 43,499.  The difference is 586 

(1.3%) above the target Credits.   

The deadline for submitting the College Certificate and the Auditors’ Certificate was 29 September 2017 and 

this was achieved for both certificates. 

Scope 

Our audit was carried out in accordance with the guidance issued by the Scottish Funding Council (SFC), 

including the ‘Data return for funding purposes (FES return) and audit guidance for colleges 2016/17’.   

Approach 

The audit comprised of 7 days of fieldwork by our audit team with extensive experience of Credits reviews.  

Quality assurance was provided by detailed review of work by the Audit Manager and overall review by the 

Audit Partner. 

Our audit approach involved the following: 

 Examination of the procedures and controls relevant to the collection and recording of student data; 

 Evaluation of the adequacy of these controls in ensuring the accuracy of the data; 

 Testing of the key controls to ensure they were operating satisfactorily; 

 Examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the figures recorded in the student data returns; 

 Review of the risk areas as highlighted in the audit guidance for 2016/17; 

 Analytical review utilising current year and prior year Credits data; 

 Further detailed testing where necessary, including checking of the Credits return; and 

 Follow up of prior year recommendations. 

Sample 

Our initial sample was derived by: 

 applying Scott-Moncrieff’s approved sampling methodology 

 considering the materiality of the area under review and,  
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 using professional judgement.   

 

Where necessary, samples were extended to ensure that we gained sufficient coverage of all programme and 

student variables as specified within the audit guidance. 

Our sample sizes represented 0.3% of total students and 4.5% of programmes that the College has claimed 

credits for; based on our assessment of the risk of material misstatement in the credits return.  We adopted 

appropriate procedures to enable us to draw conclusions across the total population based on the testing 

completed. 

Acknowledgements 

We would like to thank all staff consulted during this review for their assistance and co-operation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

scott-moncrieff.com West Lothian College Review of the 2016/17 Credits Return 3 

Detailed Audit Work and Findings 

Our audit centred on testing College data on a sample basis and, where appropriate, consulting with staff and 

senior management.  This was performed to provide assurance that all of the risks set out in Annex D of the 

audit guidance note referred to above had been satisfactorily addressed and that the fundamentals of compiling 

Credits data were subject to appropriate controls. 

1.1 General Systems Review 

Throughout our review of credits at West Lothian College we undertook detailed testing of the curriculum 

planning process, Unit-E and various other controls the College has in place to ensure the correct number of 

credits are claimed.  

We identified some control weaknesses within these processes during our review, including incorrect 

calculation of the required date and insufficient records of student attendance.  We have provided details of the 

specific controls in place and the testing performed over these controls in the ‘key risk areas’ section below. 

1.2 Follow up 

We reviewed the prior year audit report and discussed the progress of implementing the agreed actions with 

management. The outcome of this analysis was used to inform our audit strategy.  

The prior year audit findings appear to have been addressed by management and no significant associated 

issues were identified during the course of our audit work in 2016/17.  

2015/16 Audit Finding 2016/17 Follow up 

Enrolment forms 

For three students (out of 27 students tested), 

enrolment forms could not be located by the 

Management Information Systems (MIS) team, 

although relevant enrolment details had been 

recorded in the system. The absence of these forms 

could not be explained by the College.  

Recommendation 

Staff should again be reminded of the importance of 

retaining enrolment forms on students’ files. 

 

Our testing in this area confirmed that an enrolment 

form was held on file for all students. We therefore 

consider this recommendation complete. 

 

Content of Enrolment Forms  

Of the enrolment forms that we successfully verified, 

two inconsistencies with the content of the forms were 

identified:  

 9 enrolment forms did not include a question 

 

Our testing in this area confirmed that all enrolment 

forms have been updated to include the residency 

questions.  We therefore consider this 

recommendation complete. 
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on UK residency; and  

 Where a question regarding the UK residency 

of a student had been included within the 

enrolment form template, we identified 3 

instances where this question had not been 

answered by the applicant.  

Recommendation 

The College has advised that a new enrolment 

template has been implemented which confirms the 

student’s residency status. 

The College should ensure that the new template is 

fully implemented throughout the student enrolment 

process to enable full assessment of student eligibility 

against SFC criteria. 
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1.3 Key risk areas 

The results of our audit work are summarised below against each of the 14 key risk areas highlighted by SFC in 

Annex D of the ‘Data return for funding purposes (FES return) and audit guidance for colleges 2016/17’ 

document.  

Risk Area 1 – Non-fundable activity is included in the Credit count 

The College distinguishes between fundable and non-fundable activity within its Curriculum Planning Plan 

(CPP).  The College’s 2016/17 CPP was approved by the Deputy Principal and Department Heads prior to the 

start of the academic year.   

We selected a sample of 20 courses identified as fundable by the College (including courses which spanned 

more than one academic year) and performed our own checks against the SFC guidance to confirm eligibility of 

the courses selected. 

No issues were identified. 

Risk Area 2 – Non-fundable students are included in the Credit count 

Student information relevant for eligibility checks is collected by the College via the application form and checks 

are performed by staff to confirm the student is fundable.    

We selected a sample of 20 students identified as fundable by the College and performed our own checks 

against the SFC guidance to confirm eligibility of the courses selected. 

No issues were identified. 

Risk Area 3 – Programme is not classified correctly 

Programmes are reviewed and classified during the annual curriculum planning process. Courses are classified 

by staff as Higher or Further Education (HE/FE), and as full time or part time.  This information is recorded on 

spreadsheets for input into the student records system, Unit-E. 

We reviewed a sample of 20 programmes.  In three instances, the programmes selected were not included 

within the curriculum planning spreadsheets and in nine instances the programmes were not classified as HE 

or FE within the spreadsheets. It is therefore unclear when these judgements were made, who by and whether 

the decisions made were based on SFC guidance.  Through our own substantive testing, we did not identify 

any issues with the ultimate classification of these programmes.  However, we did identify one further 

programme that had been incorrectly classified as a night/evening class. 

Recommendation 1 

Risk Area 4 – An infill student is counted as part of the programme which is being in-filled, rather than 

their individually tailored course or is included as part of both courses 

The College has set up separate course codes for infill students to ensure credits are only claimed for the 

modules completed by those students and additional credits are not claimed in respect of the programme(s) 

being in-filled.  We reviewed a sample of students completing infill courses to confirm separate course codes 

were created for these students, the credits claimed were appropriate based on the modules completed by the 

student and that no credits had been claimed on the in-filled programmes.  No issues were identified. 
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Risk Area 5 – Incorrect allocation of Credits for students registered on ECDL courses 

The College creates specific ECDL courses that students can apply to complete and the College records that 

only four credits are claimable for this course on Unit-E.  The College will then claim against these four credits 

based on the number of modules completed by the student out of a total of six modules. 

The College ran one ECDL course during 2016/17.  We reviewed all students who completed the course to 

confirm that a maximum of four credits were claimed for each student.  We also performed testing over a 

sample of students to confirm the students had completed the appropriate number of ECDL modules based on 

the credits claimed.  

No issues were identified. 

Risk Area 6 – Incorrect Dominant Price Group Code is allocated to programme   

The College allocate the superclass and relevant price group to each course as part of development of the 

CPP.   

For our sample of 20 courses, we reviewed the assigned superclass for each course to confirm this was 

appropriate and in line with SFC guidance.  We noted one course that appeared to be incorrectly classified 

based on the content of the relevant modules, which was agreed by the College.  This course was one of the 

three courses not included within the CPP, as identified under risk 3 above.  This would have resulted in an 

over-claim of funding as the original superclass selected was linked to price group 2; the new superclass is 

price group 1.  We confirmed that the College has made this adjustment within the FES return. 

Recommendation 1 

Risk Area 7 – Students included in the return do not meet attendance criteria  

The College confirms course start and end dates through the curriculum planning process, which are then 

entered onto Unit-e.  The system then automatically calculates the ‘required date’ by which students have to 

participate in a programme in order for the College to claim credits.  Where a student withdraws from their 

course, the Student Systems team review evidence of the student’s last date of attendance and record this date 

within the system as the withdrawal date.  This date is then compared to the required date to confirm whether 

the College can continue to claim credits for the student. 

We recalculated the required date for our sample of students and identified that the College had incorrectly 

calculated the dates in nine instances.  In eight instances, the date was one day out and in one instance the 

date was completely incorrect.  In addition, we also identified that student attendance records were not 

maintained for two students within our sample.  However, we confirmed that these issues did not impact on the 

claiming of credits for any of these students.   

Recommendation 2 

Risk Area 8 – Incorrect Credit value is claimed for the programme of study 

Staff identify the total number of credits to be claimed for each programme with the CPP.  This judgement is 

based on the number of staff hours required to develop each programme.  

For each of the courses in our sample, we calculated the expected value of credits based on the number of 

student hours and compared this to the number of credits recorded on Unit-E and within the FES return to 

ensure no discrepancies.  We identified one instance in which the credits had been calculated incorrectly as 
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two credits per student within the CPP, as opposed to four credits.  Staff indicated this was an administrative 

error. 

 Recommendation 1  

Risk Area 9 – The college Credits claim for an individual student exceeds the maximum claim allowed 

for a student per year 

The College prepares a detailed spreadsheet of all students who have been allocated additional credits above 

the course maximums set by the SFC, either through attending a single course or multiple courses. A sheet is 

also prepared for each student to justify why the additional modules are required.  Staff then perform ‘one plus’ 

testing to confirm that the total additional credits claimed for students does not exceed 1% of the total volume of 

credits allocated to the College, in line with SFC guidance.     

We performed our own review over ‘one plus activity’ and confirmed that for the one course exceeding the SFC 

maximums during 2016/17, the College had identified a demonstrable need for students to incur those 

additional credits.  We also confirmed the College had only claimed 201 additional credits over the maximum 

set, which represents 0.46% of the total volume of credits allocated to the college.  No additional approval was 

therefore required from the SFC for these credits. 

Risk Area 10 – ELS student classification is applied or claimed incorrectly   

The College identifies students with potential support needs through their enrolment form, which are reviewed 

by the Student Support team.  Where the student has indicated additional support may be required, the Student 

Support team works with the student to identify their support needs and captures this information within a 

Personal Learning Support Plan (PLSP).   

We reviewed our sample of students to confirm that where students identified that they had additional support 

needs, they had been contacted by the Student Support team and a PSLP put in place where appropriate.  

Whilst we did not identify any instances in which students had not been offered additional support where 

required, we did identify in three instances that Unit-E had not been correctly updated to reflect that students 

had disabilities.   

Recommendation 3 

We also identified that the College does not document within the PLSP the financial implications for the College 

of providing the support or the educational aims of the student.  Whilst this issue was shared with management, 

for 2017/18 the SFC has removed the requirement to prepare PSLPs and therefore no recommendation has 

been raised. 

Risk Area 11 – College records fee waivers which are not covered by the standard fee waiver policy 

The College does not grant fee waivers to students that require checks of eligibility to be completed.   

Risk Area 12 – Students who enrol on an open/ distance learning programme do not continue with the 

programme 

Students on open/distance learning programmes meet with their lecturer prior to the start of the academic year 

to discuss the content of and agree a duration for the course.  
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We performed testing over a sample of students completing open/distance learning programmes.  Whilst we 

confirmed that the duration of study was set, we were unable to view evidence that milestones had been 

agreed with the students or that there was a formal process in place to monitor student progress on an ongoing 

basis, in line with SFC guidance. 

Recommendation 4 

Risk Area 13 – Incorrect Credit value is claimed for Collaborative Provision 

Where courses are delivered in collaboration with another institution, the College agrees the funding position at 

the outset of the arrangement and ensures sufficient arrangements are in place to adhere to the SFC guidance, 

including that courses are subject to the College’s quality assurance processes. 

For a sample of collaborative courses, we confirmed that the SFC requirements had been adhered to.  

No issues were identified. 

Risk Area 14 - Inconsistency between the number of credits claimed and the number of units/subjects 

reported within the student record. 

The College perform reconciliations between the draft FES returns and the student records system to ensure 

these details are consistent. Any issues identified are flagged and investigated by staff. 

Our review confirmed this process is operating effectively to ensure the amount of credits claimed is accurate 

and no issues were identified. 
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Recommendations 

All actions have been given a risk rating as follows: 

 

1. Programme classification and credits 

Our testing identified issues with the CPP process that involves classifying programmes between HE and FE, 

and full time and part time, for assigning a course superclass and for identifying the credits to be claimed per 

course.  Programmes are currently reviewed and the details agreed during the annual curriculum planning 

process.  This information is recorded on spreadsheets for input into the student records system, Unit-E. 

However in three instances the programmes selected were not included within the curriculum planning 

spreadsheets and in nine instances, the programmes were not classified as HE or FE within the spreadsheets; 

it is therefore unclear when the programmes were classified, who by and whether the decisions made were 

based on SFC guidance.   

Through our own substantive testing, we identified that one of the three courses omitted from the CPP was 

incorrectly classified based on the content of the relevant modules, which was agreed by the College. This 

would have resulted in an over-claim of funding as the original superclass selected was linked to price group 2; 

the new superclass is price group 1.  We also identified one programme included within the CPP that had been 

incorrectly classified as a night/evening class and another programme which had the incorrect level of credits 

identified based on hours required to deliver the course.   

There is a risk that the College may claim an incorrect amount of credits and funding as sufficient checks are 

not performed to ensure programmes are classified appropriately and in line with SFC guidance, resulting in 

potential funding clawbacks.  

We recommend that the curriculum planning processes includes sufficient checks and sign-off by management 

to ensure the information recorded is complete and in line with SFC guidance.   

Risk rating: 2   

•Very high risk exposure - major concerns requiring immediate senior 
attention that create fundamental risks within the organisation. 

4 

•High risk exposure - absence / failure of key controls that create 
significant risks within the organisation. 

3 

•Moderate risk exposure - controls are not working effectively and 
efficiently and may create moderate risks within the organisation. 

2 

•Limited risk exposure - controls are working effectively, but could be 
strengthened to prevent the creation of minor risks or address general 
house-keeping issues.   

1 
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Management response:   

Curriculum Plans go through a number of stages and are verified at each stage: 

1. Initial Planning Spreadsheet – Head and Depute Head of Department 

2. Initial Plan entered into UNIT-e Course Plan (‘App E’ planning process)– Student Systems Manager 

and Student Systems Co-Ordinator 

3. App E document extended to incorporate course content and other course particulars. Curriculum 

functions via staff portal(‘App D’ planning process) - Head and Depute Head of Department 

4. App D document generated above created in UNIT-e – Student Systems Team 

Planning takes place in advance of the academic year and there is always therefore scope for additional 

courses to be requested/required or for planned courses to be dropped. Such courses would be managed 

through stages 2-4 above so still reviewed by appropriate staff.  

Please note that the App D process requires an electronic sign off by the Head/Depute Head before 

progressing to completion.  

The planning spreadsheets used to support curriculum discussions were integrated into a single plan for 

session 2017-18; previously there were separate plans for Full Time, Part Time and Schools. 

The College accepts that the process described above requires repeat entry of data and that this duplication of 

work can occasionally lead to omissions or errors in the data.   

The College will undertake a review of the process to inform the curriculum planning and administration 

process for 2018-19.  

To be actioned by: Student Systems Manager / Centre Heads/ Vice Principals 

No later than:  December 2017  

 

2. Required dates 

We recalculated the required date for a sample of students and identified that the College had incorrectly 

calculated the dates in nine instances.  In eight instances, the date was one day out and in one instance the 

date was completely incorrect.  These issues arose due to staff error.  In addition, we also identified that 

student attendance records were not maintained for two students within our sample.  However, we confirmed 

that this did not impact on the claiming of credits for any student.   

There is a risk that credits are claimed incorrectly in future due to incorrect calculation of the required date, or 

lack of appropriate attendance records, resulting in over-claiming of credits and potential funding clawbacks. 

We recommend that the College reminds staff of the importance of maintaining up-to-date attendance records 

for all full-time or part-time students attending courses within the College.   
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Sample checks should also be performed over required dates calculated by the system when completing the 

FES return to confirm the dates have been calculated appropriately. 

Risk rating: 2   

Management response:   

We appreciate the importance of complete registers and it is an ongoing discussion point with staff. This will be 

raised with Centre Heads and we will conduct sample checks of the 25% date quarterly aligned to the FES 

quarterly returns. 

To be actioned by: Student Systems Manager / Student Systems Co-ordinator  

No later than:  Commencing October 2017  

 

3. Additional support needs classification 

We reviewed a sample of students to confirm that where students identified that they had additional support 

needs, they had been contacted by the Student Support team and a PSLP had been put in place, where 

appropriate.  Whilst we did not identify any instances in which students had not been offered additional support 

where required, we did identify in three instances that Unit-E had not been correctly updated to reflect that 

students had disabilities.   

There is a risk that students are not clearly identified as having disabilities as student details are not updated 

correctly into Unit-E, which could delay the provision of additional support to that student. 

We recommend that staff are reminded to ensure that students are correctly identified as having disabilities 

within Unit-E. 

Risk rating: 1   

Management response:   

We accept that recording disability is in the interest of the student and may affect the Colleges ability to provide 

the necessary support.  All Staff will be reminded to ensure that students record a disability on their enrolment 

form and that this is recorded on the unit-e system.  

To be actioned by: Student Systems Manager  

No later than:  November 2017 

 

4. Open/distance learning programmes  

We performed testing over a sample of students completing open/distance learning programmes.  Whilst we 

confirmed that the duration of study was set, we were unable to view evidence that milestones had been 

agreed with the students or that there was a formal process in place to monitor student progress on an ongoing 

basis, in line with SFC guidance. 
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There is a risk that the College is unaware of withdrawals from or delays in completing open/distance learning 

programmes until the end of the academic year, as milestone-related actions are not set and student progress 

is not monitored, resulting in a decrease in the number of credits the College can claim against expectations set 

and an overall decrease in the amount of income received for the current academic year. 

We recommend that lecturers are required to agree not only a course duration with students, but also time-

related milestones at the outset of an open/distance learning course.  Progress against these milestones and 

the overall expected course end date should then be monitored by the lecturer on an ongoing basis throughout 

the life of the course, in line with SFC guidance.   

Risk rating: 2   

Management response:  The College will issue each open/distant learning student with an assessment 

schedule as soon as is practicable. 

To be actioned by: Head of Hospitalities and Communities  

No later than:  June 2018 
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Adjustments 

We identified one error in respect of an incorrect superclass being allocated to a summer school course, which 

we confirmed has been adjusted for by the College.   

 

Description Adjustment to number 

of Credits claimed 

% of total Credits 

claimed 

Financial value of 

Credits (£) 

Incorrect allocation of 

superclass 
(0) <0.002% (£1,097.86) 

 

We identified a second error relating to miscalculation of the amount of credits to be claimed for a specific 

course.  This resulted in an under-claim of 28 credits, which equates to funding of £6,181.  The College have 

not made an adjustment within the FES return for the current year due to the minimal financial impact this 

would have, but have confirmed this error will be corrected for 2017/18. 
 

Description Adjustment to number 

of Credits claimed 

% of total Credits 

claimed 

Financial value of 

Credits (£) 

Miscalculations of credits 

to be claimed 
28 <0.06% £6,181 
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Annex A 

Audit Report  

Auditor’s report to the members of the Board of Management of West Lothian College 

We have audited the FES return which has been prepared by West Lothian College under the ‘Credits’ 

Guidance issued 26 August 2016 and which has been confirmed as being free from material misstatement by 

the college’s Principal in her Certificate dated _______.  We conducted our audit in accordance with guidance 

contained in the 2016-17 audit guidance for colleges.  The audit included an examination of the procedures and 

controls relevant to the collection and recording of student data.  We evaluated the adequacy of these controls 

in ensuring the accuracy of the data.  The audit also included examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant 

to the figures recorded in the student data returns.  We obtained sufficient evidence to give us reasonable 

assurance that the returns are free from material misstatement.  

In our opinion:  

 The student data returns have been compiled in accordance with all relevant guidance.  

 Adequate procedures are in place to ensure the accurate collection and recording of the data.  

 On the basis of our testing [subject to the exceptions given below] we can provide reasonable assurance 

that the FES return contains no material misstatement.  
 

 

Signature  

Date  

Name of audit firm  

Contact name  

Contact telephone number  

Date FES returned  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

© Scott-Moncrieff Chartered Accountants 2017. All rights reserved. “Scott-Moncrieff” refers to Scott-Moncrieff 

Chartered Accountants, a member of Moore Stephens International Limited, a worldwide network of 

independent firms. 

 

Scott-Moncrieff Chartered Accountants is registered to carry on audit work and regulated for a range of 

investment business activities by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland. 
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Audit Committee 
 
College Audit Rolling Action Plan 

The College Audit Action Plan shows progress in implementing previously 
agreed Internal Audit recommendations.  The attached table shows the 
position as at November 2017.  All recommendations in the plan are 
complete. 
 
Action 
 
The Committee is asked to note progress against plan. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services 
30 November 2017 
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College Audit Action Plan 
 

2015-16 – 1 August 2015 – 31 July 2016 
 
Status November  2016 November 2017 
 Priority     

4-5 
Priority  

3 
Priority 

1-2 
Priority     

4-5 
Priority  

3 
Priority 

1-2 
Completed recommendations by original deadline (subject 
to Internal Audit Review) 
 

- 1 - - 
 
 

- - 

Completed recommendations by extended deadline 
(subject to Internal Audit Review) 
 

1 2 4 - - - 

Outstanding recommendations on target  
 

- - 1 - - - 

Outstanding recommendations past agreed deadline 
 

- 2 - - - - 

Total 
 

1 5 5 - - - 

 

2016-17 – 1 August 2016 – 31 July 2017 
 
Status November  2016 November 2017 
 Priority     

4-5 
Priority  

3 
Priority 

1-2 
Priority     

4-5 
Priority  

3 
Priority 

1-2 
Completed recommendations by original deadline (subject 
to Internal Audit Review) 
 

- - - - 
 
 

- 2 

Completed recommendations by extended deadline 
(subject to Internal Audit Review) 
 

- - - - - - 

Outstanding recommendations on target  
 

- - - - - - 

Outstanding recommendations past agreed deadline 
 

- - - - - - 

Total 
 

- - - - - 2 
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2016-17 

  No Audit Report 
Topic  

Report 
Date 

Background Recommendation College 
Response 

Responsibility  Deadline 
 

Status Update/ 
Comments 

Revised Deadline 
 

1 Budget Setting 
and Monitoring 
– Budget setting 
and monitoring 
process 

March 
2017 

Provide further 
guidance to staff on 
how to complete key 
budget processes.  
 
There is a risk that 
staff are unaware of 
budget setting and 
monitoring roles, 
responsibilities and 
processes. This 
could impair financial 
management and 
related outcomes.  

Guidance should provide more detail 
of how to budget, as well as setting 
out the key stages.  
Procedures to formalise the good 
practice in place within Finance for 
management accounts production 
should also be documented.  
 
Priority 2 

Agreed Finance 
Manager 

December 
2017 

 Agreed - Detailed procedures will be prepared and 
embedded into the financial procedures and attached to 
the Budget Flowchart.  
A detailed procedure will be prepared and embedded 
into the Financial Procedures.  
 
September 2017 Update 
In progress. 
 
 
 
November 2017 Update 
 
Complete 
 

 

           

2 Portfolio 
Planning – 
Curriculum 
Planning 
Process 

March 
2017 

The audit found that 
the Centre Heads 
were aware of overall 
curriculum planning 
roles and 
responsibilities, 
curriculum planning 
processes (including 
roles and 
responsibilities) have 
not been fully and 
formally 
documented.  
 
There was a risk that 
some staff are 
unaware of 
curriculum planning 
processes, resulting 
in inconsistencies in 
approach by Centre 
Heads. In particular, 
newer staff members 
may not be aware of 
their full 
responsibilities.  

The College should more formally 
document and communicate the 
annual curriculum planning process. 
This should be reviewed on an 
annual basis to reflect the most up-
to-date curriculum planning priorities. 
 
Priority 2  
 

Agreed  Vice Principal, 
Curriculum & 
Planning 

September
2017 

 
 
 

Agreed 
 
September 2017 Update 
Guidance being prepared, will be issued by end 
September 2017  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 2017 Update 
 
Complete 
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Audit Committee 
 
Audit Committee’s Annual Report to the Board of Governors 

The Financial Memorandum between the College and the Scottish Funding 
Council states that the Audit Committee must produce an annual report for the 
Board of Governors. 

 A draft report is attached to this paper. 
 
Action 
 
The Committee is invited to discuss and approve the draft report for the year 
ended 31 July 2017. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services 
30 November 2017 
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Audit Committee  
 
Audit Committee Report to the Board of Governors  
 
Period: Year ended 31 July 2017 
 
1 Introduction 
 
 In complying with the duties of the Audit Committee, as expressed in its 

Terms of Reference, the Committee has met over the year, to consider 
the annual financial statements, health & safety reports, review the 
financial and other control systems, and to consider significant relevant 
reports from the Scottish Funding Council and other bodies. 

 
 What follows is a summary for the year, and the committee’s opinion 

thereof in respect of:- 
 

i) Audit Committee Administrative Matters 
ii) Internal Audit 
iii) External Audit 
iv) Other Relevant Matters 

 
2 Audit Committee Administrative Matters 
 
 The previous Audit Committee Report to the Board of Governors was 

submitted in 2016 and covered the year 1 August 2015 to 31 July 2016. 
 
 During the period, membership of the Audit Committee was as follows:- 
 

Graham Hope Chair 1/8/16 – 31/7/17 
Simon Ashpool Member 1/8/16 - 31/7-17 
Sue Cook Member 1/8/16 – 31/7/17 
Cynthia Guthrie Member 1/8/16 – 24/1/17 
Norman Ross Member 1/8/16 – 31/7/17 

 
 The Principal also attended meetings, although not a member. 
 
 The Secretary to the Board also attended meetings.    
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3 Internal Audit 
 

3.1 The College’s internal audit service was provided by Scott 
Moncrieff.  Scott Moncrieff was appointed in October 2014 for a 
three year period. 
 

 The fees for the internal audit work contained in the Accounts was 
£33,000. 

 
 3.2 During the period August 2016-July 2017 the following areas were 

reviewed: 
 

(1) Budget Setting & Monitoring 
(2)     Purchasing & Creditors 
(3)     Payroll & Expenses 
(4)     Corporate Governance 
(5)     Organisational Wellbeing 
(6)     Portfolio Planning 

 
 3.3 The reports identified areas for improvement and a rolling action 

plan has been produced by the College to ensure that these 
improvements are made. 

   
3.4 Summary of Grades 
 

The table below provides a summary of grades over the last 3 
years.   
 
Grade* 5 4 3 2 1 Total 
2016-17 0 1 7 15 1 24 
2015-16 0 2 8 7 4 21 
2014-15 0 1 11 8 0 20 
 
*Grade Definition 
5 -  Very high risk exposure – Major concerns requiring immediate   

Board attention. 
4 -  High risk exposure – Absence/failure of significant key  

controls. 
3 -  Moderate risk exposure – Not all key control procedures are 

working effectively. 
2 -  Limited risk exposure – Minor control procedures are not in 

place/not working effectively. 
1 -  Efficiency/housekeeping point 
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In addition to the above reviews Internal Audit also undertook an 
external validation of the Board of Governor’s self-assessment of 
Board Effectiveness as required by the 2016 Code of Good 
Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and in line with the Scottish 
Funding Council’s guidance. 
 

4 External Audit 
 

4.1 The college’s external audit service is provided by Mazars, as 
appointed by Audit Scotland, for a five year period commencing 
2017. This is the first year of the external audit service being 
provided by Mazars.   

  
  Although the College does not appoint Mazars, the Audit 

Committee will however continue to monitor the scope and quality 
of their work.   

 
4.2   The fees for the period, as contained in the Accounts, were 

£13,000. 
 
4.3 The College generated a deficit before other gains and losses in 

the year of £277,000 (2016 - deficit of £595,000), with total 
comprehensive income surplus of £2,868,000 (2016 – deficit of 
£1,891,000).  The total comprehensive income in 2017 included an 
unrealised surplus on revaluation of assets of £2,221,000 (2016 – 
Nil) and an actuarial gain in respect of pension funds of £924,000 
(2016 – loss of £1,296,000).  After transfer of £189,000 from the 
revaluation reserve, the cumulative deficit on the Income and 
Expenditure account decreased by £836,000 from £12,109,000 
deficit to £11,273,000 deficit. 

  
The cumulative deficit at the year-end comprised £137,000 for 
holiday pay accrual, £2,685,000 for voluntary agreed PFI 
termination loan, £3,953,000 for early retirement provisions, 
£4,416,000 for defined benefit pension obligations and £82,000 for 
trading activities (see Note 16). 

 
The College is reporting net total liabilities of £4,833,000 in its 
balance sheet which is due to the reclassification of deferred 
Government Grant as deferred income within creditors and 
allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more 
than one year as appropriate.    
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4.4 Mazars provided an unqualified Audit Report. 
 

 
5 Risk Management 
 
 The College is required to implement policies and procedures 

concerning risk management.  During 2016-17 the Committee received 
regular Risk Management Reports. 

 
 
6 Health & Safety 
 
 The committee received and reviewed regular H&S reports as part of its 

remit to provide assurance to the Board of Governors that the College 
has in place appropriate policies and procedures to promote and 
safeguard the health and safety of staff, students and all stakeholders 
and satisfies current legislation. 

 
 
7      Annual Report on Performance Indicators – Internal and External     

Audit year ended 31 July 2017 
 

Internal Audit 

 Actual 
 

Budget 
 

Notes 

 
Cost 
Number of days 
Average cost per day 
Completion of agreed operational plan 

 
£27,000* 

35 
£771 

100% 

 
£17,850 

35 
£510 

100% 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
*Total Cost excludes the cost of the Board effectiveness Review.  The higher 
than budgeted cost reflects the timing of invoice payments. 
 
External Audit 

 Actual 
 

Budget 
 

Notes 

 
Cost 
Number of days 
Average cost per day 

 
£13,000 

35 
£371 

 
£14,270 

35 
£408 
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Reporting 

 Actual 
 

Deadline 
 

Notes 

Statutory Accounts  
Management Letter 

31 Dec 17 
31 Dec 17 

31 Dec 17 
31 Dec 17 

(1) 

 
  
 
Notes 
 

(1) This assumes that the Board of Governors approve the accounts. 
 
 
8 Value for Money 
 

The college has a Value for Money Policy and the Audit Committee is 
satisfied that arrangements have been put in place to promote economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. 

 
 
9 Conclusion 
 
 On the basis of the above the Audit Committee is satisfied that the 

College’s risk management, control and governance systems are 
effective. 

 
The Board is asked to note this report of activities. 

 
 
 
Graham Hope 
Chair Audit Committee 
30 November 2017 
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Audit Committee 
 
Strategic Risk Register November 2017 Update  
 
 
Introduction 
    
The Strategic Risk Register for 2017/2018 was reviewed by the Audit Committee in 
September 2017 to take account of: 
 
• The College Regional Plan 2017-2020 
• Performance in 2016/2017 
• Progress with the Employer Association and National Bargaining 
• The Government Spending Review 
• Continued legislative changes 

 
We have therefore reviewed our five key strategic risks to take account of the above, 
support the Governments ambition to better align enterprise and skills for the 
economy, and ensure that our performance demonstrates best value for our 
learners, our community and strategic partners and the public purse. 
 
Strategic Risks 2017/2018 
 
• Developing the Young Workforce 
• Developing Scotland’s Workforce 
• Widening Access to Learning and Skills 
• Building Enterprise and Innovation 
• Ensuring Sustainability 
 

Risk Appetite and Tolerance 
 
The Board of Governors have set the appetite for risk as being open to taking 
measured risks in relation to our planning, wider access strategies and learning 
innovation with confidence in the decision making delegated to the Senior Team. 
The Board however remain more cautious in the approaches to legal risks which 
expose the College to claims and litigation and to those risks which could have major 
financial impact. The tolerance thresholds set for the key risks reflect this. 
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November 2017 Update 
 
Key Risk 1   Developing the Young Workforce 
   Risk maintained as Medium 
 
Performance and activity on school /college programmes for 2016/2017 was positive 
overall with Senior Phase enrolments increased by from 476 to 534 and learner 
success improved by 8% to 68%. This was the third year of sustained improvement. 
 
The risk is maintained as medium however as whilst there has been a refresh of 
strategic arrangements for the school/ college programmes there are still some 
challenges in recruiting  to the extended suite of Foundation Apprenticeship (FA’s) 
programmes and one of the programmes recruited in 2016/2017 had very poor 
retention. 
 
The college provided a really lively and engaging induction to the 2017/2018 FA 
programmes and successfully recruited 75 and retained 71 against a target of 112, 
albeit we had set ourselves a stretching target. This was a significant increase on 
2016/2017 when we only had two FA programmes. 
 
Overall numbers enrolled and retained on the schools wider vocational pathway 
programmes are currently circa 470. 
 
The risk attached to this area is less about financial or credit impact and more about 
reputation and delivery of Government and Funding Council priorities given the 
continued focus on the School’s Senior Vocational Pathways. 
 
Whilst we have fallen slightly short of our own recruitment targets for Foundation 
Apprenticeships, at National level West Lothian continues to be an area where 
College/School Partnership activity and performance is well above the average and 
there have been no concerns voiced by the Funding Council in terms of our 
Outcome Agreement. 
 
We are starting our marketing activities with schools at an even earlier stage this 
year as we intend further expansion of the FA programmes to 198 places for 
2018/2019. 
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Key Risk 2 Developing Scotland’s Workforce 
   Risk maintained as High 
 
The year has started with very successful recruitment to our full time vocational 
programmes and the majority of our part time programmes. From this we have 
already generated around 42,157 credits towards our target of 43,988 with a 
significant number of enrolments still to be undertaken throughout the year. 
 
Our Self Evaluation Report for Education Scotland has just been completed and 
shows that in terms of Success and Learner Attainment for 2016/2017: 
 
• The College delivered 44,085 credits against a target of 43,499, over target by 

586 credits and over target for the third consecutive year. 
• The average learner success rate increased by 5% to 73%  
• Full Time Higher Education success has increased by 3% to 73% 
• Part Time Higher Education success has increased by 13% to 79% 
• Further Education Part Time success has increased by 6% to 76% 
 
In addition the college had a significant number of key highlights and achievements 
across many curriculum areas.  
 
However 
 
Further Education Full Time (FEFT) success declined by 2% to 62%  and as the 
FEFT portfolio represents around 50% of our funded activity the risk for this theme is 
maintained as high. 
 
This is a continued cause of concern as despite a range of programme 
improvements made last year it represents a two year trend and attainment is one of 
the Governments top priorities. 
 
Key actions for 2017/2018 include learning and teaching observations for all 
lecturing staff, encouraging best practice by pairing up Centres and systematic 
review of data at granular level to better inform improvements. 
 
A full review of the entire Curriculum Portfolio took place earlier in November to 
ensure that our programmes can support optimum learner engagement and success. 
 
The Board has also established a short life working group to provide strategic 
expertise and challenge.  
 
*Note an emerging issue with 2015/2016 HEFT data to be discussed at Committee 
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Key Risk 3   Widening Access 
  Risk reduced to Medium 
 
The college made good progress with the majority of equalities targets in 2016/2017 
and in the last three years an average of 53% of all College activity was delivered to 
those learners within SIMD 40% most deprived postcodes.  
 
Specific recruitment from SIMD 10% was above the regional target and learner 
success for those from SIMD 10 was 74% which was above the college average. 
 
The number of learners enrolled and declaring a disability rose to 773, an increase of 
93 on the previous year.  
 
Male success increased by 1% to 67% in 2016-17 
 
The number of learners from BME backgrounds rose to 4% (218) of all enrolments, a 
rise of 1% on the previous year with attainment at 75%, a 10% increase on the 
previous year. 
 
ESOL provision was successful with attainment at 91%  
 
The college has a full week of “Equalities” activities planned for 11th December. 
 
However on the important area of addressing gender under representation on 
particular courses there has been little progress. There is a raft of awareness raising 
activities with schools underway. 
 
Whilst we have an increasing number of Higher National students progressing to 
University almost half of them do not get places with Advanced Standing meaning 
they repeat a year of study at the same level and 26% of applicants to University are 
not placed. This is being addressed through negotiation of additional Articulation 
Agreements and further tracking of unsuccessful applicants. 
 
The college is very good at supporting young people who are Care Leavers however 
we don’t always have them identified at an early enough stage and we are working 
with partners in the schools to share information at an earlier point. 
 
Progress overall has been good and there is no current financial or reputational 
impact envisaged however there are still areas where work is on- going with some of 
our partners and therefore the risk  is medium. 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item 17.53  
 

Paper 11  
West Lothian College 
             30 November 2017 
   
 

AC/301117/Ser 5 
 

 
Key Risk 4  Enterprise and Innovation 
   Risk maintained as Medium 
 
The college had a very good financial out turn in 2016/2017 and much of this was 
due to the performance of the Workforce Development and Commercial team 
delivering high quality programmes and generating significant surplus for investment. 
 
2017/2018 has started well with increased SDS contracts for the FA programmes, 
continuation of a high performing Children’s Hearing Contract, roll out of 
programmes to employers utilising the new Flexible Workforce Fund, new 
International contracts and an increased range of Vocational Qualifications delivered 
in the workplace funded by several different Local Authorities. 
 
We are now approved to deliver the new Individual Training Account scheme and 
are exploring opportunities with the new College Innovation fund. 
 
The risk is maintained at medium as we still await the next phase of procurement in 
relation to the CHS contract and due to the size of this contract the potential loss 
would be significant next year. 
 
Our performance on the contract is exceptional however and we will be a strong 
contender for the new contract. 
 
The other key risk is our ability to deliver the full value of the Flexible Workforce 
Fund within a very tight timescale. We have made good progress but the challenge 
is significant. 
 
 
Key Risk 5 Ensuring Sustainability: 

Risk maintained as High  
 
 
The college had a very successful year in 2016/2017 with a good financial out turn, 
all deadlines for returns met, successful additional funds for student support, a 
positive staff survey, new Health and Safety Officer and reports implemented, new 
HR team and support model implemented, and investments made in Estates and 
ICT. 
 
The Governance was evaluated as good and the Board invited external validation of 
this which was very positive. 
 
The College was not exposed to any liabilities. 
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Whilst our Board Secretary resigned as a result of relocation plans earlier this year 
we have been successful in recruiting a new Board Secretary to fill this key role very 
quickly. 

Our Procurement Officer recently left to take up a new position with Edinburgh 
University however as APUC manages this risk through a shared service model we 
already have a replacement Officer so our exposure to risk is minimal. 

Current forecasting and returns are on target and the first set of Management 
Accounts is not identifying anything unexpected with areas of concern i.e. Flexible 
Workforce Fund and some SDS Contract values already highlighted in the previous 
risk. 

Budgets have been realistically set and sessions have been held with all Managers 
to go over key assumptions in the budget. 

As we had an increase in our student support funds allocation we do not envisage 
any risk of potential over spend this year. 

The rating remains high to reflect the importance of the risk and to acknowledge the 
caution of the Board in this area particularly in relation to National Bargaining and the 
likelihood of any renewed Industrial Action in 2017/2018. 
 
The pay award for support staff for 17/18 was agreed however there has been no 
pay award for lecturing staff agreed beyond the significant increases paid to achieve 
harmonisation.  Whilst West Lothian College lecturers benefitted from harmonisation 
adjustments, that was not the case across the sector and therefore discussions are 
continuing. 
 
 
Action 
 
The Committee is invited to discuss the Strategic Risk update and to consider the 
appropriateness of current mitigating actions being taken to reduce or manage 
escalated risks. 
 
 
Mhairi Harrington 
Principal & Chief Executive 
30 November 2017 
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Risk Register 2017/2018 
 

Context:  Regional Plan “Opening Doors”  2017-2020 

West Lothian Community Planning Local Outcomes Improvement Plan 

College Risk Policy and Procedures  

College Board of Governors Risk Tolerance 
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Risk Register 2017/18 Gross Risk   Current Risk 
Key Risk  1 
 
Senior Lead:  
Simon Earp 

Risk Description and 
Consequence 

Likelihood Impact Risk  
Rating 

Risk Mitigation  Update  Likelihood Impact  Risk  
Rating 

 
Developing the 

Young 
Workforce 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ineffective partnership 
strategy with the schools 
impacting on the 
development of the 
young workforce in West 
Lothian. 
 
Recruitment, enrolment, 
credit and attainment 
targets for schools 
vocational programmes 
not met. 
 
Unmet targets leading to 
financial instability, 
reputational damage and 
loss of future market 
share. 
 
Insufficient information 
and long term skills 
planning which could 
result in a portfolio 
misaligned with the 
economy. 
 
The impact of the 
Learner Journey 15-24 
Review could have 
unintended 
consequences for 
schools/college/university 
partnership activity. 
 

3 4 12 
 
 
 

Strategic partnership 
being reviewed with a 
campaign in schools to 
promote college 
programmes and 
specifically Foundation 
Apprenticeships. 
 
Annual plan under 
development detailing 
events, actions and 
responsibilities 
between the 
Council/Schools and 
the College 
 
Closer monitoring of 
applications to flag 
programmes which are 
under recruiting  
  
Targets in Regional 
Outcome Agreement 
for schools recruitment 
and attainment. 
 
Significantly expanded 
employer and school 
engagement team to 
support FA’s 
 
Use of SDS Regional 
Skills Assessments 
and the introduction of 

75 FA starts recruited 
with 4 withdrawals to 
date 
 
New joint proposal 
successful in 
partnership with WLC 
for FA delivery 2018-
2020 
 
College hosting 
launch of senior 
phase opportunities 
to be attended by 
staff drawn from all 
WL schools to take 
place early Dec 
 
Draft 
College/Schools plan 
produced and 
currently being 
reviewed 
 
Good liaison 
between Centres and 
marketing resulting in 
overall enrolment 
targets being 
exceeded but some 
courses failed to 
reach targets 
 
Summaries of Key 

2 3 6 
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Employers not seeing the 
benefits of engaging  
MAs 
 
Lack of awareness of FA 
amongst students and 
parents leading to under 
recruitment 
 
HEIs not fully recognising 
FAs in setting entry 
criteria and therefore 
diminishing the attraction 
of students undertaking 
them.  

FA frameworks to 
inform a review of 
Schools portfolio 
 
Identifying the 
opportunities to deliver 
FAs outwith WL 
 
College hosted a 
Scottish Government 
workshop on the 
Learner Journey 
Review. 
 
Review of MA 
provision and future 
expansion instigated 
 
Principal on National 
DWY Board and Vice 
Chair of DYW 
Regional group. 
 
VP C&E on Council 
DYW group 

LMI reports are being 
used to inform 
Curriculum Portfolio 
review. Decision 
imminent to purchase 
additional market 
intelligence for 
further curriculum 
planning from 
January 2018 
 
New strategic liaison 
group formed of 
senior management 
drawn from the 
College and WLC 
focussing one three 
areas; Developing 
Young Workforce, 
City Deal and 
Attainment 
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Risk Register 2017-2018 Gross Risk   Current Risk 
Key Risk  2 
 
Senior Lead: 
George 
Hotchkiss 

Risk Description and 
Consequence 

Likelihood Impact Risk  
Rating 

Risk Mitigation Update  Likelihood Impact  Risk  
Rating 

 
Developing 
Scotland’s 
Workforce 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Insufficient information 
and long term skills 
planning which could 
result in a portfolio 
misaligned with 
economic 
developments. 
 
Recruitment, 
enrolment, credit and 
attainment targets for 
full and part time 
vocational programmes 
not met, affecting 
sustainability 
 
Insufficient vocational 
experiences restricting 
development of 
employability skills for 
learners. 
 
Poor quality learning 
and teaching impacting 
on college reputation 
and future market 
share. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 5 10 
 
 
 

ROA process and 
annual portfolio review 
utilises Regional Skills 
Assessments, LMI and 
economic statistics to 
ensure programmes 
aligned with local, 
regional and national 
economy. 
 
Clear targets and 
processes for 
recruitment supported 
by Marketing campaign 
and activities. Track  
Record of achieving 
credit target 
 
Learning and teaching 
enhancement  and 
attainment plan in 
development 
 
All full time 
programmes 
incorporate vocational 
skills development or 
volunteering 
experiences. 
 
 
 
 

Portfolio review 
process in place, 
informed by LMI. 
 
 
Generated 42,157 
credits towards target 
of 43,988. 
 
Recruitment from 
SHEP schools is 
currently above 
target. 
 
Early withdrawal at 
3%, down 1% from 
2016-17. 
 
 
 
Centre and College 
enhancement plans in 
place (pending formal 
endorsement by SFC 
and Education 
Scotland).   
 
Almost all 
programmes now 
include vocational 
experience. 
 
 

3 4 12 
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Changes in PI 
measurement show 
apparent performance 
reduction.   
 
 
 
 
Increase in learner 
negative destinations 
 

 
Planned timetable of 
classroom 
observations and 
teaching skills 
development. 
 
 Implementation of 
“Best practice” to 
improve performance 
 
 
Actions arising from 
self- evaluation 
monitored 

 
PI’s 16/17 
 
Average Learner 
Success Increased by 
5% to 73% 
FTHE increased by 
3% to 73% 
PTHE increased by 
13% to 79% 
FEPT increased by 
6% to 76%. 
 
FEFT declined by 2% 
to 62% 
 
 
 
Plan in place to 
ensure all teaching 
staff receive feedback 
on observed teaching 
practice. 
 
 
Action plan in place to 
ensure twinning of 
teams within College 
and external partners. 
 
Self-evaluation action 
plans are being 
reviewed, monitored 
and updated. 
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Risk Register 2017-2018 Gross Risk   Current Risk 
Key Risk  3 
 
Senior Lead: 
George 
Hotchkiss  

Risk Description and 
Consequence 

Likelihood Impact Risk  
Rating 

Risk Mitigation Update  Likelihood Impact  Risk  
Rating 

 
Widening 

Access 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Failure to recruit 
disadvantaged learners 
on to full and part time 
college programmes 
impacting on delivery of 
Government ambition for 
“Inclusive Growth” 
 
College learners 
attaining  HNC/HND 
SCQF levels not 
achieving advanced 
standing to University 
 
 
 
Failure to address 
gender segregation in 
keeping with gender 
action plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
Insufficient student 
support strategies 
resulting in negative 
destinations 
 
 

5 5 25 
 
 
 

Marketing strategy to 
target specific 
communities and 
groups e.g 
SIMD10/BME/Care 
Experienced/SHEP 
schools/Additional  
Support needs 
 
Database of 
articulation 
agreements and 
targets to increase 
advanced standing 
 
 
Gender Action Plan in 
place and monitoring 
progress through 
Equalities Committee 
It should be noted that 
“ gender” course 
choices have been 
difficult to influence 
and that traditional 
career paths may 
remain the norm  
 
 
 
 

2016-17 evidences a 
5% increase in 
recruitment from 
SIMD 10% and a 2% 
increase in successful 
completions. 2017-18, 
early indications are 
of a similar trend. 
 
2016-17 evidences a 
1% increase in 
recruitment from BME 
groups and a 10% 
increase in successful 
completion. 2017-18 
early indications as at 
a similar trend. 
 
 
Articulation 
agreements being 
reviewed. 
 
Gender action plan 
being monitored by 
the Equalities 
Committee. 
 
 
 
 

3 3 9 
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Care leavers continue to 
be disadvantaged and 
experience negative 
destinations 
 
 
Equalities reporting 
highlights limited 
progress and results in 
poor reputation with 
stakeholders and 
partners 

Guidance, support and  
monitoring of 
vulnerable learners to 
track progress and 
support attainment 
through learning 
support team 
 
Liaison to be 
established to improve 
learner transition 
information and 
opportunities 
 
Membership of 
Community Planning 
Board, Steering group, 
DYW Group, 
Economic Forum and 
other appropriate 
committees. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
All students who 
reported on ‘additional 
needs’ were offered a 
support interview 
during September 
2017. This was done 
in December, 2016-17 
ELS currently 
supporting 187 
students compared 
with 139 this time in 
2016-17. 
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Risk Register 2017-2018 Gross Risk   Current Risk 
Key Risk  4 
 
Senior Lead: 
Simon Earp 

Risk Description and 
Consequence 

Likelihood Impact Risk  
Rating 

Risk Mitigation Update  Likelihood Impact  Risk  
Rating 

 
Enterprise and 

Innovation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Failure to achieve 
income and surplus 
targets for all 
commercial programmes 
and contracts. 
 
Failure to deliver high 
quality commercial 
/employer based  
provision leading to a 
loss of market share and 
future revenues 
 
Insufficient new business 
 
Failure to deliver on 
Government ambition for  
Up-skilling in the 
Workplace  
 
Inability to deliver 
against targets for 
International Activity 
funded through Erasmus 
 
Lack of engagement with 
new “Innovation” funds 
for sector restricting 
growth and potential 

4 4 16 
 
 
 

Realistic and attainable 
commercial targets 
developed for 
2017/2018 
 
Advanced preparation 
for CHS Procurement 
 
Costs control and 
monthly management 
accounts to monitor 
contribution 
 
New key account 
management approach 
to be introduced 
supported by CRM 
system 
 
Review of MA 
provision and future 
expansion instigated 
 
Web site content for 
Commercial offering 
and capability under 
development 
 
Refresh of NHS 
relationship and review 
of potential expansion 
of provision 

Early indications 
suggest all areas are 
on target 
 
MA recruitment is 
mixed with new 
contracts (eg Greggs 
and SDS) being off-set 
with slower recruitment 
on existing contracts 
(eg Mitsubishi) 
 
Flexible Workforce 
Development Fund 
awarded but some 
challenges in 
generating proposals 
by Dec deadline 
 
New contract awarded 
by CHS for £82k for 
delivery by March 
2018 
 
Main contract 
procurement expected 
to commence Jan 
2018 
 
CRM system 
demonstrated and 
project plan being 

3 3 9 
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Options appraisal to be 
undertaken on 
International 
opportunities 
 
Engagement with 
National Innovation 
working group 
instigated 

drafted. 
 
New web site tender 
under preparation for 
the development of a 
new College web site. 
Tender to go live in 
Dec. 
 
New delivery team for 
element of the NHS 
programme recruited. 
Internal meetings 
instigated to draw up  
new College-wide NHS 
engagement plan 
 
 
Innovation Voucher 
proposal developed 
with Livingston FC. 
 
Discussions 
commenced with 
Construict8on 
Innovation Centre in 
relation to City Deal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 



July 2017/Excshdr/Strategic Information 2017-20                                      10 
 

 

 

Risk Register 2017-2018 Gross Risk   Current Risk 
Key Risk  5 
 
Senior Lead:  
Jennifer Mclaren 

Risk Description and 
Consequence 

Likelihood Impact Risk  
Rating 

Risk Mitigation Update  Likelihood Impact  Risk  
Rating 

 
Ensuring 
Sustainability  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Financial planning 
insufficiently robust 
 
Financial monitoring 
insufficient to meet 
deadlines and 
Government 
requirements 
 
Insufficient student 
support funds to meet 
demand  
 
Inability to negotiate 
flexible affordable 
contracts with staff and 
insufficient funds to 
meet National Pay 
Agreements 
 
HR Strategies 
ineffective in  
recruiting, retaining 
and developing highly 
skilled staff for the 
future 
 
Failure to adhere to 
Governance standards 
&  Finance 

5 5 25 
 
 
 
 
 

Robust portfolio 
planning involving VP’s 
and Finance Manager 
 
Monthly Management 
Accounts and Resource 
Returns 
 
In year redistribution 
exercise 
 
Liaison with Employer 
Association/ Finance 
Directors network and 
SFC 
 
Recruitment policy & 
procedure and Absence 
Management policy in 
place 
 
HR Business Partner 
model implemented 
 
Staff Survey 
undertaken and “Staff 
Engagement” plan to be 
rolled out  
 
Professional Learning 

 
Latest estimate 
indicates that student 
support budget will 
meet demand. 
 
Full portfolio review 
being undertaken to 
inform 2018-19 
Curriculum Plan. 
 
Academic Staff pay 
Award for 2017-18 still 
to be agreed.  
Discussions regarding 
Terms & Conditions 
still ongoing.  Potential 
for industrial action if 
agreement is not 
reached. 
 
Business Case being 
prepared for Scottish 
Government on behalf 
of college sector to 
obtain permission to 
continue with 
commercial insurance. 
 
 

3 4 12 
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Regulations and 
Policies exposing the 
college to negative 
consequences 
 
Failure to generate 
funds and plan 
optimum investment in 
the college and its 
learners 
 
Failure to implement 
Estates and Lifecycle 
Maintenance 
strategies resulting in a 
deteriorating facility 
 
Failure to reduce 
carbon footprint and 
impact negatively on 
the environment 
 
Failure to implement 
legislative 
requirements and 
robust internal controls 
which may expose the 
Board and College to 
reputational damage, 
financial claims, 
liabilities and 
prosecution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Plans undertaken 
 
Code of Good 
Governance adopted 
 
Finance Regulations 
and Scheme of 
Delegation updated 
 
Investment target and 
timeous management 
accounts to support 
planned investments 
 
Estates Strategy and 
Lifecycle Maintenance 
Plan regularly reviewed 
 
Estates annual 
maintenance plan and 
schedule of revenue 
projects in place 
 
Participating in SFC 
Condition Survey 
Exercise 
 
Carbon Reduction Plan 
in place  
 
“No Waste” campaign 
2017/2018 
 
Health and Safety and 
Environment 
Committee in place  
  
Health and Safety 
Officer in post reports to 

New Secretary to the 
Board appointed who 
does not have a 
background in college 
sector governance. 
 
Procurement Officer 
leaving to take up a 
new post.  New 
appointment to be 
made through APUC. 
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Board 
 
Internal Audit Three 
Year Plan.  Auditors 
report directly to the 
Board 
 
Equalities Committee in 
place 
 
Employment Law 
advice available 
 
Procurement specialist 
in post 
 
Board Secretary in post 
 
Business Continuity 
Plans completed 
 
Data Protection 
analysis underway 
 
Insurance Policy in 
place 
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Risk Assessment and Evaluation  
Risk Classification Matrix 

 
Impact 
 
1  Insignificant (<£50k) 
2  Minor (£50 - £100k) 
3  Significant (£100 - £300k) 
4  Major (£300 - £500k) 
5  Catastrophic (>£500k) 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

5 10 15 20 25 
 Evaluation of Risk 

 

4 8 12 16 20 
 

17-25 
 Very High 

 
 

3 6 9 12 15 
 

10-16 
 High 

 
 

2 4 6 8 10 
 

5-9 
 Medium 

 
 

1 2 3 4 5 
 

1-4 
 Low 

 
 

 
    

    
 

   
   

IM
PA

C
T 

LIKELIHOOD 

 

 

 

 

Risk Escalated  

 

 

 

 
Likelihood 
 
1  Very unlikely (Between 1-10% chance) 
2  Unlikely (Between 10-40% chance) 
3  Fairly likely (Between 40-65% chance) 
4  Likely (Between 65-90% chance) 
5  Very likely (More than 90% chance) 
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Audit Committee 
 
Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 
 
The Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure was updated in 2014 in line with the 
introduction of the Enterprise and Regularity Reform Act 2013, and approved 
by the Audit Committee in September 2014. 
 
The Policy and Procedure has been reviewed as part of the 3 year cyclical 
review process. We are not aware of any legislative requirements or best 
practice recommendations that would suggest changes or updates are 
required. One minor change has been made to reflect the job title of the 
Senior HR Business Partner. 
 
Given the responsibility of this Committee to advise the Board on ‘anti-fraud 
policies, whistle-blowing processes, and arrangements for special 
investigations’, members of the Committee are asked to consider and approve 
the reviewed Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure. 
 
 
 
 
Board Secretary 
30 November 2017 
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Procedure 
 
 
 
 

Public Interest Disclosure 
 
 
 
 
October 2017 
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1 Introduction 
 

1.1 All individuals at one time or another have concerns about what is 
happening at work.  Usually these concerns are easily resolved.  
However, when they are about serious malpractice, like fraud or financial 
irregularities, corruption, bribery, dishonesty, acting contrary to staff codes 
of conduct, criminal activities, or creating or ignoring a serious risk to 
health, safety or the environment, it can be difficult to know what to do. 

 
1.2 Staff may be worried about raising such issues or may want to keep 

concerns to themselves, feeling it is none of their business, or that it is 
only suspicion, or that raising the matter would be disloyal to colleagues, 
managers or the organisation.  The College has therefore introduced this 
policy and procedure to deal with legitimate concerns received from and 
about workers, Board members, contractors, agency workers and all 
those associated with the College. 

 
1.3 West Lothian College is committed to high standards of openness, probity 

and accountability, and to conducting its affairs in a responsible manner.  
This policy and procedure is applied to cases covered by a number of 
pieces of legislation including Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998 (PIDA), 
the Bribery Act 2010 and the Enterprise and Regulatory Reform Act 2013. 

 
1.4 The policy offers protection to any individual who discloses concerns, 

provided the disclosure is made in a reasonable belief by the individual 
making the disclosure that it intends to show malpractice.  The protection 
does not extend to those who choose not to raise their concerns under 
this policy. 

 
1.5 The policy extends protection of any disclosure of information which, in 

the reasonable belief of the worker making the disclosure, shows –  
 

• that it is in the public interest; 
• discrimination; 
• fraud; 
• financial irregularities; 
• corruption; 
• bribery; 
• criminal offences; 
• failure or likely failure to comply with a legal obligation; 
• the occurrence or likely occurrence or a miscarriage of justice; 
• damage or likely damage to the environment; or 
• the event that information intended to show any of the above is being or 

is likely to be deliberately concealed. 
 

The College operates a zero tolerance approach to bribery of any form. 
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1.6 This policy is not meant to be another mechanism for employees to blow 
the whistle about breaches of their employment contract.  Such matters 
should be dealt with under the College’s grievance procedure. 

 
1.7 The human resources department is available to provide, in confidence, 

information on the policy and procedure to any individual who has a 
matter of concern and will, if required, offer advice and support. 

 
 
2 How to proceed 
 
 Initial Steps 
 

2.1 Individuals are encouraged to put their name to any disclosures they 
make.  Concerns expressed anonymously are normally less powerful, but 
they will be investigated by the College or by one of the external bodies, 
and recorded.  It will not be possible, however, to keep a person who has 
submitted a concern anonymously informed of the progress and outcome 
of any investigation. 

 
2.2 In deciding the scope of the investigation, the following will be taken into 

account: 
 

• the seriousness of the issues raised; 
• the credibility of the concerns; and 
• the likelihood of confirming the allegation from attributable sources. 

 
2.3 An individual should make a public interest disclosure to the designated 

person, in an envelope marked ‘Private and Confidential’.  The 
“designated person” is the Clerk to the Board of Governors – 

 
The Clerk to the Board of Governors 
West Lothian College 
Almondvale Crescent 
Livingston 
West Lothian 
EH54 7EP 

 
2.4 If the disclosure is about the Clerk to the Board, then the disclosure 

should be made, in an envelope marked ‘Private and Confidential’, to the 
Principal and Chief Executive – 

 
 The Principal and Chief Executive 
 West Lothian College 
 (address as in paragraph 2.3). 

 
2.5 If the individual does not wish to raise the matter with either the 

designated person or the Principal and Chief Executive, then he or she 
may send the disclosure, in an envelope marked ‘Private and 
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Confidential’, to the Chair of the Audit Committee, if the issue falls within 
the purview of that committee, or to the Chair of the Board of Governors, 
as follows – 

 
Chair, Audit Committee 
West Lothian College 

 (address as in paragraph 2.3). 
 
Chair, Board of Governors 
West Lothian College 
(address as in paragraph 2.3). 

 
2.6 In cases involving financial malpractice, the designated person should 

normally act throughout in close consultation with the Principal and Chief 
Executive as the Accounting Officer for the College. 

 
Process 

 
2.7 The designated person will consider the information available to him/her 

and decide the form the investigation should take, ie 
 

• to investigate internally; or 
• to refer the matter to the police; or 
• to call for an independent or external investigation. 

 
2.8 If the decision is that the investigation should be conducted by more than 

one of these means, the designated person will satisfy him/herself that 
such a course of action is warranted, notwithstanding the possibility of 
double jeopardy.  Any investigation of a criminal complaint by the police or 
procurator fiscal, however, will be given precedence.   

 
2.9 Where the matter is to be the subject of an internal inquiry, the designated 

person will then consider how to conclude whether there is a prima face 
case to answer.  This consideration will include determining whether the 
matter raised is sufficiently material, well-founded, credible and 
substantial to justify investigation.  A ruling of “no case to answer” should 
not be taken lightly because, at first sight but without investigation, the 
matter raised appears to be trivial or of personal rather than wider public 
concern. 

 
2.10 Recourse to an official external body will only be used when internal 

procedures have been exhausted or would be inappropriate.  For 
example, an external investigation might well be necessary if the 
complaint is one made against the Principal and Chief Executive and/or 
the Chair of the Board of Governors. 

 
2.11 If the person about whom the disclosure is made is alleged to have 

committed an act of gross misconduct (as detailed in the College’s 
disciplinary procedures), it may be necessary to suspend the member of 
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staff during the period of the investigation.  The designated person will 
consult the Principal and/or the Senior HR Business Partner on the 
relevancy and implementation of the disciplinary procedures for this 
purpose. 

 
Investigation 

 
2.12 Any investigation will be conducted as sensitively and speedily as 

possible, taking account of the interests of the wider public interest, the 
interests of the discloser, the person(s) alleged to have committed 
wrongdoing or malpractice and the College. 

 
2.13 The investigation will not be carried out by the person who will reach a 

decision on the matter.  The designated person will appoint an officer of 
the College to carry out an investigation and report his/her findings to the 
designated person, unless it is immediately obvious that the matter should 
be referred to an external authority for investigation, such as the College’s 
internal or external auditors, the SFC (Scottish Funding Council), Audit 
Scotland or the Police. 

 
2.14 The designated person will advise the Chair of the Board of Governors 

and the Chair of the Audit Committee that an investigation is taking place, 
by whom the investigation is being carried out, and when it is expected to 
report any findings or recommendations. 

 
2.15 The College will treat disclosures in a confidential and sensitive manner.  

The identity of the individual making the disclosure will be kept 
confidential as long as it does not hinder or frustrate the investigation.  
However, the investigation process may need to reveal the source of the 
information and the individual making the disclosure may need to provide 
a statement as part of the evidence required.  The individual will be 
consulted prior to this being implemented. 

 
2.16 The person about whom a disclosure is made will be informed of the 

nature of the disclosure and of the supporting evidence and will be 
allowed to comment, as part of the investigation. 

 
2.17 The designated person will consider the findings of the investigation in 

consultation with the Chair of the Board of Governors and the Chair of the 
Audit Committee and together they will come to a decision. 

 
Feedback 

 
2.18 The designated manager has a duty to ensure that the disclosure is 

investigated as sensitively and expeditiously as possible.  Timescales will 
vary, however, and will depend upon the nature of the allegation and 
whether an external organisation is to be involved in the investigation.   
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2.19 Upon receipt of a disclosure, the designated manager will send 
confirmation of receipt, in writing, within 5 working days, to the person 
making the disclosure.  He/she will inform the discloser as soon as is 
practically possible, and ensuring confidentiality, of what action, if any, is 
to be taken and will keep the discloser informed regularly thereafter of 
progress, at least every 28 days. 

 
2.20 After an initial investigation, other internal procedures may be invoked by 

the designated person, such as –  
 

• disciplinary procedures; 
• grievance or complaints procedures; 
• harassment procedures; or 
• a further more detailed “special” investigation. 

 
2.21 If no action is to be taken, then the individual concerned should be 

informed of the reason for this and allowed the opportunity to remake the 
disclosure to another appropriate person.  This second person will 
consider all the information presented and the procedures which were 
followed.  The outcome of this would be either to confirm that no further 
action is required or that further investigation is required. 

 
 
3 Malicious Allegations 
 

3.1 When raising a concern, an individual must declare any personal interest 
in the matter.  Any false and malicious accusations will be dealt with under 
the College’s Disciplinary Procedures.  Disciplinary action will be 
considered only if there is clear evidence that an individual has used the 
policy to raise false concerns in bad faith. 

 
 
4 Protection 
 

4.1 Whistleblowers will be protected from suffering any detriment, bullying or 
harassment from another employee. 

 
 
5 Reporting of Outcomes 
 

5.1 A report of all disclosures and any subsequent actions will be made by the 
designated person who will retain such reports for 5 years.  In all cases, a 
report of the outcomes of any investigation will be made to the Audit 
Committee, in detail where the issue falls within its purview, and in other 
cases in summary, as a means of allowing the Audit Committee and the 
Board of Governors to monitor the effectiveness of the procedure. 
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Health and Safety Data Analysis Report July-September 2017 

 
Accidents, Incidents and Near Misses. 
 
Introduction 
 
The College is required by statute to record and maintain records of work-related 
accidents.  Certain work-related injuries, cases of disease and near misses must be 
reported to the Health and Safety Executive (HSE). 
 
During this reporting period there have been thirty two HSF1 forms completed relating 
to accidents/incidents and near misses. Of these reports none were reportable to HSE. 
In the same period in 2016 there were thirteen HSF1 completed by first aiders.  
 
The Health and Safety Officer investigates every report to determine if corrective action 
is required.  Details of these investigations can be found in Appendix 1. 
 
Consideration is also given to the category types to determine whether or not a trend is 
developing.  The following graphs detail type and category breakdown for 2017and 
trend analysis from 2013 to the present time 
 

 
Breakdown by type of accident 2017 
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Breakdown by category of accident 2017 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Trend analysis 2013-2017 
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The majority of reports were submitted when the new Academic year commenced at 
the end of August rather than July and early August. Looking back on previous years 
data, we expected to see more accidents involving the use of ‘trade tools’ for example 
knives and chisels however this was not the case. Causes are varied with many 
happening out with the College. 
 
 
Health and Safety Management  

 
The College has the following arrangements in place to control health and safety risks 
in order to meet the legal requirements and show commitment to all stakeholders. 
  
Health, Safety and Environment Committee  
Last HS&E Committee meeting was held on 14 September 2017 
Minutes from meeting have been posted on 
Serengeti 

Yes 

Action points against H&S Officer currently 
outstanding 

None 

Next meeting scheduled for 28 November 2017 
Employer’s Liability Insurance  
Zurich Employers Liability Insurance   Expires on 31 July 18 
Interventions  
HSE Inspections in the last 12 months 0 
Improvement Notices issued in last 12 months 0 
Prohibition Notices issued in last 12 months 0 
Improvements issued by Fire Service in last 12 
months 

0 

Risk assessments All available on Serengeti 
Number of risk assessments due for review Each department reviews risk 

assessments annually or when a 
change of procedure or personnel 
occurs. The Health and Safety 
Officer checks and advises on an 
annual basis too. 

Number of risk assessments to be rewritten  0 
Number of generic risk assessments due for 
review 

All reviewed summer 2017 

Fire Risk Assessment  
Fire Risk Assessment in place Yes 
Review Date September 2018 
Health and Safety Policy  
Policy Statement approved by Mhairi Harrington 
Next Review date May 2018 
Responsibilities currently unassigned 0 
Health and safety Procedures Review Date  
Accident / Incident reporting May 2018 
Lone Working May 2018 
Inspection and Auditing May 2018 
Emergency Evacuation  February 2018 
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Work Placement May 2018 
Excursions  May 2018 
COSHH  May 2018 
First Aid  May 2018 
Lock out / Tag out September 2018 
Noise at Work August 2018 
Fire Safety Actions  
Outstanding actions related to fire inspection 0 
Overdue actions related to fire inspection 0 
Last emergency evacuation drill (daytime) October 2017 
Last emergency evacuation drill (evening) October 2017 
Next emergency evacuation drill (daytime) February 2018 
Next emergency evacuation drill (evening) February 2018 

 

 

Scheduled events and Training 

Six Health, Safety and Environment Committee meetings were scheduled during the 
last twelve months and all took place. Six emergency evacuation drills have taken place 
in the last twelve months. Three were scheduled to take place during office hours and 
three in the evening. No evacuations were carried out during this period; they are 
scheduled for early October. 
 
The Counter Terrorist Evacuation procedure has been approved by the Senior Team. In 
October an emergency meeting was called for all College Team Members. This was 
carried out on the day the invite was sent, the theory behind this was to evoke a 
business continuity review by delivering a scenario which introduced the procedure and 
the new Site Evacuation Alarm which will be sounded after a threat was received which 
warranted an orderly evacuation of the site. The site evacuation alarm will be relayed to 
all in November with the intention of developing a tool box talk for the staff development 
day in December. 
 
Development of the Health and Safety package on Moodle is now underway. All 
COSHH related videos have been uploaded onto the system. This will be the first 
monthly promotion to be highlighted to staff. On completion of view videos staff will be 
asked to complete a quiz to demonstrate their understanding of the topic. This is an 
area which college staff have to develop, with this in mind we plan on up loading the 
safety care video with quiz in stages in time to deliver the monthly update to all staff. 
 

 
 
Changes to Legislation/Guidance 
 
There have been no significant changes to health and safety-related legislation in the 
UK in the reporting period.  
 
 
Consultations 
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There are currently no health and safety-related public consultations which relate to the 
work of the College. 
 



 

 

Appendix 1 Health and Safety Officer – Investigation Findings July to September 2017 

No
. 

Date Accident/Incide
nt/ 
near miss 

HSF1 Detail Investigation 

1 17 July Near miss Student smoking on 
footbridge, holding on to the 
wrong side of bridge with one 
hand dangling down with a 
drop and water below.  

Student was asked to 
climb back over at the 
time by member of 
staff 

2 29 July Accident Member of the public 
attending an external event 
slipped when moving from 
wheelchair to toilet.   
Ambulance was called and 
was taken to hospital as 
precaution. 

Facilities Manager 
present at event, 
overseen ambulance 
arrangement- No 
further action 
required 

3 08 August Near miss Members of staff were 
assembling pop up roller 
banner when it broke, hitting 
staff member on head.  No 
injury or medical treatment 
required 

Old banner has now 
been disposed of. 
No further action 
required 

4 10 August Police incident Emailed threats of extreme 
violence directed at two 
members of staff. Senior 
Team informed and involved 
with police investigation.   

Precautions put in 
place for members of 
staff after discussions 
with Senior Team and 
staff involved. 

5 15 August Police incident Return visit to college by 
same person as on 10/8/17 

Dealt with by police 
and courts, college 
security discussed at 
H&S committee 

6 16 August Near miss Plastic chair back snapped.   
Chair removed from canteen.  

Facilities checked all 
other chairs in the 
area. No further 
action required 

7 21 August Near miss Floor box broke in classroom; 
lecturers foot fell through the 
box.  Facilities replaced with 
new floor box 

No injury sustained, 
other floor boxes 
inspected for 
damage, continuous 
monitoring  

8 22 August Accident Member of staff was using a 
stripping chemical to clean.  
Did not wear gloves which 
resulted in a chemical burn on 
hand. Ran fingers under cold 
water.    

Followed up by Team 
Leader on PPE 
usage and procedure. 

9 25 August Illness Member of staff had a back 
spasm.  First Aider put into 
recovery position and called 

No further action 
required. 



family to collect. 
10 28 August Near miss Access hatch panel above 

fridge fell off.    Facilities 
screwed panel back on. 

No further action. 

11 29 August Illness Student took epileptic seizure. 
First Aider moved student and 
called an ambulance and 
parent.    

A care plan has been 
discussed between  
Dept head and 
student  

12 29 August Near miss Student fell off stool lost 
balance.  Given more robust 
chair. 

No further action 
required 

13 29 August Accident Student cut left thumb when 
using saw.   First Aider 
cleaned cut and dressed 
thumb 

No further action 
required 

14 30 August Illness Student was feeling faint First 
Aider placed her on the floor 
and advised to see GP.  Has 
had similar episodes being 
investigated by hospital, 
parent came to collect.  

No further action 
required    

15 01 September Accident Member of staff cleaning 
metal scraper when it slipped 
in hand and slit thumb.  New 
piece of equipment used was 
not aware of sharpness of 
scraper. 

Staff member has 
now changed how 
tool is cleaned.  

16 05 September Near miss Student slipped playing 
rugby. Wet surface area, was 
wearing correct footwear.  No 
injury. 

Rugby is Risk 
assessed by 
department, weather 
and surfaces 
conditions are taken 
in consideration. 

17 06 September Accident Student was hit on side of the 
head by a volleyball. First 
Aider applied icepack and 
advised a visit to hospital for 
a check-up. 

No further action 

18 07 September Accident Student cut thumb with veg 
knife.   First Aider cleaned, 
dressed and advised student 
to get checked by GP First 
Aider had attend on second 
occasion during the day due 
to location of cut  to retreat 
wound, student taken to 
hospital by family member 

Knife slipped when 
cutting vegetables, 
cut glued at hospital, 
no further action 
required 

19 11 September First aid Student took a fit.   Currently 
under hospital investigation 
Taken to first aid room by 
First Aider to rest. 

Pre-existing condition 
No further action 
required 

20 12 September First aid Student arrived at college not 
feeling well.   Had chest pains 
and difficulty breathing. First 

Pre-existing condition 
No further action 
required 



Aider attended and called an 
ambulance ,taken to hospital 
by paramedics. 

21 12 September First aid Student took a seizure, First 
Aider and staff followed the 
care plan, put into recovery 
position and reassured.     

Student has a pre-
existing condition and 
a care plan in place 
no further action 
required 

22 13 September First aid Pregnant student, having 
pains in stomach.  First Aider 
attended, parent collected 
and took to hospital. 

No further action 
required 

23 14 September Incident Student practicing first aid, 
used alcohol wipes and took 
an allergic reaction. First 
aider attended, advised to 
wash neck & chest area 
where she was affected.    

No further action 
required 

24 14 September First aid Student took an asthma 
attack, dizzy, red and 
wheezing.   First Aider sat 
with them until parent came . 

Pre-existing condition 

25 14 September Accident Student knocked hand 
against another student while 
on an inflatable at event in 
college square.   First Aider 
advised to go to A & E to 
check if broken. 

Student did not need 
any treatment. No 
further action 
required. 

26 20 September First aid Student having pains in 
stomach caused by new 
medication, First Aider 
advised to get picked up and 
go home.      

Pre-existing condition 
No further action 
required. 

27 20 September First aid Student had been sick the 
night before and came to 
college still unwell.  First 
Aider advised them to go 
home and rest. 

No further action 
required. 

28 22-September Accident Member of staff had burns to 
face from oil splash.  First 
Aider applied cold packs. 

Had been trained in 
correct procedure but 
didn’t follow, was 
given refresher  by 
Team Leader. 

29 26 September First aid Student self-harming - 
scratches to arms.   First 
Aider provided wipes for 
student to wipe wounds 

Student given support 
from staff. 

30 26 September Accident Member of staff wiped the top 
of a bin in playroom where a 
sewing needle had been 
lying, this embedded into 
finger.   Was pulled out, 
bleeding stopped and plaster 
applied. 

Investigated why 
needle was left, 
immediately needle 
sign in/out system 
procedure was set 
up. This has been 
communicated to all 



staff. Staff to 
continuously monitor 
needle use. 

31 27 September First aid Students arm badly cut - self 
harm from previous night.   
First Aider cleaned with wipe 
then bandaged. 

Student referred to 
the College 
Safeguarding Team, 
and staff given 
additional support to 
deal with such 
instances. 

32 28 September Accident Student cut finger a few days 
before, started bleeding again 
today First Aider cleaned and 
dressed wound and advised 
to go to A & E. 

No further action 
required. 
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Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 2016-2017 
 
The attached paper shows the College’s Key Financial and Non-Financial 
Performance Indicators for the period 2013-2014 to 2016-2017.   
 
The Non-Financial KPI targets for 2016-2017 were set within the Regional 
Outcome Agreement (ROA) planning cycle.    Good progress has been made 
in relation to three targets with Further Education Full Time requiring further 
improvement. 
 
The Committee is reminded that whilst the Non-Financial indicators cover an 
academic year, the Financial Indicators only cover an academic year in 2015-
2016 and 2016-2017.  Periods 2013-2014 and 2014-2015 cover 8 months and 
16 months respectively. 
 
In addition, and for benchmarking purposes, Financial KPIs have been 
obtained from Borders College, Dumfries & Galloway College and Forth 
Valley College. 
 
Action 
 
For information 
 

 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance & Curriculum Services 
30 November 2017 
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Sheet1

West Lothian College -Key Financial Performance Indicators 2016-17

Target Actual Actual Actual Actual Comments
2016-17 For the year 

ended 31 
July 2017 **

For the year 
ended 31 
July 2016

16 month 
period ended 
31 July 2015

8 month 
period 

ended 31 
March 
2014

College Surplus (£'000) 86 453 41 492 (39)

Ahead of target due to additional fees 
income from part time provision,articulation 
students, SDS Contracts and Workforce 
Development Activity

Operating Surplus (£'000) (556) 647 (1,891) 76 (264)

Ahead of target due to actuarial gain from 
pension rtevaluation

Non SFC Income as % of total income 28% 30% 31% 29% 28%

Ahead of target due to additional fees 
income from part time provision,articulation 
students, SDS Contracts and Workforce 
Development Activity and Hall hire

Trading Surplus on commercial activities as 
% of income from commercial activities 27% 35% 28.0% 29.0% 28%

Ahead of target due to additional MA and FA 
income and staff cost savings from the 
replacement Business & Growth post and 
the closure of the Children's Panel Inverness 
Office

Staff costs as % of total income (excludes 
exceptional costs) 67% 65% 67% 61%* 64%

Staff costs below target due to additional 
income generated not fullly matched by 
additional staff costs and savings due to 
delays in replacement of posts

Ratio of Current Assets to Current Liabilities 0.6: 1 0.7 0.5 :1 0.7: 1 0.9: 1
Above target due to improved trading 
position

Days Cash to Total Expenditure 9 35 14 8 105
Above target due to improved trading 
position and late receipt of SFC Eneregy 
Efficiency Project money.

* Excludes £1.6m income adjustment following revaluation
** 2016-17 Excludes £1.9m deferred capital grant release as a result of an impairment loss following interim revaluation of assets

Borders Forth 
Valley

West 
Lothian

Dumfries & 
Galloway

Borders Forth Valley West Lothian Dumfries & 
Galloway

Non SFC Income as % of total income 27% 27% 29% 24% Non SFC Income as % 
of total income 26% 31% 31% 20%

Staff costs as % of total income (excludes 
exceptional costs) 64% 67% 61% 58%

Staff costs as % of 
total income (excludes 
exceptional costs)

68% 70% 67% 64%

Ratio of Current Assets to Current Liabilities 2.35: 1 01:01 0.7: 1 1.31: 1
Ratio of Current 
Assets to Current 
Liabilities

1.5:1 0.65:1 0.5:1 0.82:1

Days Cash to Total Expenditure 90 14 8 60 Days Cash to Total 
Expenditure 76 11 14 59

None

None

None

None

2015-162014-15 (16 months)

Actions

None

None

None



George Hotchkiss
Vice Principal, Curriculum Planning
7 September 2017

Key Performance Indicators   2014-2017
Learner Performance

West Lothian College 2014-15 2015-16 Sector 2016-17 2016-17
Actual  Actual Averages 15-16 Target  Actual 

Activity  WSUMS 53,665 Activity Credits 44,390 43,499 44,085

Full Time FE Programmes Full Time FE Programmes
Early Withdrawal 8% Early Withdrawal 8% 9% below 8% 9%
Further Withdrawal 18% Further Withdrawal 19% 17% below 18% 17%
Partial Success 10% Partial Success 9% 9% below 10% 12%
Completed Successfully 64% Completed Successfully 64% 66% 68% 62%

Full Time HE Programmes Full Time HE Programmes
Early Withdrawal 8% Early Withdrawal 5% 5% below 8% 5%
Further Withdrawal 10% Further Withdrawal 12% 13% below 10% 11%
Partial Success 11% Partial Success 14% 11% below 11% 11%
Completed Successfully 71% Completed Successfully 70% 72% 75% 73%

Part Time FE Programmes Part Time FE Programmes
Early Withdrawal 1% Early Withdrawal 2% 3% below 1% 2%
Further Withdrawal 3% Further Withdrawal 4% 6% below 4% 6%
Partial Success 22% Partial Success 24% 16% below 20% 15%
Completed Successfully 75% Completed Successfully 71% 74% 78% 77%

Part Time HE Programmes Part Time HE Programmes
Early Withdrawal 4% Early Withdrawal 2% 3% below 3% 1%
Further Withdrawal 2% Further Withdrawal 4% 6% below 2% 10%
Partial Success 21% Partial Success 28% 12% below 21% 11%
Completed Successfully 74% Completed Successfully 66% 79% 78% 79%
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Audit Committee Development Plan  
 
June 2017 – May 2018 

Membership 

Membership of 5; all places now filled 

Remit 

Annual review of remit – last reviewed June 2017, next review June 2018 

Visits to Parts of the Campus 

Arrange a visit to part of the campus at the start of March 18 meeting 

Opportunities for Strategic Discussion 

No current issues  

Development Issues Identified in Meetings 

Provide an opportunity for members to visit / have a meeting in a Partnership Centre 
(all Board – included in the Board Development Plan) 

Self-Evaluation 

Annual self-evaluation of Committee – March 2018 

Include opportunity for reflection on new approaches (campus visits) 

 

 

Update 3: November 2017 
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